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Alliance Pharmaplc

is an international
healthcare group.
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2018 HIGHLIGHTS

See-through Revenue®

£124.0m

(2017: £101.6m*") +22%

ClZa Gm

Statutory Revenue

£118.2m

(2017: £101.6m**") +16%

2016

TH8.2m

T Lm

Underlying Profit Before Tax

£28.1m

{2017 £23.9m**} +17%

Reported Profit Before Tax

£22.8m

{2017: £28.3m**) -19%

28 1m

Underlying Adjusted Basic EPS®

4.54p

(2017: 4.05p"*} +12%

Reported Basic EPS

3.69p

{2017: 6.08p"*) -39%

6.08p

* Mon-IFRS alternative perlormance measures (see note 34} See-through revenue includes soles from Nizoral os if they had been

invoiced by Alliance. For stotutory accounting purposes the product masgin on Nizeral sales is included within Revenue, in line

with IFRS 15

** 2017 compuratives restated following the odoption ol IFRS 15 Revenue lrom Contracts with Customers ond IFRS 16 Leases

OVERVIEW

Revenues on o see-through basis®
up 22% ot £124.0m {up 23% on

a constant currency”® bosis), with
like-for-like revenue up 4% {4% on
o constant currency* basis), in line
with expectations

— Conlinued strong performance
from International Star brands,
led by Kelo-cote

— For the first time, overseas sales
exceeded those from the UK

Statutory revenues up 16%,
o £118.2m (2017 restated*™:
£101.6m)

Underlying EBITDA® up 19% to
£32.4m (2017 restated*™: £27.2m}

Nizoral acquired from Jehnson

& lohnson for the Asia Pacific
region in June 2018 for £60m;
revenues in line with expectations;
integration progressing well

Yamousse integration completed
ond Alliance subsidiory fully
estoblished in the US; Vemousse
revenues up 16% year on year
under Alliance monagerment

Xonvea, for nausea and

vomiting of pregnancy where
conservative monagement has
failed, approved in the UK in July
2018 and lounched in October
- now storting to gain formulary
inclusions

Reorganisotion of our Chinese
operotions; os previously
announced, resulting in o net
non-underlying charge to the
profit and loss account of £1.0m,
with the focus in Chinc now being
on our Kelo-cote, Mizoral ond
Nutraceuticals businesses

As previously announced,
anti-moterial intangibles written
down in full resulting in a non-
underlying charge 1o the profit
and loss account of £4.3m

Allionce ocquired the anti-molorial
products in 2012, since which time
these products have generated o
cumulative gross profit of £6.3m
o 31 December 2018

Continued strong cash generation,
with leverage folling to 2.33x from
2.46x {2017), including £28m of
new borrowings for the Nizoral
acquisition

Proposed final dividend increased
10% 1o 0.97 7p, giving o fotal
dividend of 1.464p. Covered 3.1x
by underlying earnings

01

MAIIAQ




Alliance Pharma plc
Annuel Repor and Accounts 7018

AT A GLANCE

We are an alliance built for modern business.

Aninter-connected network of people and brands.
A global range of products delivering outstanding value.
Many partners working together; one team, achieving more.

Headquartered in Operating a proven Owns or licenses the

the UK, with affiliated business model rights to more than

oftices in Europe, the Organic growth 90 pharmaceutical

For East and the US « Through our and consumer

+ Wide internotional internchionat healthcare products
reach through an Star breads * Llimited number

extensive network of promated

* Through selective

of distributers promofional International
= Sales in more thon investment Star brands
100 countries * Supported by o

Additional growth diversified portiolio
through acquisitions of cash generative
» Salective approach Local brands
+ Focilioted by strong

cash generation
+ Significant M&A and

integralion expertise

* More than 35 deals

in 20 yeors
KELO-COTE NIZORAL
See page 17 See page 18

Internationnsl

Star bronds Key strategic

+ 68% acquisition

revenue growth JUI‘le 201 8
MACUSHIELD VAMOQUSSE XONVEA
See page 19 See page 20 See page 21

4 o UK launch
new terrilory +1 6 /o OC'Obel'
launches in 2018 revenue growth 2018
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Revenue
by geography
2018

@ 42% UK & RO
@ 34% Internctional

@ 20% Mainlond Europe
@ s%US

Where we are

Chippenham (HQ)

¢ |
Chester Madrid

Dublin s |
Paris n Shanghai . Distributor relatanships
o]

) . Counlry with
Dasseldorf Singopore inlernotional office

1 >100

TEAM COUNTRIES

10 >200

OFFICES PEOPLE
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Strategic Report

Our vision

Tobealeading international
healthcare business built
around products which

are clinically valuable to
patients.

We will be both the partner
and employer of choice.

Our mission

To create partnerships
that unlock potential for
brands, businesses and

people around the world.
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INVESTMENT CASE

A successful international healthcare business,
operating a proven business model and offering
a significant mid-term growth opportunity.

HIGHLY CAPABLE AND

ORGANIC GROWTH

PROFITABLE, CASH GROWTH STRATEGIES
DEVELOPED OVER DIVIDEND PAYING BUSHNESS MODEL INTERNATIONAL STAR
20 YEARS BRANDS
P Experienced ¥ c.25% EBITDA margin » Organic growth through P Kelo-cote
monogement team selective pramotion
Good cash conversion P Nizorol
P Engaged and o P Additiona! growth
committed people [ 4 Pn?.gresswe dividend through acquisifions P MocuShield
policy
P Well-invested P Bolonced portfolio P Vomousse
infrastructure P Leveroge currently
2.33 times P No R&D risk ¥ Xonvea

Reod more on pages 22-25  Read more on poges 26-28

Read more on pages 12-13

Read more on poges 16-21

20 £16.1Im

YEARS OF FREE CASH FLOW
OPERATION  (2018)

22%

SEE-THROUGH
REVENUE
GROWTH (2018)

37%

OF REVENUE FROM
INTERNATIONAL
STAR BRANDS
(2018)



ADDITIONAL

GROWTH THROUGH

ACQUISITIONS

Strategic Report | Investment Cose

EXTENSIVE
GEOGRAPHIC
REACH

DIVERSIFIED
PORTFOLIO
SPREADS RISK

Very experienced

" feam behind M&A -
more than 35 deals
in 20 yeors

Expertise in sourcing,
executing and
integrating acquisitions

Strong cosh generotion
supports deal flow

Reod more on page 15

Direct presence in
Western Europe, the
S ond the Far East

Extensive internctional
partnering network
reaching over 90
countries

Read more on poges 2-3

» Revenues derive

from more than 90
phormaceutical end
consumer healthcare
products sponning
mutltiple therapy areas
and geographies

Reod more on page 16

35

ACQUISITIONS
TO DATE

9

COUNTRIES
WITH AN
ALLIANCE
OFFICE

>100

COUNTRIES
WHERE ALLIANCE
PRODUCTS

ARE SOLD

07
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

In 2018 we continued to deliver on our strategy, with
strong sales and profit growth, led by our International
Star brands and acquisitions. 2018 marked a milestone
in the internationalisation of Alliance in that, for the

first time, our overseas sales exceeded those in the UK.

PETER BUTTERFIELD
Chiet Executive

The acquisition of Nizoral

brings increased scale and
oppoertunities for us in the Asia
Pacific region and, together
with the creation of a trading
operation in the US, further
increases our international
footprini, whilst the UK approval
of Xonvea offers further organic
growth prospects for the Group.

2019 has storted well and

we look forward to continuing
on our growth path in the
year ahead and to deploying
the Group’s strong cash flow
to further develop as a
{ending International
healithcare business,

Trading performance

The Group continued to trade weil

in 2018 with revenuves on o see-
through basis up 22% to £124.0m
and up 16% on a statutory basis to
£118.2m (2017 restated: €£101.6m).
Lika-for-like revenues, which exclude
wcquisitions in the year under review,
wera up 4% on the prior yeor {4%

on @ constant currency basis} and,
with improving gross profit margins,
gross profit increased by 23% to
£72.6m (2017 restoted: £59.1m}.

As expecled, the growth in underlying
EBITDA and underlying profit before
tex waos slightly lower os we continue
with our planned invesiment in

our International Star brands and
continue to build our business in

the Asio Pocific region; underlying
EBITDA wos up 19% to £32.4m (2017
restated: £27.2m) and underlying
profit before tax up 17% 10 £28.1m
(2017 restated: £23.9m).

Recent acquisitions,
integration and disposals

During the first half of 2018,

we completed the integration

of Voamaousse, the pesticide-free
treatment for head lice, ocquired in
Decamber 2017, establishing a new
US subsidiery to manage the sales
of this product in its larges! morket.
We also completed the integrotion
of Ametop, the local anaesthetic gel
ocquired from Smith & Nephew in
December 2017, with soles of this
product forming part of our Local
brond soles in 2018,
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David Cook succeeds
Andrew Smith as Chairman

Opening of new offiliate
office in the US

March

We have made a positive stari

with the integration of Nizoral, the
medicoted onli-dondruff shompoo
acquired from lohnson & Johnson
{J&J) far the Asia Pacific region in
June 2018, The acquisition included
product licences covering 17 Asic
Pacific territories in which the brand
is registered, which are expected

to transfer to Allionce over ime,
beginning in H2 2012. Under the
terms of the tronsitional services
agreement with &1, we receive the
net profit on soles of Nizoral from the
date of acquisition up until the point
ot which the licence in eoch territory
transfers to Afliance.

China remains a key territory for

the Group, ond we have had o local
presence there since 2007 when

we acquired the rights to Forcevol

in China. As part of the sirategic
repositioning of our China business,
to prepare for sirong future organic
growth in April 2018 we completed
the disposal of our 60% joint venture
hoiding in Unigreg Limiled ond

we impoired our 20% stake in the
Synthuasio juint verdure - e Chinese
distributor of Suprememil infant

milk formula.

Our Shanghai trading company

will continue to market our local
nutraceutical products and maointoin
close links to the Shanghai-bosed
distributar of Kelo-cote. It is also
well placed to manage the Trictop
[Nizoral) relationship in China, o
key territory for the product, following
the transition from J&J.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

International Star brands
Kelo-cote

Kelo-cote, our scar treatment product,
delivered on cuistonding performonce
in 2018, with sales up §8% to £22.5m
{2017: £13.3m} due to sirong growth
across the Asia Pacific region and in
mainland Europe.

in October we were pleased 1o be
o leading sponsor of the first world
congress of the G-Scar Society in
Shanghoi. Over 400 healthcara
professionois ottended the event

Disposal of 0% interest in non-
core Unigreg IV in Ching

which featured lectures given by
promineni Key Opinion Leoders in
scar treatment from around the world.

We plan to confinue fo support the
growth of this key brond in 2019
through further range enhancement,
with morkating support being
maintained at o similar level to 2018.

Nizora!l

Nizorol, the medicated anti-dendruft
shampoo acquired from J&J in

June 2018, performed in line with
expectations, generofing see-through
sotes of £10.9m in the second half

of 2018. We have mode o good

stort on integration activities, which
are progressing to plan, ond expect
the first of the preduct licences to
transter to Alliance during the second
half of 2019.

MoacuShield

MacuShield, our eye health
supplement, performed well in this
period, generating soles of £7.0m,
up 6% year on year (2017: £6.6m,
restated following the adoption of
IFRS 15). Growth came primorily
fram the UK, where the product wos
aworded ‘Best Eye Health Product
2018’ by Boots.

Growth wos somewhat tempered by
deloys to the launches planned for the
second half of 2018 in both Europeon
and international territories. These
countries are now expected to come
on stream in the first half of 2019

Vamousse

Vomousse, for the prevention and
trectment of head lice, performed in
line with expectations achieving sales
of €5.8m, up 16% on 2017 (when it
wos under previous ownership) and
up 18% on a constant currency basis.

We continue o evaluate opportunities
to introduce Vomousse into new
muorkets.

Xonveo

Xonveq, for the treciment of nausea
and vomiting of pregnancy where
conservative monagement has
failed, gained UK marketing
approval in July 2018 and was
launched in the UK in October 2018.

a9

Peter Butterfield succeeds John
Dowson as Chief Executive Officer
Themas Casdagh steps down

os a Non-executive Director

2018 Highlights

* Strong revenue growth,
driven by an outstonding
performance from Kelo-cote

{+68%)

* Acquisition of Nizorol in Asio
Pacific in June 2018, adding
o fourth internotionol Stor
brand to our portfolio and
building critice! mass in the
important Asia Pacific region

yaday nBajoysg

+ Approval and lounch of
Xonvea in the UK, odding
a fifth International Stor
brand to our portfolio and
enhancing our polential for
mid-term growth

» Reorganisation of our Chinese
aperations completed,
with the focus now on our
Kelo-cote, Nizoral and
Nutraceuticals businesses

* In 2018, for the first time,
overseas sales exceeded those
from the UK

See-through Revenue*

£124.0m

(2017: £101.6m™") +22%

097 5m

Statutory Revenue

£118.2m

{2017: £101.6m**) +16%

' Non-IFRS glternative performance meosures [see nole 34). See-through revenue includes soles from Nizorol os if they hod been invoiced by
Alkance. For statulory occounting purposes the product morgin on Nizora! soles is included within Revenue, in line with IFRS 15

** 2017 comporatives restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers and IFRS 16 Leases
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW conrtiNuED

Early signs are encouroging, with the
product hoving achieved its first sales
and formulary inclusions.

UK opproval paves the way for further
licence ppprovals in the EU in 2019
and beyond, and as such the product
is considered to offer good growth
praspects in the medium term.,

Local brands

Our Locol brands comprise a wide
portfolio of products thot collectively
generale significont profit and cash
flow for the business and, as such,
represent a key component of our
business model. Most of our Local
brands occupy well-estoblished
niches it their respective market
segmenis ond provide stoble cosh
flows with little or no promotionol
effort. Occasionally competition moy
emerge in 0 segment, or we moy be
odvised by o supplier that they ore
no longer able to monutacture the
product ond in 2018 we experienced
this with our anti-malarials portolio.

Alter o slower first holf, the second
helf of the year sow o recovery in
sales of our Locol brands, as some
of the timing differences in order
placement we experienced in the firs?
half of the year reversed, and mos?,
but not oll, of the manufacturing
delays were resolved. Second half
sales of £40.6m wera up 9% on

first half soles {H1 2018 £37.2m),
nlthough 2% lower than sales in

the second half of 2017 (H2 2017
restoted: £41.4m). Total sales for

the year were £77.8m, down 5% on
the previous year (2017 restoled:
£81.6m), £0.6m of which related to
the anti.melarials portfolio. Further
detail is provided in the UK and
Republic of Ireland section below.
Going forwards, we expect soles
across this portfolio to remain broadly
stable and in line with the second half
2018 soles on an annuclised basis.

Performance by region
For the first time, sales generated
outside of the UK excesded those
from within the UK.’

international

Owr internotional distributor business
continued to perform strongly and,
with the recent acquisition of Nizoral
and continued growth of Kelo-cole,
represents an increasing port of

our revenue generolion, with see-
through sales increosing 59% to
£41.8m in 2018 ond reported sales
increasing 37% to £36.0m (2017
resiated: £26.3m}.

The performonca of our Chinese
business was particularly pleosing,
with sales more than doubling to
£11.2m (2017 restated: £5.3m), due
to strong performances from Kelo-
cole ond our nutraceutical products,
coupled with the inclusion of second
hoif revenues from Nizorol.

UK ond Republic of Ireland

Sales in the UK and Republic of
Irefand, which combined, have
historically been our largest markael,
ware down 5% on the previous year at
£52.3m {2017: £54.9m) due to a slow
start in the first half of the yeor, with
only lirmited recavery in H2. Second
hoif sales were £26.5m, up 3% on H1
2018 soles, but down 8% on H2 2017
{H2 2017 restated: £28.8m).

As noted above, we experienced
some manufacturing ond ordering
delays, notably on o monufacturing
transfer of Menadiol (o prescription
madicine, initiated in hospitals), which
we expected lo normalise during

the second half of 2018 to 2017
levels. However, this normalisation

is now axpected in the first half of
2019. UK sales were oiso impacted
by the expected discantinuation of
ImmuCyst, o fall in sales of our anti-
molarial products, os oullined cbave,
and o mandated increase in the UK
NHS rebote (the Pharmaceutical
Price Regulation Scheme) from
4.75% 10 7.8%.

Hawever, these chollenges ware
partiolly offset by strong performances
from our UK consumer products, with
our key consumer brands, MacuShield,
Ashion & Porsons, Aloclair, Anbesol
ond Vormousse oll delivering good
sales growth following investment,

o trend which we expect to see
continuing into 2019.

Acquisition of Nizoral for
the Asia Pocific region

UK Stock Market Heolthcare
Company of the Yeor award

Mainlond Europe

Qur Mainland Europe business saw
strong top-line growth in 2018, with
sales increasing by 25% to £25.4m,
(2017 resioted: £20.3m), largely due
to growth in Kelo-cote sales, which
were up by more than £5.0m across
the region.

Us

in the US, we were porticularly
encouraged by the performance

of Vamousse which, compared with
the same period last year under

its previous ownership, sow o 10%
{14% on o constant cutrenty bosis)
increase in sales o £4.6m.

Operations

Falsified Medicines Directive
(‘FMD’) and Medical Device
Regulation (‘MDR’}

We have successfully implemented
the FMD, the purpose of which is to
prevent counterfeit medicines from
reaching patients in Europe and
hove released our first individuolly
serialised pocks to the UK market.

We are olso working to ensure

our technical documentation ond
processes meet the new reguirements
of the MDR, which will start to apply
from May 2020. The new regulstion
places stricter requirements on
clinical information for products
registered as medical devices

ond requires enhanced traceobility
ond transparency.

Brexit

Only a limited amount of our business
is reliant on the movement of goods
between the UK and EU, however

to mitigote potentiol risk, we have
implemented our Brexit strategy,
which includes: building additionat
inventory in order 1o maintain
sufficient supply of key products;
establishing o subsidiary company in
the Republic of Ireland 1o host certain
registeations, and duplicating key
statuiory roles in the UK and EU albeit
on a limited basis.
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UK Marketing
Authorisation Approval
received for Xonveo

July

Cost implications

As previously announced, we incurred
o small emount of one-off costs in
preparing for FMD and Brexit in 2018.
Going forword, we expect to absorb
the costs of operoting under these
new complionce regimes without

any further impact on margins. We
increased our stockholdings ahead

of FMD and Brexit by €2m - £€3m al
the end of 2018, with o consequential
impact on cash flow. Whilst we expect
this increased holding to substontiolly
unwind during 2019, the impact of
this is likely to be balanced by the
requirement for us to build stock

for Nizoral as we start to exit the
fransitiono! service orrangements with
J&] and by further increases in the
scale of our business aperations.

ERP implementation

We are moking good progress with
the installation of our new enterprise
resource plonning ('ERP‘) system,
Microsoft Dynamics AX, and now
expect this to become operational

in the second half of 2019, g few
manths later than previously advised.
The potentiol business benefit is
significont, as we will be moving all
our legacy systems onto o single
plotform, which can handie oll cur
financial and supply chain planning
ond fulfilment activilies, enabling

us to streamline our processes and
increase operational efficiency,
whilst also providing a scolable
platform to support further growth
ond fulure acquisitions.

People

During 2018 and the early part of
2019, we saw a number of changes to
the composition of the Allionce Board.

On 1 March 2018, David Cook,
who had been o Non-executive
Director ot Alliance for almost four
years, succeeded Andrew Smith

as Chairman. On 1 May 2018, 1
tock over from John Dawson as the
Group's Chief Executive Officer,
although John continues to serve
on the Board as a Non-executive
Director. On 30 Moy 2018, Thomos
Casdagli stepped down as a Non-
executive Director,

Opening of new offices
in Dusseldorf

in the UK

OCn behalf of the Board, and
personally, | would like to thank
Andrew, lohn and Thomas for

their invaluable contributions to the
development of the Alliance business
to dote, particularly John who, as the
Group's founder, led the business
for over 20 years from start-up to a
profitable, AlM-listed business with

a turnover of £100m+. | wos very
pleased that John decided to stay on
as a Non-executive Direcior.

On 17 December 2018, we
announced the oppointment of two
new independent Non-executive
Directors with effect from 1 January
2019. Jo LeCouilliard and Richard
Jones both have substantiol
pharmaceutical ond healthcare
experience goined in listed companies
and they bring further internationaol
business experience and capital
markets expertise inio the Group.
We are delighted to welcome them
both to the Allionce Boord.

Alliance currently employs more
thar 200 people in 10 locations
around the world, the majority of
whom hold share options in the
business. 2018 saw the highest-
ever employee solisfoction results
across the business os we continue to
inves! in our working environments
and in personol development.

We are currently scaling up our
existing aperotions in Singapore
and Shanghai in order to support
the integration and ongoing
management of Nizorol. Our
resourcing requirements will continue
fo evolve os the business grows and
diversifies, generating requirements
for additional specialist or local
market expertise.

We recognise thot great results

con only be achieved through the
combined effarts of our dedicated
team of colleagues ocross the globe,
our partners and customers, ond to
the strong colloborative culture that
we have built within Allionce. On
beholf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity 1o extend my
thanks to oll who have contributed to
onother successful year for Allionce.

Xonveo lounched

Jo LeCouiliiard and

Richord lones appointed as
independent Non-execulive

Directors, with effect from
1 January 2019

December

Current trading and outlook

After a strong performonce in 2018,
which also saw the introduction of
two new International Star brands
inte the Group {Mizoral and Xonvean),
we start 2019 weli-positicned for
further growth.

Strategically, the priorities for the
Group continue fo be the delivery of
organic growth, primarily from our
International Star bronds; maintaining
our progress with the integration of
Nizoral; and continuing to support
Xonvea as it progresses through

its impaortant post-launch phose by
building relationships with healthcare
professionals and driving formulary
inclusions and prescribing.

The acquisition of Nizoral ond the
continued strong performance of
Kelo-cote leave us well-placed 1o
leverage opportunities for further
arganic growth, particulorly in the
fost-growing Asia Pacific region,
ond we are currently scaling-up our
local infrastructure ond resources to
facifitate this.

The UK tounch of Xonvea morks an
important strategic milestane and,
with further EU lounches planned,
the product offers an opportunity for
further growth in the medium term.

Trading in 2019 hos started well
ond the Group is trading in line with
expectations for the full year.

Our strong cash generation in 2019
and planned increase in debt faciiities
mean that, as the year progresses,

we will be well-placed to continue to
invest in our International Star brands
to drive expected strong organic
growth, supplemented by targeted
ocquisitions 1o toke odvantage of
operotional leverage and to enhance
our geogrophical reach.

Peter Butterfield
Chief Executive

26 March 2019
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We have built a successful business with a strong collaborative culture.
We recognise that our relevance and value is in how we work together;
colleagues, partners and customers alike, we demonstrate an entrepreneurial
spiritand work together toachieve more. Qur values remain at the heart of
how we engage with each other and conduct our business.

Resources and relafionships Key activities

Experienced
managemen? feom

Engaged and
committed people

Collaborative,
values-driven
culture

Well-established
contraoct

manufacturing Phﬂrmﬂceutical
relotionships Uﬂd consumer

healthcare products

Reliable network of
warehousing and
logistics partners

Offices in three
continenis

Strong relotionships
with 100+
distributors

Strong cash flow
and access o funds
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O visinn

To he g leadqng nternationol healthcore

oducts which

hie to pabents

How we do it

& MAINTAIN OR GROW

With the lobour-intensive monufacturing, storage
and distribution of our products outsourced, our
focus is on growing our porHolio of products
through selective promotional investmant,
maintaining ond harvesting our cash-generative
Lacal brands, whils investing behind our
International Star brands in order to drive growth.

(£) RE-INVEST

Our diversitied portfolio of Lacal bronds provides
good cash ganeration for the business, enabling
us to re-invest both in promoting and developing
our International Stor bronds and in paying
down debt and making selective acquisitions.

O IDENTIFY

Qur highly selective acquisition strotegy looks io
identity opportunitias which align with our vision,
maintain cur blended model and are synergistic
with our existing business, enabling us to leverage
our operotional and geagraphic footprint, channel
presenice ond therapeutic expertise.

P ACQUIRE

We have on experienced and copable acquisition
tearn, and once o suitable acquisition has

been identified, we have o good track record

of securing the necessary debt, and equity
funding, if required, to compleate it. We also hove
considerabie experience in post-deal integration,
enabling acquired assets to be incorporated into
aur existing operations with minimum discuption.

Crur mission

Together we achieve more for...

Patients

Potients rely on us to defiver products that con
help to improve their health. At Alliance, every
one of our brands is in sofe honds.

Together we mcke o reol ditference to the lives
of millions of people around the world every doy.

Heglthcare providers

Healthcore providers in o range of specialties
value our engagement and achieve more every
day thanks to the education, infermation and
resources we provide,

Working with key opinion leaders enables us
to build on our growing global reputation os
trusted experts in selected theropy areas.

Qur partners

Ovur trusted business model creates global
opportunities for working together with a
wide range of specialist portners.

Qur balanced strategy of organic growth
ond growth thraugh ccquisition makes us the
compelling partner for businesses seeking to
divest or out-license bronds.

Investors

We have a proven, consistent track record that
provides the freedom to invest for both growth
ond acquisition.

Qur dllionces enable us to deliver the sustained
growth and value thot institutional ond private
investors value.

13
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OUR STRATEGY

We have a proven strategy of delivering organic growth
through selective promotion of our brands and enhancing
this growth through acquisitions.

Organic growth

Through our promoted International Star brands
Supported by selective promotional investment in our Local brands

Progress in 2018 Focus for 2019

= 2018 saw us cantinue our programme = To continue fo defiver strong like-for-like
of planned investment behind our revenue growlh across our portfolio, through
International Star brands, with pleosing providing an appropricte level of marketing
results. Collectively, this port of our portfolio support to our International Star brands, whilst
grew by 130% in 2018 {48% on o Jke-for-like conlinuing to maintain the underlying cash
basis). Kelo-cote delivered an exceplionally generation provided by our Local brands.

strong performance, with revenues up 68%
{see poge 17), through growing sales in
Ching, additionel internctional distribution
vio our European cffiliotes and o new
distribution partner in Thailand, and the
creotion of o new sales chonnel in Fronce.

* We also exponded our portfolio of
Internctional Stor bronds through the
acquisition of Nizoral in Asia Pacific in June
2018 (see page 18} and the launch of Xonvea
in the UK in October 2018 (see page 21},
both of which will benefil from our proven
ability 1o moximise brand potential through
effective promotional investment, offering the
appaortunity ta further enhance our medium-
term growth prospects.
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Additional growth through acquisitions

Selective approach
Facilitated by strong cash generation

Leverages significont M&A and integration expertise,
os a result of having completed more than 35 deals in post 20 yeors

Progress in 2018 Focus for 2019

« In 2018, we completed the acquisition of * To ensvre the effective integrafion of
Nizorol, o key strotegic ocquisition thot Nizoral into the business.
brought a fourth Internatione! Star brand + We will continue fo evaluate prospective

into the Group ond further enhanced

our geographic footprint and scole in the
fasi-growing Asia Pacific region. Under the
transitional services ogreement we entered
with 18J, they will continue to operate the
buysiness and remit the net profit to Allience
until the marketing autharisations transfer.
Alliance also hos a five-year monufacturing
and supply ogreement in place with &J for
same {but not all} territories.

acquisition opportunities which meet our
selective acquisition criteria ond our desire
to maintain ¢ balonced product portfolio,
in terms of Internctional Stars versus

Local brands, route to market, territoriat
ond channel presence. Our skrong cash
generclion ond reducing leverage leave us
well-placed to pursue suitable opportunities
which align with our sirategy.

* We olso complefed the integration of
Vamousse (see page 20), establishing o
irading presence in the US, the world’s
largest healthcare market, as port of this
process, ond the integration of Ametop inlo
our Local brand portfolio, both products
having been acquired at the end of 2017.

15
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OUR PRODUCTS

Alliance owns or licenses the rights to more than
90 pharmaceutical and consumer healthcare
products, comprising a mixture of International
Star brands and Local brands.

Internctional Star brands

Our International Star brands ore o select group of
high-growth brends with international reach. The majority
of these ore consumer heclthcore products, which offer
an opportunity to promote. All hove a cleor USP and
positioning in their target markets and are perceived

as offering significant scope for growth. Marketing
initiatives gre tailored to local markets, with strategic
oversight being provided by our global marketing team.

INVEST AND
GROW

f

Portfolio
mix

2018*

@ 63% Locol Brands

* 2018 see-through revenue

@ 37% Injesnstionol Slor Brands

Local brands

Qur Local brands comprise o diversified portfolic of
prescriplion medicines ond consumer products that ore
sold in o kmited number of local morkets. Most of our
Local brands occupy well-established niches in their
respeclive market segments or have on established brand
name ond provide stoble cash flows with little or no
promational investment. Due to their relatively small size
and niche positioning, most are relotively well-protected
from competitive threats. Collectively they generate
significant cash flow for the business and continue to
represent o key component of our business madel.

MAINTAIN AND
HARVEST

Routs to ‘ @ 50%Rx
market @ 2% 0%
2018* ’ ® 24%OTC

LOC AL BRANDS

£78m

October 2018
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KELO-COTE

A patent-protected, clinically proven, silicone gel
treatment for scar reduction, currently sold in
more than 65 countries around the world.

Overview

Kelo-cote is indicated for use on hypertrophic and keloid
scars resulling from surgical procedures, trouma, wounds
and burns, helping to sofien and flatien roised scars ond
reduce redness and discolouration. It also reduces itching,
discomfort ond pain associoted with scars. The efficacy
of Kelo-cote has been demonstrated in over 10 published
clinicot trials.

Internotional guidelines recommend silicone os the first
line theropy tn scor prevention ond treatment and it is
used extensively by healthcore professionals such as
plastic surgeons ond dermatalogists.

Market appraisal

The global market for scar freatment products is estimated
to be worth £600m, with future cotegory growth estimated
at around 10% per annum, with increasing oppecrance
owareness due to increased use of social medio,
population growth in Asig, the increasing availobifity and
convenience of online shopping and an increase in the
rate of C-sections olt helping to drive this growih, In o
fragemented market, Kelo-cote has a strong posilioning

as one of the leading bronds within it.

Key achievements in 2018

Kelo-cole delivered an outstanding performonce in 2018,
experiencing strong growth, particulorly in Asia Pacific
and across mainlond Europe. The brond continued to
benefit from a high level of planned maorketing support,
both at o globotl and local tevel in order to drive this
growth. We launched our new global website ond
distributor extranet for Kelo-cote and the brand wos also
the lead corporate spansor of G-Scors Society, promoting
best practice in scor managemnent globally.

Focus for 2019

tn 2019, aur focus will be on continuing to invest and grow
Kelo-cote through the implementation of global marketing
strategies oimed both ot increasing penetration within
our existing morkels ond pursuing further geogrophic
expansion, leveraging the increasing scale ond reach of
our internationol operotions ond distributor network.

REVENUES

£22.5m

IN 2018 SALES OF
KELO-COTE GREW

" 68%

SOLD IN
MORE THAN

65 counTriEs

GLOBAL
MARKET SIZE

£600m

17
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NIZORAL

A medicated anti-dandruff shampoo,
acquired from Johnson & Johnson (J&J)
for the Asia Pacific region in June 2018.

Overview

Nizoral is a weli-known, lintcally meaningtul, heritage
product for the treatment of dendruff. The preduct is
currently sold in 14 territories across the Asia Pocific
region, inciwding Ching, Jupan, Thoiland and Kores.
It is predominantly a consumer-focused praduct, with
o sirong clinical heritage, and is o well-known ond
trusted beand globally, with o 30-year history of use.
The product has a loyal cusiomer base ond o
well-established safely profile.

Market appraisal

Nizoral is g key brand in an attractive category: Dandruff
affects around half of the adult population. In 2016, the
OTC Medicated Hoircore segment wos worth $363m in
the Asio Pacific region. The active ingredient in Nizaral

is ketoconarole, an extensively prescribed ingredient

for seborrheic copitis and seborrheic dermotitis

{[couses of dandryff}.

Key achievements in 2018

Completion of this key sirategic acquisition was a
significant achievement for the Group in 2018, further
enhoncing cur gecgrophic footprint and scale in the fast-
growing Asia Pacific region, Early performance indications
are encouraging, with the brand performing in line with
expectations in H2 2018. The transilionel orrangements
with 1&] are operoting effectively ond integration planning
is progressing well. A plon is now in place for transfer

of the morketing outhorisations, with the first markets
expected o transfer in H2 2019.

Focus for 2019

Qur focus in 2019 will be on continving to progress
plonned integration gctivities, and on ensuring that

the marketing outhorisation Ironsfers progress to plon.
As port of this process we will continue to build our
infrastructure in Singapore and Shanghoi, to support the
tronsfers and associoted commerciol and operational
activities, including the development of new disiributor
relationships, across oll territories in which the product

is currently sold and securing supply, for those territories
where the produtt is monufaciured locally.

SEE-THROUGH
REVENUIES (H2)
£10.9m
Awelt-known, ASIA PACIFIC
clinically MARKET SIZE
meaningful,
heritage brand.” $ 3 63m
SOLD IN

14 countries
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- MACUSHIELD

The most recommended eye supplement

by eye experts in the UK.

Overview

MacuShield is an eye bealth supplement ond is the
number one eye supplement recommended by eye
experts in the UK, All the products in the MacuShield
range contain all three mocular pigments - lutein,
meso-zeaxanthin and zeaxonthin - and the product
is supported by extensive scientific dafa.

Market appraisal

According to Parsistence Morket Research, the globaol
maorket for eye health supplements is estimated to be
worth $1,9280m, with the totol global carotenoid market
for eye health forecast to be worth $684m in 2019

A growing sense of self-relionce among consumers

is increasing the adoption of ‘medical’ supplements,
previously reluctantly consumed under supervision

of prescribed physicians, whilst innovative eye health
supplements ore also entering the market, predominantly
in the USA, widening the consumer base ond improving
willingness to riol.

Key achievemenis in 2018

MacuShield delivered a good performance in 2018,
although growth wos semewhat tempered by delays to
planned EU ond International launches, which will now

go hve in 2019, In the UK, the brand’s moin market,
growth come primarily from key high street and online
retailers, with the product being aworded ‘Best Eye Health
Product 2018 by Boots. We successfully launched the
brond in another three new lerritories in 2018: Singapore,
Hong Kong and Poland, and work is ongoing to support
launches in another seven markets in 2019. We also
implemented o brand re-design and rolled this out across
our network of affiliotes ond international distributors and
leunched o poartner extranat to provide o greoter level of
support for our partners.

Focus for 2019

tn 2019, our focus will be on increosing global distribution
of the brond, through ensuring the successful launch of
MaocuShield in another seven markets, in line with cur
strategic plan. Alongside this, we wili continue to build
engogement with distributors, healthcare professionals
and key opinion leaders globally ond o support
independent research to build brand awareness and
cement the brand's positioning within its existing markets,

REVENUES

£7.0m

IN 2018 SALES
OF MACUSHIELD
GREW BY

6%

SOLD IN

21 COUNTRIES

GLOBAL
MARKET SIZE

$684m
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VAMOUSSE

A range of products for the prevention

and treatment of head lice.

Overview

The lead product in the Vamousse ronge is a pesticide-free
mousse fo treal head lice infestations, which is clinically
proven to kill both fice and eggs. It is designed fo kil
pesticide-resistant lice ["super lice’) thot traditional pesticide-
based products are no longer as effective against. Other
produtis in the range include a lice elimination powder, to
kil lice in the environment, o daily lice defence shampoo,
and a lice repellent.

Market appraisal

The marke! for heod lice ireatments was estimoted ot $370
million in 2017, with the US market (where the mojority of
Vamousse's sales ore generated) hisioricolly accounting
for 28% of the global OTC head lice morket. Previously o
significant growth cotegory, 20718 saw this trend reversing,
with the calegory declining around 6% in both volue and
voiume. Not unexpacted given the nalural, biological
fluctuations in the levels of tice infestation.

In the US, the market continues to be dominated by
pesticide-based #ice treatments despite the rise of pesticide-
resistance rendering these products ineffective on o
consistent basis, in contrast to the other countries in which
VYamousse is sold — the UK and France, which ore both
pesticide-free markets.

Key achievements in 2018

Vamousse performed in line with expectations in 2018,

with growth seen in all markets, notwithstanding the
category decline in the US, its largest market. Following

the acquisition of the brand in December 2017, the focus
this year was on trensitioning Vamousse from TyraTech,
transferring the CE mark, integraling operations within
Alliance, including Ihe establishment of a new US office, ond
on investing in marketing ond sales to kickstori growth in
existing markets, We effectively fronsitioned Vemousse inlo
the commercial teom’s portfolio in the UK ond into the sales
tearn’s portfolio in France, where the number of pharmocies
in which Vamousse is ovailable more than doubled.

Focus for 2019

Our focus in 2019 will be on maxirmising distribution ond
growing market share in our existing markets {the US, UK
and France), and continuing 1o evolve the product portiolic,
to keep the brond relevant for the changing OTC market.
We will also be developing o targeted expansion plon
within high opportunity morkets, where we can utilise cur
markeling expertise io build the brand and leverage our
distributor network 1o expand Vomousse globally.

REVENUES

£5.8m

IN 2018 SALES OF
YAMOUSSE GREW

™ 16%

SOLD IN

3 COUNTRIES

GLOBAL
MARKET SIZE

$370m
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i

XONVEA

A prescription medicine for the treatment
of nausea and vomiting of pregnancy (NVP),

where conservative management has failed.

Overview

We in-licensed Xonvew, a prescription medicine for the
treatment of nausea ond vamiting of pregnancy (NVP),
where conservative managemant has failed, from
Duchesnay Inc, Conada for the UK {in 2015), ond for

o number of £ territories (in 2016). Following the
opproval of the UK Merkeling Authorisation for Xonvea
by the Medicines ond Heglthcare products Regulatory
Agency [MHRA} in July 2018, the product was launched
in the UK in Qciober 2018.

Market appraisal

Up to BO% of pregnant women suffer from NVP and
there are approximately 33,000 hospitalisotions each
year in the UK for this condition. Xonvea is the only
licersed treatment for NVP in the UK. The product has
a well-established clinical heritage, having been used
by 33 million women over the past 40 years in Canada
{vnder the brand nome Diclectin} and been approved
by the FDA in the US in 2013 {under the brand name
DICLEGIS).

Key achievements in 2018

We received a positive reception to the founch from

both healthcare professionol and the medio; feedback

to date from NHS payers and budget holders hos been
positive and Xonvea now has its first formulary inclusions.
Our focus from late 2018 was on building aworeness
ond advococy for the brand. We cttended o number of
key scientific congresses, with symposio and speakers,
providing reach to all relevont healthcare professionals
{HCPsj: GPs, Obstefricions, Midwives, Pharmacisis

and Payers.

Focus for 2019

Qur focus in 2019 will be on continuing to build
awareness with HCPs, primarily wilhin the Primary Caore
community, ond on pursuing formulary opprovals within
local heoith economies and positive Heolth Technology
Approisals in Scotland & Waoles. We will continue to
build HCP suppor! and advocacy for Xonvea, with the
aim of getting the product included ond recommended
in key professional guidelines. We are olso planning to
progress the EU regulatory submissions for Xonveo, with
the Republic of irelond expected to be the next territory in
which the product is launched in late 2019

Hotoy nBaong ‘

POTENTIAL ANNUAL COST
OF NVP TO UK NHS OF

£63m
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OUR PEOPLE AND CULTURE

Together we ensure that we all develop to fulfil
our potential. We take pride in what we do, praise
success and reward accordingly.

Culture and values

The ethos of our leadership teom {see poge 24), our mission and vision serve to crecte the culture that
choracierises Allience and which is embodied in our volues:

Performance Reaclism

Our high We set stretching
performing goals ond targets
people we believe are

confinually drive  ochievaobie.

business success.

Accountobility Integrity

We toke We build trust

responsibifity in all our

and deliver whot  relotionships

we promise.
and fairness.

Skitt EO“"@PTIEH:_IJ:Ship
_— ur people thin

We recruit highly of the business os

skilled people

if it wos their own.
and develop their e !

through openness talents to the full,

Working together, we continually drive business success, through:

The recruitment of highly
skilled people

2018 saw further growth in our
territories ond porHolio of products
which required new expertise and
skills to be brought into the business.
tn total over 30 new positions were
created across oll functions globally,
but especially within the commerciat
teams worldwide. Mast significantly,
in the eorly part of the year, we
estoblished our US office ~ a small
team of commercial, marketing,
finance and supply chain experts,
based in North Caralina, to menage
Vomousse, which we acquired in late
2017. The launch of Xonvea in the
UK in the second half of the yeor saw
a new UK sales team structure and

the creation of a new agency scles
force. With the acquisition mid-yeor
of Nizoral in Asia Pacific, we gre

now oclively recruiting in Singapare
and Shanghai o build our locol
capobility across commercial, supply
chain, sourcing, regulalory, qualily
and finance roles in readiness for the
fransition of product into the business
during the second half of 2019,

Refining our skill-set,
knowledge and

entrepreneurial spirit

Alongside the recruitment of external
talent, we encourage ond support
the development of our people’s
skills and knowledge through
interncl ond external short courses

and forma! training programmes.
We had several successes in
achieving professional diplomas/
degrees in the fields of Morketing,
Accountancy, People Managemaent
and Procurement & Supply. We
also tocus on early career tolent
development, starling o second IT
Apprentice, following the success
of our launch of the scheme in
2017, and further gradyote intoke.
We have built new knowledge in
technicol oreas such os IT systems
and computer sysiem vohdotion,
reguiafory chonges to medicol
devices, food supplements and
cosmetics, and legal compliance
and tox changes.
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Working together to

achieve more

We focus not just on ‘what’ we are
doing but ‘how’ we do it. Working
together across the functions 1o meet
the chollenges of today's business
world. The Xonvea product launch in
2018 brought together expertise from
Commercial, Medical & Regulatory,
HR and Finance. This network of
people worked seamlessly with our
externc! network of product launch
experis to deliver a successful launch
and implementation.

{n a year that has seen us eslablish
several new offices across the

globe, our teams of IT and Office
Management experls work with our
local commerciol colleagues, ond
local providers, to source ond set up
the infrastructure needed fo deliver
the business, ofien lo very short
timescales. For exomple, the US office
was established in just six weeks from
incephion to opening.

This is where Allionce people excel;
we believe that by working logether
we will achieve more.

Our people and
the community

Qur people have a strong interest
in supporting the wider community,
laoking for fun but meaningful

ways to moke a difference. Alt aur
employees globally ore given o
volunteer doy each year, ond these
are widely used - as our peaple are
keen to give back time direcily fo
support the charities which mean
the most to them. Qur US teom for
example, proudly gave their time to
help out ot o iocol food bank just
before Christmas, while the charitable
focus in the UK in 2018 was o local
charity supporting the homeless and
those suffering domestic violence,

In edditian to fundraising, our
people personally donated blankets,
rucksacks ond groceries.

Ovur active and healthy workforce

ore frequently shoring their physical
chollenges such as running, walking
or climbing mountains to maintain the
momentum on fundraising activities,
in addition to less physical octivities
such as coke soles, roffles and
sponsored events in the office.

Qur PRAISE awards, which reward
employeaes for on outstanding
demonstration of our values in their
work, olso enable our people to
direct the rewards for exireordinary
ochievemenits in their role, towards to
their favourite charity.

Employee
Location

@ 147 UKB RO

& 16 Asio Pocific

@ 50 Mointand Europe
®5us

iy,

Length of

‘ Service

@ Under 1 yeor @ 6-% yeors
. 1-3 years @ 10+
& 4.5 years

Employee
engagement

B0% Industry
Avarage

2004 2005 2014 2017 2018
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OUR LEADERSHIP TEAM

As aleadership team, our focus is on working together, leveraging the
breadth and depth of expertise that exists both within the team and
across the wider business, to:

REALISE POTENTIAL

THINK CREATIVELY

GROW TOGETHER

>
»
>

Some people see chollenges, they might
even ses solutions.

We sae exciting opportunities for brands
te achieve more,

Our ollignces allow us 1o unlock potential
and moximise the performonce of

every bysiness and every brand As o
teodership 1eam, cur focus s on ensuring
this polential is reclised in the most
elfertive way.

It's not just ‘whot” we do, it's ‘how’ we do
it that makes a difference.

We look ot potential differenHy, which
means that we think and act creatively
about owr business,

We are agile, scalable and odaptoble,
uynconstrained by convantion.

As o leadership leam, we ore constanily
refining our skifl set, knowledge and our
entrepreneurial spirit and we surround
aurselves with like:minded colleagues.

Qur purpose is to achieve more, knowing
that working together brings a better
oulcoma. Wa grow together os people
ond that, in lurn, powers the growth of
our business.

We hove identified o number of foctars
which ore critical fo the effective
implemeniotion of our strotegy, and our
focus in 2019 will be on taking the actions
necessory 1o ensure these are progressed
in furtherance of our vision and mission.
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1. PETER BUTTERFIELD
Chiaf Executive Officer

2. JANICE TIMBERLAKE

Chief Humon Resources Officer

3. STEPHEN KIDNER
Chief Scientific & Operations Officer

Bio avorlable on Boord of Directors poge 40

4. ANDREW FRANKLIN
Chief Financaial Oficer

Jonice is ¢ Fellow of CIPD with over 25
years” experience in HR roles, having
previously held semor roles in My Travel

plc ond Notiono! Envirenment Research
Covncil. Jonice is ¢ Non-executive Director
ond Trustee of Plymouth Marine Loborotary
Lid, where she choirs the Remuneration
Committee. lanice groduated in Geogrophy
frem Hull University, and has been with
Alliance since 2011

5. ALEX DUGGAN

Chisf Commarcial OHicer

Stephen has over 20 years’ sector expearience
in product development ond supply, having
previousty held sanior roles ot Wyeth (now
Phizer) ond Mundipharme Infernational.

He graduated in Chemistry from Swansea
University, bolds an MSc in Pharmaceutics
frorm Manchester Universty ond on MBA
from The Open Uiniversity, Steghen joined
Allionce in 2013.

6. DAN THOMAS
Chief Carporate Development Officer

Bio ovoilable on Board of Direclors page 40

Alex has over 20 years' experience in
pharmo and business management.

He founded his awn consumer healthcare
business in 1996 and won o Qlueen’s Award
for internationel Trade in 2003. He is o
Boord Member of the PAGB ond graduated
in Archoeology from Newcastle University,
Alex joined Allionce in 2014,

Since joimng Alliance in 2006, Don has

fed Alliance's M&A and hcensing achivily,
complefing mare thon 20 deofs. He has
over 20 yeass' international healihcare
experiance, ond has previously worked in
Canado, Germony ond France. in 2011,
Dan won the Pharme Licensing Group
{PLG}/Astro Zeneca BD Executive of the Year
oward and he is currently Vice-Charr of the
Board of the UX #LG. Don groduated in
Applied Biochermstry from Brunel University.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Another year of strong performance, which saw

Group revenues on a see-through basis increase
by 22%, a 19% increase in underlying EBITDA and
continuing good cash generation.

ANDREW FRANKLIN
Chief Financial Officer

The Group delivered o robust
financiof performance in 2018, with
see-through revenues increasing 22%
to £124.0m and statulory revenues
increasing 16% to £118.2m (2017
restoted: £101.6m). The increase
was largely driven by a strong
pertormance from our Infernalionol
Star brands, parlicularly Kelo-cote,
and by the inclusion of post-
acquisition revenues from Nizoral.
Cwveroll underlying profit before
toxation increased by 17% to £28.1m
(2017 restoted: £23.9m).

The Group's revenue was advarsely

impacted by approximately £0.6m

due to the strengthening of Sterling,

primarily ogainst the US Doliar,

during the first half of the yeor.

However, the effect on operoting
profits wos much smaller.

Gross profit increased ot
a slightly higher rate than
revenue, up 23% to £72.6m
(2017 restated: £59.1m),
resulting in 0 0.4% increcse
in gross margin, from 58.2%
ta 58.6% of sea-thraugh
revenue, due o the
increasing contribution
from some of oyr higher
maorgin International
Star brands.

The Group continued
its plonned increase in
soles and marketing
expenditure during

2018, supporting
the sales growth of
our infernational Star

brands, porticulorly

Kelo-cote, and the UK launch of
Xonvea. This, together with the
ronsitional service fees payable to

J&J for the monagement of Nizoral,
partially offset by the release of future
payments in relation to Macuhealth
[see below), resulted in an increase in
operoling costs (excl. depreciotion and
ameortisation of £3.5m but including
the IFRS 2 share options charge

of £1.8m) of £8.3m to £40.3m.
Excluding the IFRS 2 shore oplion
charge of £1.8m, this represents
31.0% of see-through sales (2017
restated: 30.0%). The depreciation and
omortisotion chorge of £3.5m includes
o £1.9m non-cash write down in
respect of the terminotion of the supply
agreement with Macuhealth, for the
guaranteed supply of raw materigls

for MacuShield. The Group has
impiemented allernative arrangements
resulting in no inferryplion to the
supply of MacuShield.

Toking eccount of the ploaned
increase in operating costs,
underlying earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciotion and amorlisation
{EBITDA) increased by 19% to
£32.4m {2017 restated: £27.2m).

Finance costs

Overoll, net finance costs reduced
by £1.0m on the prior year to £0.9m
{2017 restoted: £1.9m), the interes!
payobte, being offset by o reduction
in estimated deferred consideration
poyable in relation fo the Vamousse
acquisition, together with favourable
currency movements (see note 7).

The average interest chorge on gross
debt during the period was 2.92%.
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2017
2018 ({restated"®)
Yeor ended 31 December Em £m
Underdying profit before taxation 281 239
Non-underlying items:
Profit on disposal of Unigreg Jo:nt Venture 1.5
Impairment and write-down of Synthosia
Joint Venture asseis 2.5
Impoirment of onti-molarial intangible osset {4.3)
Exceptional compensation income (from Sinclair) 4.4
Totel {5.3) 4.4
Reported profit before toxation 228 28.3

Unigreg JV disposal

On 18 April 2018 the Group sold

its 60% interest in its non-core
investment in Unigreg Limited 1o

its joint venture pariner, Pacific
Glory Development Limited, for

o consideration of £2.9m. We
received on initial poyment of
£2.4m at completion and a deferred
payment of £0.5m is due on or
before 16 April 2019. in addition, all
outstanding shareholder loons made
by the Group to Unigreg, totalling
£1.5m, were repoid in full prior

to completion.

Synthasia IV asset
impairment and
receivables provision

As previously announced, in Moy
2018 we received notification

from the import licence partner of
Suprememil, the infant mitk fermula
brand in which we have o 20%
interest with cur joint venture pariner
Synthasio, that the import licence
will not be renewed. The Boord has
therefore decided to fully impair the
joint venture investment of £0.3m
and to fully provide for the ossociated
receivobles balances of £2.2m,

This generates o non-cosh, non-
underlying impairment charge and
receivables provision of £2.5m.

* MNon-IFRS alternative performonce measures {see note 34} See-through revenue includes sales from Nizorol os if they hod been invoiced by

Anti-molarial products
impairment

Sales of our anti-malarial products
reduced by £0.6m in 2018 to £0.7m
{2017 restoted: £1.3m] due to
competition in the UK maorket.

As previously announced, in mid-
August 2018, Alliance was notified by
the manufacturer of these products
of its intention o cease supply

due to lower volumes. After due
consideration, the Board concluded
that, due to the cost of the transfer
when compared with the benefit of
continued sales, it is not economic to
transfer the product to an alternative
manufacturer and therefore it is
appropriate to write down in full the
volue of the £4.3m intangible ossel
associoted with these products. This
write-down has been recognised as o
non-cash, non-underlying impoirment
charge in the 2018 accourils.

Allionce acquired the anti-maoterial
products in 2012, since which time
these products have generated o
cumulotive gross profit of £6.3m to
31 December 2018.

2018 Highlights

¢ Good growth in underlying
EBITDA (+19%) and
pre-tax profit {+17%},
notwithstanding planned
increose in operating cosls

* Continued strong cash
generation, with leverage
falling to 2.33 times
including the Nizorol
acquisition

* Finol dividend increased
10% to 0.977p, 1okl
dividend. Covered 3.1x

by underlying earnings

27

Underlying EBITDA*

£32.4m

(2017: £27.2m**)

+19%

Leverage

2,33x

Adijusted net debt to
EBITDA ratic

Alliance. For statutory oteounting purposes the product margin on Nizoral sales 1s included within Revanue, in line with [FRS 15

** 2017 comparatives restated following the odoplion of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 16 Leoses
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FINANCIAL REVIEW conminuep

Taxation

The total tox charge for the period
was £4.4m (2017 restated: £0.5m
tax credit), resulting in an effective tax
rate of 19.5% (2017 restoted: -1.5%].
Excluding non-underlying items,
which generated o tox credit of £1.0m
in 2018 (2017 restated: £0.8m tax
charge}, the underlying tax charge
was £5.5m {2017 restated: £1.3m
lax ¢redit) and the adjusted
underlying tox chorge was £5.5m
(2017 restated: £4.8m), representing
an gdjusted underfying ETR of

19.6% (2017 restated: 19 9%}, For

a definition of adjusted underlying
effective tax rate, please see note 34.

Earnings per share

Adjusled underlying baosic earnings
per shore for 2018 was 4.54p, an
increase of 12% {2017 restated;
4.05p). This measure excludes the
earnings benefit from the substantive
enactment of US ond French tax
reforms in 2017, which resulted

in a reduction in the deferred tox
balances refating to intangible assets
held in these jurisdictions and led

to a significant credit to the 2017

tax charge. Excfuding the impoct of
these one-off tox rate changes gives
a better measure of the underlying
performanice of the Group and is
the measure used by the Board in
assessing earnings performance.
Including these one-off tax benefits,
underlying basic earnings per share
for 2017 [restoted) was 5.33p.

Reported bosic earnings per share
was 3.6%p {2017 restated: 6.08p)

due lo non-underlying items reducing
earnings in 2018 and the Sinclair
settlement income and US and French
tex reform increasing earnings in 2017.

Dividend

The Board remains committed to
a progressive dividend policy ond
is recommending o final dividend
paymant of 0.977p per ordinary
share to give a totol for the yeor
ot 1.464p, which represenis on
increase of 10% on 2017.

The final dividend, subject to epproval
al the Company’s AGM on 23 May

2019, wilt be paid on 11 luly 2019
to shareholders on the register on
14 june 2019.

The level of dividend cover in 2018
remained omple of over three

times on an underlying basis, The
total dividend payment for the

2018 finoncial year will be £7.6m,
including the £2.5m interim payment
(2017: £6.3m).

Balance sheet

intangible assels increased in 2018
by £36.6m to £335.2m (2017
restated: £278.6m}), primerily due
to the Nizaral acquisition {£60.3m)
in june 2018, ond foreign exchange
movements of £2.7n portially offset
by impairments of £6.2m.

Working capital

Growth within the business, coupled
with the plonned increase in inventory
in preparation for the FMD and
Brexit, resulted in an increose in total
inventory at 31 December 2018 of
£4,5m. This increase in jhe scole of
the Group’s aclivities and year-end
inveniory build, in the preporclion for
the FMD and Brexil, also impocted
poyobles, which increosed by £5.1m,
whilst receivables increased by
£5.5m, agoin reflecting the increosed
scofe of activities and the remittance
arrangements which opply for Nizorol
during the transition period.

Cash flow and net debt

Free cosh flow {see note 34 for
definition} for the year remained strong
of £16.1m {2017 restoted: £22.0m)
ahier alfowing for costs associated with
the implementation of the FMD, Brexit
{including inveniory build) and UK
taunch costs for ¥onveo.

Nei debt increased by £13.5m

to £85.8m ot 31 December 2018
(2017: £72.3m), including the £28m of
new borrowing te port-fund the Nizoral
acquisition and reflects the Group's
strong underlying cash generatfion,
tagether with the £3.9m receipt from
the Unigreg dispasal and the final
£1.0m cosh settlement receipt from
Sinclair, in relation to Kelo-stretch,

Consequently, adjusted net debt/
EBITDA leverage felf to 2.33x (2017:
2. 46x], comforlably within our
covenant limit of 3.0x.

in 2019 we expect lo generate strong
free cash flow, in excess of 2017
levels and, in the absence of further
acquisilions, expec! leverage fo
reduce to below 2.0 times during

the second half of 2019.

Treasury and capital
monagement

The Group's operations are finarced
by retained earnings and bonk
borrowings, with additional equity
being roised on o periodic bosis 1o
finance lorger acquisitions.

The Group manaoges its exposure to
currency fluctuations on tronslation by
managing currencies al Group level
using bank accounts denominated in
its primary trading currencies: Sterling,
Eure ond US Dollars.

In June 2018, the Group extended
its Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) by
£35.0m and raised new equity of
£34.0m (gross) to fund the £60m
acquisition of Nizoral.

The Group now has total bonk facilities
of £135.0m which comprise a Term
Loan of £65.0m and an RCF of
£70.0m; borrowings are denominated
in Sterling, Euro ond US Dollars. As

at 31 December 2018, £39.1m {2017:
£50.3m) was outstanding on the Term
Loen and £58.5m [2017. £34.0m)
drawn under the RCF. Unutilised
borrowings s ot 31 December 2018
omounted jo £11.5m.

The Growp's current facility runs
through to December 2020. The Group
plans to extend both the term and size
of its existing credit facility in 2019, 10
aliow it to further develop the business.

A b

Andrew Franklin
Chief Financial Officer

26 Morch 2019
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Ataglobal level, Alliance Pharma plc recognises that it is essential that
‘weactively manage our risks and opportunities.

This means balancing risks and opportunities to not only meet the Group’s
strategic objectives and deliver value to our shareholdersbut todo soin

a sustainable and considered way. We remain focused on our values and
believe that adopting responsible behaviour across our business activities
plays animportant part in achieving our purpose.

Risk manoagement

The Boord, assisted by the Audit

ond Risk Committee, is ultimately
responsible for overseeing
management’s activities in identifying,
evalualing and monaging the risks
tacing the Group. Where these risks
are not ones which the Board is
prepared to toke, these ore avoided,
eliminated as far as possible and/or
tronsferred to insurers.

The Group's process for the
identification, ossessment ond
management of risks in the business,
is driven and monitored by the Senior
Leadership Teom with the support of
the Company Secretory.

There are risk registers in ploce ot o
departmental and functional fevel.
Risks are identified ond assessed by
the likelihood of them occurring and
their potential impact on the business.
These are then calegorised to identify
those that can be effectively monoged
at a functional or deparimental level
and those that need to be oddressed
ot a cross-funchional business level
with oll risk rmanagement being
ca-ordinated by Senior Leadership
Teamn with the support of the
Company Secretary,

Existing mitigations ore considered
for each risk and the residual levels’
of exposure ossessed. Each risk is
cllocated a business owner, who is
responsible for implementing the
miligofing actions and reporting on
progress with those improvements
and the status of those risks to the
Senior Leadership Team. The Sericr
Leadership Team reviews all risks on
a quarterly basis, with the principol
risks being monitored monthly and,
in the cose of the principal risks and
uncertointies, such risks are reported
to ond reviewed by the Audit and Risk
Commitiee as well as the Board.

internal systems of control

The Group maintains systems of
internal control appropriate to o
business of this size and complexity
and which toke into account

the applicoble requirements of
pharmaceutical regulolors in the
vorious morkets in which the business
operates and the regulatory and legal
requirements os a UK AIM listed plc.
The internal controls are designed

to monage rother than eliminate

risk and provide reasonoble but sot
obsolule ossuronce agoinst moterial
misstatement or loss.

The key compaonaents of the current
system of internal conlrol are:

+ Setting and communicaling clear
strategic goals;

* Developing business plans ond
budgets in line with strategy,
supported by intra-yeor forecasting;

* Regular reporting of actual
performance relotive to those
stralegic goals, plans, budgets
and forecosts;

« Working within a defined set of
delegated authorilies approved by
the Board to the CEQ, and through
him, to the Senicr Leadership
Teom and their delegoles through
outhorisation registers monaged
ot a deparimentol and functional
level;

= Crealing on appropriate structure
of responsibility and accountability,
including segregotion of duties,
oppropricte reporting lines for
key manogers and regular line
management communications and
1:1 meetings where performance
is discussed, supported by an
oppraisal proces;

29
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS conminuep

Internal systems of control
continued

= Defining the Group values and ©
code of ethics for all employees;

* Developing clear policies and
procedures for all areas of the
business which loke inte account
all aspects of legol, reguintory
and ethical responsibility;

+ Training ond monitoring
employees’ understanding of
the externa! regulatary codes
which ore applicable o the
Group’s business, os wel! os the
Group's internol policies and
procedures; and

* Moanagement monitoring of
complionce with the external
regulotory codes which are

applicable 1o the Group business,
os well as the Group's indernal
policies and procedures, and
responding oppropriately to

ony breaches.

The Audit and Risk Committee reviews
the systems of internal control for the
Group alongside the Group's process
for risk management and reports its
findings o the Board.

To strengthen ond further enhonce
the Group's systems of internal
conirol, we expect to have successfully
implemented the Microsoft Dynomics
AX Enterprise Resource Planning

(ERP) system in H2 2019, which will
support systems of contrat refoting

to the Group's sourcing, distribution,
sales and occounting processes

as well as providing significontly

enhanced manogement information
ond on enhonced internol coniral
environment, The hase system
ensufes we retain the strang control
environmaent inherant in this market-
leading product ond provides the
business with an opportunity to review
processes and reporting practices
throughout the Group ond provide
consistency ocross those processes
ond proclices.

Each year, the Audit and Risk
Commitiee and the Boord seporotely
consider the need for an internal
audit function. Given the current

size of the Group, the Audit and Risk
Committee ond the Board do not
judge it appropriale to maintain a
dedicated inferncl audit funchon,
This position is kept under review.

Ouvur approach to risk

IDENTIFY

The existence of &
risk is identified from
either @ 'bottom-up’
process involving line
management or a
‘top-down’ review by
the Senior Lecdership
Tearn. These are
reported to, ond
reviewed by, the Audit
and Risk Committee
and the Boord on a
regular basis.

ASSESS

The likelihood and
impact of 2ach risk is
ussessed to colculote
the potential level

of exposure on the
business.

MITIGATE

Actions being token,
or that should be
taken, 1o help mitigate
and reduce the
potentiol exposure to
the risks are regulorly
reviewed lo ensure
the oppropriole
individual ‘owns’ the
risk and the actions
being taken rermain
effective.

REVIEW

Risk registers are
regularly reviewed

to copture and
identify new risks and
identify opportunifies
to improve the
mitigating octions.

REPORT

The Senior Leadership
Team reviews all
idantified risks, and
assigned actions
around those risks,
on a quarterly bosis,
with the principal
risks being monitored
on a menthly and,

in the case of the
principal risks and
vncertainties; such
risks are reporled

to ond reviewed by
the Audil and Risk
Committee as well

as the Board.
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OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

As we continue to grow as abusiness, the risks
we face continue to be carefully managed.

The Boord hos assessed whot it
believes are the principal risks ond
uncertainties facing the Group,
being those that could threaten our
business model, reputation, future
performance, solvency or fiquidity
of the business, and these have
been linked to the key elements of
our strategy os described on poges
14 and 15.

The risks hove been ussessed on
a residual basis according to our
current view of their potential severity
{being the combination of impact end

probobility}, assuming thot existing
internal cantrols and strategies for
mitigation are and remain effective.

The lable below/overleaf is not on
exhaustive list of ol risks the Group
faces but are the principo! risks and
uncertainties, which the Directors
believe include all knoewn matericl
risks in relation io the Group and the
markets and industry within which we
operote. The environment in which we
operote is constantly evolving ond can
be offected by events externalifias that
are outside of our controt and which

moy impact on us operotionally.
Mew risks may orise, the potential
impacl of known risks may increase
or decrease, and/or our assessment
of these risks moy need to change.

We hove explained how each risk is
being managed or mitigoted. Our
approach to risk monagement has
been exploined on pages 29 and 30.

Market competition - the products we buy/sell are subject to the market forces of supply and demand

ond new competition

Link to strotegy
Moximising
and extending

brand polential

) may be reduced.
Internotionai

‘exponsion

Risk description ond impact

Our ingbility io genarate profits from soles, or to convert
those profits into cash Aow rasult in insufficient cosh 1o

The products we sell ore subject to normal market ~  The Group constanily monitors
forces, so demand may foll, our praducts moy foce new
or increased competition or the price we con achieve

Management ond mitigation Trend
that marketing campaigns deliver < >
1o support the siralegy. This risk has
- We continue 10 monitar and not changed
regulorly forecos) sales, costs, “’_‘“'e““""
profits ond cosh fows. since last
year.

reinvest into the business, or to service our debt or equity

copital. Any inability ko generate cash would impect on
our kiquidity and could lead to non-complionce with the
covenants 1o which our debt facilities ore subject or our
ability to mointain dwidend poyments.

Competition comes from several difereat sources
The Group has 1o ensure it hos odequate resources to
respond io ony increased compelition which includes
new enlrants into UK or overseas morkets.

These risks hove the potantiol to compromise our
future perfarmance and, :n an extreme scenano,
cash generalion.

We have o madel for debt covenant
complionce and where necessory,
mitigoting octions could be taken
o ensure we remain within our debt
covenonis and are able lo mee!
scheduled payments and therefore
our liabilities

3N
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OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES conminuep

Continued expansion and growth of the business - new markets become less attractive
und potential acquisitions larger in size

Link to strategy Risk description and Impact Management ond mitigation Trend

Maoximising ond There can be no guorantee that the Group will be able - Pipeline - We monitor the morket (

exatending brond to identify suitable torgets to continue its expansion. for atiractive acquisilions to develop

potentiaf The morket for high quality products {whelther bedrock a pipeline of opportunities that This risk hos
. or growlh) is highly compelitive and Ihe Group may find we could polentially bring into our not chonged

Internationgk i L . 9

expansion itsell unable lo compete in such a market il the priciag portielio of products thereby ensuring  meteriolly

of such torgets proves prohibitive. that we remain compatitive in the since bast

industry. Our dedicated Corporate yeor
Davelopmenl Teom has many

years' experience in identifying and
completing tronsoctions, os well as

o wide network of contacts in bolh

medivm and big phorma.

As the Group looks to incresse the size of ils targets,

the complexity around acquisiion ond integrotion of

such targets also increases. The linonciol impoct of such

potentiol risks (unidentified risks during due diligence,

externo! advisers, additionol stolf eic) could impact

on the profitability of such torgets ond the Group

as o whole. - lIntegrotion — conbnue 1o ensure that
we (ntegrate ocquisilions into the
business in on eHeciive, and elficient
manner, with an experianced due
diligence and integrotion feam within
the various functions.

- Business development skills and
experlise have been bolstered by
new m-house legal counsel with
many years’ experience in M&A
transactions

Supply chain, sourcing and logistics - potentiol constrainis on our ability 10 supply and deliver
products to our customers

Link to strategy Risk description and impuact Mandggement and mitigotion Trend
Moximising and Monufocturing, sourcing or distribution issues, including ~ We have developed forecosting <
extending brand on inability 10 Increase produchon volumes to meet systems thot ollow us to work with our >
potential demond, impinges on our polenhicl sales. These contracted monufocturers to ensure  This risk hos
risks hove the potentiol to compromise aur future production volumes meet our ability . ot changed
performance and, in an exireme scenarnio, to supply products. materially
cosh generation. - Where necessary and oppropngle, we  SI0<E lost
The products we sell could risk Tosing fhair regulotory ansure that the invesiment in capacity T8¢
approval in the relevant territory or could become or sourcing of companents from
subject to public procurament processes resulting in within our supply chain is increased.

constroints on either our obrity to supply or the

prices that cdn be achieved - Generdlly, we ensure sufficient
1 1BV .

stock is held in the supply chain for
muost producls. This is bolstered by
the dual sourcng of our brands
wherg it is deemed appropriote.

- The diversication through selling
o wide ronge of products, mony
of which do nat require regulalory
approval, or are not subject 16 public
procurament processes.

~  Qur experienced technical and
regutatory stoft build and mainiamn
their knowledge of the public-sector
procurgment process.

~  Whare possible, ond cost effective,
the potentiot financial impoct of
supply chain disruption is mitigared
by insurance.
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Product regulation - our products are subject to UK and overseas regulatory requirements

Link fo strategy
Maximising and
extending brond
polential

Risk description and impact

Some of our products may nol gain regulatory opproval

or could face risk of having their regulotory stotus
chollenged or adversely oltered. This could offect the
Group's obility 4o lounch ony new producls, maintain

Management ond mitigation Trend

The business allocates sigmhicant

ond experienced resources fo < >
supporting the regulotory approval This risk has
of praducts, including ony exlensions ot changed

sales of ity current products in current urisdiclions or la other markets. materially
'expund geogrophn:nﬂy. These risks have the Porennc! The business engoges in regutar since Jas
o compromise our future performonce and, inan discussions with locol regulatory year.
extreme scenario, cash generotion. advisers (internal ond exlernol} fo
menitor any products that moy be
subject 1o challenge.
Attraction and retention of key employees - losing good peaple to competitors or failing to
recruit qualified people
Link to strategy Risk description and impact Management and mitigation Trend

investing in people

Competitors moy iry to recruit some of our key
employees. The business recruits ond is depeadent on
certgin key execulive employees. Whilst the business
hos entered inlo employment arrangements with the

view of securing their service, we cannol guorantee their

retention which meons we rua the risk ol losing good

people, and with i their knowledge, skills and expertise.

Working ot on interngtional level meons we must be oble
1o access good qualified people ta support the business

both from the UK ond in our overseas territories.
Changes in politicol londecapes, ond local sules and

regulations can hove on impoct on our abdity to recruit

foreign notionals

The loss of those employees could weaken the Group’s
monagement capabilities, impociing on our doy-to-doy

operalions.

The Group is committed to putting in
place incentive and reword struciures < >

that are regularly reviewed to ensure  This risk has
we remoin a compeliive employer. not chonged

We ensure thot roles ond malericlly
responsibilities are clearly defined ond 598 lorst
yeor.

are supported by documented systerns
and procedures 10 provide o level of
continuity in the evenl an employee
maves on in their career

We work with internationel and locoi
country agencies to ensurg we find
and recruit good quolity employees.
Working with existing foreign notionals
based in the UK 16 suppor! their
employment in the Group, as the
political londscope changes.

Induction and training lor new
employees - the Group hos o
structured ond wide-ranging induction
pracess for new joiners 1o ensure

that they understand the Group, its
business and how important the role
they will play 13 within the Group. This
hos helped nuriure o positive leam
and work ethic within the Group.
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OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS

AND UNCERTAINTIES conminuep

Group-wide financial, legal and regulatory comgliance — failing to meet legal or reguiatery complionce

Link 1o strategy

Maximising ond
extending brand
potential

Risk description and impact

As we enler new lerritories and overseas markets, the
risks we are exposed 10 in those oversecs ferritories
and markets means we could be subject to matters
such as bribery, onli-slavery ond corruplion.

The Group operaies in a highly reguloied sector ond in
markets ond geographies around the world each with
differing requirements. As o result, and in the normal
course of business, the Group con be subject to several
regulalory inspections/investigolions on an ongoing
basis. It is therefore possible that the Group may incur
penglties for non-complionce and pofentially impoc!
on the sales of cur products ond couse damage to our
bronds and our reputation.

In addition, severa! the Group’s brands and producls
ore subject to pricing controls ond other forms of fegal
or regulatory restrictions from bath governmental/
regulatory badies and also from third porties.

The Group has ongoing regulatory requirements
{pharmacovigilonce ete) which could, +f not odhered
ta, lead to subskantial fines and impoct on the Group's
ability to sell certain producis.

As the Group exponds its operahons, the VAT and
general tax environment in which it operotes becomes
more complex and the risk fo incorrectly report and
poy relevant taxes increases.

Management and mitigation

The business carries oul careful
ossessments with its legol, commercial
ond operational teams, lo determine
whether lo recogrise o provision

in respect of these maters. These
judgements are often complex and
rely on estimales and ossumptions

os to luture events

In-house Compony Secretorial
funclion hos been bolstered in order
lo increase the internal managemant
of corporate compliance.

The Group has engoged externcl
VAT consultonts fo implement control
impravements using current systems.
This will be further support by the
introduction of the new ERP system
which will assist with supply choin
management and VAT reporiing

Third party experts ore engoged

in our pverseas ternfories to help
us comply with focal rules and
regulofions and &nsure that our
operofions are monitored against
them We request training and
support from service praviders (UK
and ¢verseas| lo widen inlernal
knowledge for our employees for
legot ond regulotory issues.

Induction and training for new
employees — the Group hos o
structured and wide-ranging induction
process for new joiners to ensure
that they understand their individual,
and the Group’s, obhgolions in
relation fo such malters as adverse
event reporling. Furthermore, the
Group hos o progromme of periodic
tegining around legel ond regutatory
complionce.

Trend

<>

This risk has
not chenged
materiofly
since last
yeor.
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Foreign exchonge risk - velatility in reported profits

Link to strotegy

Internotionof
expansion

Risk description ond impact

The Group now earns o proportion of its profits in
currencies olher than sterling, but accounts for the
buséness in sterling. The reporting of profits sarned
cutside the UK moy therelore become more volatile

Maonagement and mhiigation

The Group is funded by
combination of sterling- dollor-
ond euro-denominaled debt, which
provides o noturol hedge to same

Trend

<>

This risk hos
not changed

In an exireme scanorio, were exchange controls of these exposures. In addiion, materially
impesed it may become difficult or even impossible we can use financial instruments since last
1o repatriute cash earned in some markels, such os forward centracts, to help yeor.
The risk is primarily to reported profits rother than manage fhese risks.
cash, but in an extreme scenaric could compromise
vur cosh generation and liquidity position.

Product liability - defective products elc

Link to straotegy Risk description and impaoct Management and mitigation Trend

Mazximising ond
extending brond
potenhal

The Group produces and sells & wide range of
medicines, medical devices, lood supplements and
cosmetics. There gre inherent risks thot some of these
praducts could couse odverse reactions exposing the
Group to the risk that [i) the produc! must be withdrawn
fram sole ond {ii) tho! we moy have legal habilily 1o
those injured by that product

These risks hove the polential ta damage our reputation
and compromise our future performonce ond, inan
exlreme scenono, liquidity position or even solvency.

Dedicoted in-house Quality
funclion, suppher gudits.

The Group’s products are well
tolerated, and many have been
in existence for decades.

All products have regulatory approval
in the morkets we trade in.

We also carry public and products
lighility insurance to provide an
appropriate level of prolection for
the Company

<>

This risk hos
not changed
materifly
since last
year

Information security and data protection

Link to strategy
Maximising ond
extending brond
pateniiol

Risk description and impact

‘We hold significont amounts of cenhdeatiol dolo on our
customers ond employees. Some of thal dala is being
colacted vio our transaclion processes, which includes
fingncigl information ond other personol data. A foifure
to obide by deto proteclion rules or incur a breach of
data security coyld post a finencial end repuigtional
risk to the Group,

We co-ordinate 6 complex supply chain with many
contract manufaciurers, logislics intermediaries and
distributors, ail of which rely on the availability of our

IT syslems. In addition, we sel! some products directly
through our websile and therefore hold some customer
data, the loss of which (whether accidentol or malicious)
would touse disryption and cost to the Group.

As the Group now supplies o wider ronge of products
and hos become more geographically diverse, il 1s
more relionl on its IT systems, so this rsk is intreasing.

Thesae risks are likely to be short-term in nature, but
could affect our performance ond, potentiolly, cosh
generation. There would also be o reputational

impact if we suffered o major loss of personol dato.

Management and mitigation

The Group hos o ronge of measures
in ploce to monitor and mitigate this
risk including anti-virys software,
firewolls and network segmeniation
thot are reguiorly updated; regulor
introduchion of more up to dote
softwore olso provides additionol
in-built security; and incident
manogement, business continuily
management ond IT disosier recovery
plans are in ploce.

Appropriate physical ond cyber
security measures are in ploce 1o
prevent unavthorised access to
information.

We provide raining and alertt to stolf
mambers to ensure that they are fully
awaore of lechnicol dota protocols.

Third porties ore engoged to
review and recommend ongoing
improvemants to enhance IT
security and resilience.

The Group hos audded and
impiemenied necessary changes io
ensure compliance with GDPR.

Trend

AV

This nisk has
decreased
since lost

year due 1o
nplamentaiion
of GDPR
complance
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QOUR PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES continuep

Business systems — ERP ond other systems

Link to strategy  Risk description and impact Management ond mitigation Trend
Integrating acquired There is always o risk fo our business systems - The Group confinues to inves in
products and that meons we could lose funclionality, end up its systems generally and hos alse < >
componies with corrupted files or suffer errors in our master introduced on IT Steering Group te This risk has
Morimising and dote systems. provide oversight of core systems not changed
extending brond Once implemented there is a risk that the ERP systern ocrass the bus.mess and lead c;" malerially
potentiol may foil to work os intended or deliver the expected chonges required as o resull of systems  since lost
| . benefits. In addition, white this is expected to imprave development or regulatory chonges.  year.
nternational . ) . .
expansion the internal conirol environment, the Iransition from, ond -  We hoave selected an ERP system with o

eventual removal of, legacy [T systems creates conlinuity good tock record ond on experienced

risks. In addition, the design and implemeniation of company 1o support Allionce in the

new operaling prociices and culture needed to bring implementotion through o structured

the ERP system inlo full effect creates further risk 10 the process, developed o corefully-

Group's business. considered projec! plon, hired

experienced project manogers and
released stoll from their normal roles
1o focus on the projec.

These risks hove the polential to campromise our
future parformence and, in an extreme scenane,
cash generalion
- The project continues to have the
support of the Board and the Audit
and Risk Committee ond is regularly
reviewed by lhe Senior Leadership
Team and reported on ot Board fevel.

- Wa conlinue ta work lowards
successful implementation of the ERP
system alongside stringent testing
befare retiring the legocy systems.

Business continuity — the ability to continue operating in the event of extrame events

Link 1o strategy Risk description and impact Manogement and mitigation Trend
Sustained growth A3 with many businesses, we are ot risk of problems - The Group, through s experienced i7
offecting aur ability lo continue operations becouse team, has implemented ond cantinues < >
of extreme events. This could be on event that atfects to menilor the suitabilily ol disoster This risk hos
our peaple, aperational sites, offices or equipment recovery plans 1o ensure an abilily nol changed
ond systems, which would prevent our business from to conlinue with its operations in the  mpterially
funcliening as normgl. evenl of o disruption to ony of its since lost
operaling focilities or systems. year.

~  Wa yse third parties to support ond
review resilience of our opercling
platiorms and recommendalions are
implemented as appropriate.
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Political uncertainty - 8rexit

Link to strategy
Susteined growth

Risk description and impact

The business, #s maaogement and employees ore ol!
awore of the petental risks ond vncertainties created
os a result of the UK’s vole to leave the EU (Brexif). The
potential impact of Brexit affects aspecis ocross our
business, including product regulation, obility to trade
cross-border, ability to continue 1o supply under existing
terms, and our obility 10 recruil foreign nationals to
work with us in the UK.

Management and mitigation Frend

The business continyes fo monitor
the devalopments affecting our

industry and morkets and we This risk hos
contemplate "whot.if' strategies aat changed
where we have been alerted to materially
polentiol changes lhal could occur. gince last

The Group hos established on year

internal Brexil Stralegy Group to
actively manage this uncertainy.
Only a limited amount of our
business is reliont on the movement
of goods between the UK and EU,
however to miligate potential risk,
we have implemented our Brexit
strategy, which includes: building
additionol inventory in order fo
maintein sulficiant supply of key
products; estoblishing o subsidiary
company in the Republic of lreland
to host certain registrations; and
duplicating key stohutory roles in the
UK ond EU albeil on o hmited basis.

7
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DAVID COOK

Independent Non-
executive Choirman

PETER BUTTERFIELD
Chief Executive Officer

ANDREW FRANKLIN
Chief Financial Officer

Date joined

David joined the Boord of
Alliance as o Non-executive
Director in 2014 and was
appainted Chairman of the
Board an ) Morch 2018.

Pater wos previously the
Cempany’s Deputy Chief
Executive Officer and wos
appointed {o his present office os
Chiel Executive Officer on | Moy
2018 having {oined Alliance in
2010 os on Executive Director.

Andrew joined Alliance in
Septernber 2015 from Ponosenic
Europe Lid, where he wos
General Manager, Evropeon
Tox and Accounting

Qualifications David quolified as o Peler holds an honours degree Andrew holds on honours degree
chortered occountont with in Pharmocology from the in Civil Engineering from the
Pricewaterhouse{Coopers after University of Edinburgh. University of Wales, Cordiff.
graduating in chemistry ot the
University of Oxford.

Experience He is currently Chief Financiol He served eight years os a Board  Fram 2010 to 2017 Andrew

Oftficer and an Execulive
Director of Ellipses Phormo,
an internatienal cancer drug
develapment company, ond
was previeusly Chief Financial
Dfficer and Chief Business
Officer of Bioktie Therapies Corp,
a drug development company
quated in Helsinki and en
NASDAQ. He has previously
held semior financial positiens
with Jozz Pharmaceuticols
Internotional, EUSA Pharmo
ond Zeneys Phormo.

David has extensive experience
of financial ond generol business
management {including the
implementation of buy and

build strategies) in the lite
sciences sectar, of financing
thase businesses and monaging
invesior relations seross a

number of stack marke!s globally.

Member of the Assaciation of the
British Pharmoceutical Industey
and wos on integral port of the
2014 PPRS negotiation team
with the UK Government. Petar
joined the boord of Allionce

in 2010 with the acquisition of
Cambsridge Laborotaries wherse
he spent five years, latterly os
UK Commerciol Director. Prior to
joining Combridge Lobaoratories,
Peter spent six years ol
GloxoSmithKline in o variety of
marketing ond sales roles.

Peier hos over 20 years’
experience in the life sciences
sector and strong leadership
experience gained in o varisty
of contexts.

was Finance Director and
Company Secretary of Genzyme
Theropeutics Ltd, the UK &
Ireland subsidiary of Genzyme
Corporation. Prior 1o thot, he
goined 12 years’ shormaceuticol
experiance with Wyeth in o variety
of seniar finonciol positions,

Andrew is 0 Felfow of the Institute
of Chortered Accountants

in England ond Woles with
extensiva experience of financial
monogemant of infernational
businesses, including significant
prior experience in lle science
companies.

Committee Membership
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Committee Membership key

Bl Audit ond Risk Commitee [l Remuneration Committee

. Nominotion Commitiee

JOHN DAWSON
MNon-executive Director

= Cammittes Choir

NIGEL CLIFFORD
fndependent Non-
executive Director

RICHARD JONES

Independent Non-
executive Director

JO LECOUILLIARD
Independent Non-
executive Director

John founded Alliance in 1994,
iohn stepped down o3 Chief
Exacutive on 1 Moy 2018 bt
remains o Non-execulive Director
an the Boord.

Nige! joined the Boord of
Allicnce os a Non-executive
Pirector in 2015,

Richard jeined Alliance os o
Neon-execulive Director on
1 lanuary 2019,

Jo oined Alliance as a
MNon-executive Director on
1 Joruary 2019.

dohn has o BSc [Phormocy)
ond an M$c (Finange) from the
London Business School.

Nigel groduated in Geogrophy
frormn the University of Combridge
and hos an MBA from Strathclyde
University.

Richard has o degree in
Engineering [rom Newcastle
University ond is 0 Chartered
Accountont.

Jo graduated in Notural Sciences
from Cambridge Unwersdy and
is o Chartered Accountant.

He has gained multi-disciplinary
experiencs in the pharmaceuticol
industry over forty years,
including vorious senior roles

at Sandoz {now Novartis AG})

as Director of Finonce ond
Administration and Deputy
Monaging Director.

John's long experience in
building Atliance from o start-up
to o well-managed ond fast-
growing infernational gherma
company ovar 20 years now
provides the Board with excallent
conlext and continuity

He wos oppointed Deputy

Chair at the UK gevernment’s
new Geospatial Commission

in Decembar 2018 and is an
Operating Partner with Marlin
Operations Graup. Praviously, he
held Chief Executive and senior
positions at Ordnonce Survey,
Procserve Holdings, Micro Focus
Internotionol ple, Nokia, Symbian
Software, Tertio Telecoms, Coble
ond Wireless ple, Glasgow Royal
Infirmary NHS Trust and BT

plc. He also served o3 o non-
execwlive direcior of Anite plc.

He brings significont experience
of the strotegiz and commercial
maonagement of complex global
hysinesses, goined in o voriety
of indusiry sectors and under o
variely of ownership structures.

Since the stort of 2017 he has
been CFO ond o Board member
of Mereo BioPharma Group

PLC, a UK listed biopharma
company develaging o rongs of
products in bone, endocrine and
respiratary therapies with o fotus
en rare disecses.

Richard jpined Mereo from UK
AlM listed Shield Therapeutics
plc where he was Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary
from early 201} having initioily
joined the Board as o Non-
executive Director in 2010,

At Shield he hot! o teoding

role astoblishing the finance
operafions und guiding Shield
through its 2018 PO,

Prior to this, Richard had o career
in investment bonking, holding
senior postions ot Investec and
Brewin Dolphin Securities, where
he odvised healthcare clients

on a wide range of transactions
and lundraisings including 1POs,
MEA and fundraisings.

lo LeCouilliard has 25 yeors’
heatthcare manggement
experience goined in Europe, the
US and Asia. Much of her career
hos been in pharmacevticals

at GloxebmithKline where,
amongst other roles, she headed
the US vaccines business and
Aso Pacific Pharmaceuticals
business and led o pragram

to modarnise the commercial
model. She wos previously Chief
Operaling Officer ot the BMm|
group of private hospitols in

the LK. She wos Non-executive
Director ot Frimley Park NHS
Foundation Trust in the UK and
at the Duke NUS Medicel Schoo!
in Singapore.

She is currently o Non-
executive Director af the UK
listed companies Circossio
Phormaceuticals ple, Cello
Health plc and has recently
joined the Board of Recordti
Spa.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In my first year as Chairman, it gives me great pleasure to introduce
the corporate governance sections of this Annual Report.

Chairman’s introduction
to Governunce ot Alliance
Pharmo plc

As we move into 2019, governance
continues to play an important port in
the running and development of the
business. As your Board, we continue
to recagnise that good governonce can
contribute to our ability as a business to
create shareholder value.

Alongside this, whiist we are nol
required to opply i, we monitor
developments in the UK Corporate
Governance Code, opplicable to listed
companies traded on the main morket,
to keep abreast of matters which we
feel should olso be considered as best
practice for an AIM compony such

os Alliance.

Qur governance framework pramotes
a culture of accountability and
respansibility by achively manoging

the sisks that we face, supported by

our values and behaviours. A good
governance framework can provide
solid foundations from which to support
leadership, accountability, transparency
ond disclosure. Strong systems ond
processes for informed decision-
making ensure that the Board and its
Cornmittees are provided with cleor
agendas, timely information that is
delivered through good quolity briefing
moterials; and, which cover all relevant
factors and that our deliberations
consider the risks, as well as the
opporiunilies, inherant in the topic
before us,

2018 hos seen significant changes
on the Board of Allionce Pharma
and, with the support of the
Nomination Cormmitiee, the Board
hos been actlively reviewing Board
and Commitiee composition and
membership.

Having o Board thot consists of
Directors drown from o renge of
bockgrounds, skills and experience
ensures that we ore able fo continue
to take decisions in the interests of oll
stakeholders, with good governance
ploying a vital part in helping support
the Company’s growth strategy and
in turn its long-term success.

Thomas Cosdagli stepped down os

a Non-executive Director on 30 May
2018 ofter nine contributory years with
Allionce having helped see the business
through transfarmational perieds.
During the yeor, the Board, supported
ond guided by the Nomination
Committee, undericok a careful search
and recruitment process and we were
delighted to announce on 17 December
2018 the Non-executive appointments
of Jo LeCouilliard ond Richard Jones
{effective from 1 January 2019), for
whom full biegraphical details con be
found on page 40.

Like many businesses in the UK, we
have been navigoling the varied
political ond economic uncerfainties
which are currently being faced. We
conlinue to focus on our systems of risk
management ond infernal controls,
including the continued imptementation
of our new Enterprise Rasource
Planning systems. Detoils of our
principal risks and uncertainties con

be found on pages 31 to 37.

The remainder of this section

provides an updote of our Corporote
Governonce, the Remuneration Report
and the Directors’ Report. In these
reporis we set out our governance
structures ond, olong with an overview
of how the Company complies with
the Principies of the Code which can
be found on our wabsite ot: http://
investors.allioncepharmoceuticals.
com/governance, explain how we
have opplied the Code during the year
under review.

Thank you for your continued support
and the Board looks forward to
meeting ony shareholder who can join
us ot cur Annuol General Meeting on
23 Moy 2019

Tz (¢

David Cook
Chairman

26 March 2019
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Statement of Compliance
with the QCA Corporate
Governance Code

following the London Stock
Exchange's recent changes 1o the
AlM Rules requiring all AIM listed
compaenies to adopt ond comply with
a recognised corporate governance
code, the Bocrd has adopted the
Quoted Companies Alliance (QCA}
Corporote Governonce Code {the
‘QCA Cade’). As an AiM quoted
company, Allionce Phormo pic hos
chosen 1o follow the QCA’s Corporate
Governonce Code for small and mid-
size quoted componies 2018 {'the
Code’). The Boord believes that this
Code provides on oppropriote and
suitable governance framework for

a group of our size and complexity.

A general overview of how the
Company complies with the Principles
of the Code can be found on our
website and on pages 48 1o 51 of
this Annual Report.

Board and Committee
balance, composition

The Boord currently comprises seven
Directors, being the Chairman, two
Executive Directors and five {including
the Chairrnan] Non-executive Directors.
The Boord keeps under review its
current composition, which provides
o sufficiently wide ronge of skills and
experience to enable it o pursue

its sirategic gools and to oddress
onticipated issues in the foreseeable
future. Iis deliberations are not
dominated by one person or a group
of people.

Having considered the guidelines

on independence, on oppointment

as Chairman, Dovid Cook was
independent and continues fo be
regorded by the Board os independent
clongside Nige! Clifford, Richard
Jonas and Jo LeCouilliard. The

Board is comforioble with the current
composition of the Boord. However,

it will continue, with the advice of the
Nomination Commities, to consider
any oppropriate additians to the Boord
to further broaden the experience

and effectiveness of the Board as the
Group continues to grow. As part of this
process the Board has also considered
and concluded that the appointment

af o Senior Independent Diractor is not
necessary al this time, but keeps this
under review.

Board support

The Cormpany Secretary plays a vital
role in ensuring good governonce,
assisting the Choirman. On behalf

of the Chairmon, Chris Chrysanthou
is responsible for ensuring thot all
Board and Committee meetings are
conducted properly, that the Directors
are properly briefed on any item

of business to be discussed and for
ansuring that governance requirements
are considered ond implemented and
for occurately recording each meeting.

Procedures ore in place for
distributing meeting ogendas and
reparts so that they ore received

in good fime, with the appropriate
infermation. Ahead of each Board
meeting, the Direclors each receive
reports which include updates

on finance, including monthly
manogement accounts, operations,
commercial activities, business
development, risk manogement,
legal ond regulotory, HR and on
investor relations.

The Directors may hove access to
independent professional advice, where
needed, at the Group's expense.

Leadership: Roles and
Responslibilities

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible to the
Company's sharehalders for:

* Setting the Group's strategy;

+ Mainlaining the policy and
decision-making process through
which the strategy is implemented;

* Checking thot necessary financial
and human resources are in place
to meet strategic aims;

« Providing entrepreneurial
leadership within o fromework
of good governance and sound
risk management;

* Monitoring performance against
key financiol and non-finoncicl
indicators,

* QOverseeing the systems of risk
management and inlerno! conlrol;
ond

* Setting volues and standards in
corporate governonce maotters.

There is o formal list of matters
reserved for the Boord, which may
only be amended by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conmnuep

Leadership: Roles and
Responsibilities continued
Directors’ conflict of interest
The Compony hos effective
procedures in place to monitor and
deal with conflicts of interest. The
Board is fully aware of the other
commitments ond interasts of its
Direciors, and changes to these
commitments ond inferests ore
reparted to and, where oppropriate,
agreed with the resl of the Boord.

Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer {CEQ)

The respective responsibilities of
the Chairman ond CEQO ore very
cleorly understood. The Chairman
is responsible for leading the Board,
facilitating the effective cantribution
of all members and ensuring that it
operates effectively in the interests
of the shareholders. The CEQ is
responsible for the leadership of
the business and implementation
of the strategy.

Non-executive Directors

The role of our Non-executive Directors
is to:

= Challenge constructively and help
develop proposals on sirotegy;

* Satisty themselves as to the
integrity of the financia! reporting
systems and the information
thay provide;

* Solisty themselves as to the
robustness of the internal controls;

= Ensure thol the systems of risk
manogement are robust and
defensible; and

» Review corporote performance and
the reporting of such performance
to shareholders.

Each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors sits on ot

least two of the Audit and Risk,
Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiees. This ensures that

the Independent Non-executive
Direclors between them have a role
in determining the poy and benefits
of the Executive Directors and o
ploy o key role in planning Board
succession including the appointment
ond, if necessary, removal of
Executive Directors. Detoils of
Commitlee membership can be
found on poges 45 lo 47.

Three Independent Non-executive
Directors, oll of whom have an
accountancy quclification, sit on the
Audit ond Risk Committee, enobling
them to review internal control and
fingnciol reporting matters ot first
hond, ond have o direct relationship
with the external auditors.

Board and Committee
meetings and attendance

The Board ond its Committees meet
regulorly on scheduled dates. This
includes o twa-doy strategy meeting
in each yeor which is also ottended

by oll senior executives of the Group,
the purpose of which is to review
progress in delivering ogreed plans
and to develop and settle the Group's
business plans and long-term strategic
targets and set the framework for the
achievernent of those goels. During
2018 the Board heid 11 scheduled
meetings, with a number of additionol
ad-hoc meetings lo discuss specific
issves or grant formal approvals of
non-substantive malters.

In teoding and controlling the
Company, the table below sets out the
totot number of meetings held by the
Board and its Committees and records
oltendance by eoch member eligible 1o
attend during the yeor ended

31 December 2018.

Board Effectiveness Review

it is the Company’s policy that a Board
effectiveness review is undertaken
biennially. Accordingly, the Chairman
and the Company Secretary conducted
o Boord effectiveness review at the
end of 2018 which consisted of a
structured queshionnaire circutated to

Audit and Risk Nomination Remuneration
Board Commitee Committee Commiftee
No. of meetings

Directors H 3 5 8
Andrew Smith! 2 3 2
Peter Butterfield 1 - - -
Thomas Casdogli? 5 3 3
Nigel Clifford H 3 5 8
Dovid Cook H 3 5 8

lohn Dowsan

Andrew Franklin

1

1 Andrew Smith resigned from the Baard on the 1 Morch 2018 and otteaded off scheduled meetings prior to his deporture

2 Thomos Casdagli resigned from the Board on the 30 Moy 2018 ond atended all scheduled meetings prior to his deporture
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all Directors, asking them to rofe the
Board's performance in a number
of sirategically important areas and
provide a rafionale far their view.

Resulls and outcomes were analysed
and summarised by the Compony
Secretary and Chairman and ony key
themes were reporied ond discussed
with the Boord. Key themes and
recommendotion flowing from the
review included: balenced focus on
strategic ond operalional update;
greoter shareholder engagement;
maore specific discussions on key risks
in the Group risk register in addition to
the quorterly reviews.

The nex! review is scheduled for 2020,

Nomination
Committee Report

NIGEL CLIFFORD
Chairman of the
Nomination Committee

Meetings held

5

Meeting ottendance

Diversity

The Board is oware of the continued
focus on diversity in relation to
Boord and senior management
appointments, which tends to focus
on gender and race. The Company
ond the Boord alwoys seek to seorch
for, recruit ond cppoint the best
availoble person bosed on aptitude
and chility, regardiess of sex, marital
or civil parinership status, race,
colour, nalienality, ethnic or national
origins, pregnancy, disability, oge,
sexual orientotion, religion, belief or
gender reassignment.

The role of the Nomination
Commitee is to review the structure,
size and compaosition of the

Board [including in terms of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity}
and to identify ond nominate
condidates to fill Board vaconcies.
The Nomination Committee also
reviews the leadership needs of

the orgaonisation and monitors
succession plonning for both Board
ond senior execulive roles. The terms
of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the
Company's website.

As of the dote of this Report, the
members of the Nomination
Committee, all of whom held office
throughout the year ond 1o the
date of this report unless otherwise
stated, are:

Nomination Committee

members:

+ Nigel Clifford {Chairman of
the Momination Committee)

* David Cook

Board Committees

The Board hos delegoted ond
empowered a Remuneration
Commiltee, Nominalion Committee
ond an Audit ond Risk Committee,
each of which is accountable to the
Board on oll matters within its remit.
Each Committee hos written terms of
reference, which ore ovailoble on the
Cornpany’s website. A surmmary of
the responsibilities of each Committee

and their work during the year follows.

The Company Secrefary acts

s secretary to all the Board's
Committees and ensures thot each
Committee receives information and
papers in a timely manner fo enable
full and proper consideration to be

given ta the relevani items of business.

* lJo teCouilliard (appointsd
29 Jonuory 2019}

» Richard Janes (oppointed
29 tanuary 2019}

The Chief HR OHicer is invited

fo attend cerioin meelings of the
Nomination Committee where
appropriate bul particulorly when
succession planning is being
discussed. During the financial

year ended 2018, the Nomination
Committee held five formal
meetings. Business included:
reviewing the structure, size, ond
composilion of the Board and its
Committees and making oppropriote
recommendations; supporting

the process for idenfifying and
nominating for approval condidates
to fill Board vaconcies and ensuring
that such o process followed o
careful assessment of the balance
of skills, knowledge, experiance and
diversity on the Boord; and, reviewing
the outcomes from the Boord
performonce evaluotion.
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Audit and Risk
Commiittee Report

DAVID COOK

Chairmaon of the
Audit and Risk Committee

Meetings held

3

Meeting attendance

The role of the Audit and Risk
Committee is sel out in formal
terms of reference, available on the
Compony's website, and is 1o

* Consider the appointmenl
of external cuditors and the
frequency of re-tendering and
rotation of the audit;

* Oversee the relationship with,
and the independence and
objectivity of, the external
auditors;

+ Set paolicy in relotion to the use of
the exiernal auditors for non-
audit services;

* Review the management ond
reporting of financial matters
including key accounting policies;

+ Advise the Board on the
Company’s appetite for and
tolerance of risk and the strotegy
in relation fo risk monagement
and review ony non-
conformances with these; and

* Review the Compony's risk
management ond internal control
systems and their effectiveness.

The members of the Audil end Risk
Committes, all of whom held office
throughoui the year and to the
date of this report unless otherwise
stated, are:

+ David Cook (Chairman of the
Audit and Risk Committee until
1 April 2019 on which dote he
is replaced os Chairmon by
Richard Jones)

* Richard Jones [appointed
29 Janwary 2019 ond Chairmon
of the Audit and Risk Committee
from 1 April 2019)

* Nigel Clitford {until 1 April 2019)

= Jo LeCouilliard {oppointed 29
January 2019)

The CEQ, Chief Financaa! Officer
(CFO) and the Group Financial
Controller ore invited lo ottend oll
meetings, while other senior finonciot
monagers will ottend as appropriate.
The exiernal auditors ottend the
meaetings to discuss the planning

and conclusions of their work and
meet with the members of the Audi
ond Risk Committee without any
members of the executive team
present after each meeling. The Audit
and Risk Cormmittee is able to coll for
informotion from managemeni ond
consults with the external ouditors
directly if required.

The objectivity and independence
of the external auditors is
sofeguarded by reviewing the
auditors’ formal declarstions,
maonitoring relationships between
key audit stoff and the Company
and tracking the level of non-oudit
fees poyable fo the auditars.

The Audit ond Risk Commitiee held
three formal meetings during the yeor.
The key activitres of the Audit and Risk
Committee during these meetings
was the review of the gudited year.
end and uvnoudited interim financial
stotements, including discussion of
key accounting issues, the review

of the audit scope and fees for the
subsequent year-end oudit, assessing
the objectivity and independence of
the auditor and reviewing the Group's
risk register.



Governante | Corporate Governance

Remuneration
Commiittee Report

NIGEL CLIFFORD

Chairman of the
Remuneration Commitiee

Meetings held

8

Meeting ottendance

Share dealing

The Group has put in place a shore
decling code appropriate to an AlM
quoted compony, and the Group has
in place procedures to ensure that
the Directors, and oll employees

of the Group, are aware of ond
undarstond the code and the
impartance of compliance.

Relations with shareholders

Fhroughout the year the CEQ and
CFO meet with potential investors ond
existing institutionol shareholders and
the Board is provided with feedback
from all meetings end communications
with shareholders. The Boord is
provided with on analysis of the
Company's investor base ot each
meeting and research naoles by sell-side
anolysts gre circulated to all Direclors.

The role of the Remunearation
Committee is to review and
determine on behalf of the Board
the pay, benefits ond other terms

of service of the Executive Directors
of the Company ond the broed pay
strategy with respect to other senior
executives. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Commiltee ore
ovailable on the Company's website,

As at the date of this Report, the
membership of the Remuneration
Commitlee comprises three
Independent Non-executive
Directors, who all held office
throughout the year and to the
dete of his report unfess stoted.

Remuneration Committee
members:

* Nigel Clifford {Chairman of the

Remuneration Commitiee)
« David Cook

« Jo LeCovilliard {(appointed
29 January 2019)

The CEQ and the Chief HR Officer
ore also invited to aftend certoin
meetings of the Remunerafion
Committee, when cppropriate.

Further information on investor
sentiment is provided to the 8oard by
the Compony’s brokers ond financial
PR advisors.

The Group recognises the imporfonce
of retail shoreholders and the
‘Investors’ section on the Group's
website is regulorly updated with the
aim of providing good information
for all investors, but particulorly retail
shareholders. The website offers

o facility to sign up for email alert
nofifications of Company news and
regulotory snnouncements. In addition,
the CEQ and CFO regulorly present
ot conferences ottended by meny
potenticl and curcent retail investors
and meet with specialist private chent
tund manegers, tollowing which
feedback is given to the Boord.

However, nc executive participates
when thair own remuneration is
being discussed.

During the financiol year ended
2018, the Remunerotion Committee
held eight formal meetings. Matters
reviewed and considered by the
Remuneration Commitlee included
bose salories, annual performonce
related bonuses, pension policy,
ond performance reloted share
options and awards generally
under the Company's Share Oplion
Pians. When appropriate to do so,
the Remuneration Committee seeks
the support of externo! advisers
ond consultants.

The Compony’s remuneration policy
and detoils of the amounis due to
the Directors of the Company in or
in respect of the year ore set cu! in
the Remuneration Report on pages
52 to 54. As the Company is not

a Fisted company, it is not required
to preduce a formal remunerotion
policy or seek shareholder approval
of that policy.

Annual General Meeting
("AGM’)

This yeor's AGM will take ploce ot
10.00am on 23 May ot the offices
of Buchanan Communications, 107
Cheopside, London EC2V 6DN. All
Directors attend tha AGM at which
the Chairman presents ¢ stalement
on current trading and there is an
opportunity to ask questions formally,
Directors ore avoilable following the
meeting for informal discussions.

While voting at the AGM is on a show
of hands, the proxy voting results
lincluding any votes withheld) are
announced ot the meeting.

The Notice of Meeling is ovailoble
on the Company’s website at www.
allioncepharmoceuticals.com.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued

Compliance with the QCA
Corporute Governance Code

Principle 1: Establish a strategy
and bysiness mode! which
promote long-term value for
shareholders

The Company hos established

a proven acquisition-led growth
strategy, pursuan! to which it now
owns or licenses the rights to
approximately 90 pharmaceutical
and consumer healthcore products.
The Group's product portfolio

is o strategic mixture of bedrock
praducis (which generate steady
income with very litle promotion)
and growth products. We outsource
copitol-intensive octivities such as
manufacturing, warehousing and
logistics lo specialist providers,

ond focus on marketing and

all the associoted business and
regulotory activities.

We distribute our products through
wholgsalers, relail pharmaocies,
hospitols ond o well-respected
international network of distribulors.

Principle 2: Seek to understand
and meet shoreholder needs
and expectations

The Company is commitled to open
communication with its shareholders
to ensure that its shareholders cleorly
understand its business, strategy ond
perfarmance. The Boord actively seeks
diclogue with its shoreholders via
investor roodshows, capitel market
days, one to one meetings ond reguler
reporting. The Boord believes that
open communication with investors
ond its analysts is the best woy to
ensure it understands whol is expected
of the Compary in order to ollow it to
drive its business forward.

Throughout the yeor the CEOQ and
CFO meet with the institutional
shareholders who hold the majority
of the shares and the Board is
provided with feedback from ol
meelings and communications with
shareholders. The Board is provided
with an analysis of the investor base
at each meating ond research notes
by sell-side analysts are circuloted to

all Directors. Further information on
investor sentimenl is provided to the
Boord by the Company’s brokers and
financial PR advisors.

The Group recognises the importance
of retail shareholders and the Investor
Relations section of the Group's
website is regularly updated with the
oim of providing good information
for all investors, but porticulorly

retail shoreholders. The website
ofters o facility 1o sign up for emait
alert notifications of Company news
and regulatary announcements. In
addifion, the CEQ and CFO regularly
present ot conferences attended by
mony potential ond current retait
investors and meet with specialist
private client fund managers,
following which feedback is given

to the Board.

The AGM provides the main forum
for face to foce interaction between
the Board ond the Company's retail
shareholders. Shareholders are

piven notice of the AGM at least
clear 21 doys before the meeling.

All Directors alend the AGM at which
the Choirmon presenis o stotement
on current roding and there is an
opportunily to ask guestions formally.

Directors are available following the
mesting for informal discussions.
While voting ot the AGM is on a show
of hunds, the proxy voting results
(including any votes withheld) are
onnounced of the meeting.

Principle 3: Take into account
wider stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their
implications for long-term
suCcess

The Board values the opinions of

the stokeholders in the business and
regularly seeks to ensure thot the
views of its sharehalders, suppliers
ond disiributors are known and where
relevant to the success of our business
they ore acted upon.

One of our most important
stokeholder groups is our employees.
The Company engages regularly with
its employees and monitors closely

ihe views and cancerns raised. The
Company corries out and the Board
assesses and acts upon the Company
annual employee engagement to
ensure a positive outcome o the
pracess — the results of the iast survey
showed that 80% of employees ore
positive and motivated in their work,
with some ospects of the survey
achieving levels of satisfaclion
exceeding 70%.

Qur Compony volues (Performance,
Realism, Accountability, integrity, Skill,
Entrepreneurship 'PRAISE’) remain
at the forefront of cur minds as we
deliver our day-to-day business,

and every month we celebrote with
our employees greal examples of
our values in practice in our global
briefing. The achievements ore many
ond varied; from providing excellent
customer service to o concerned
potient, to delivery of challenging
projects, be they commercial,
technical, system and process,

or orgonisational infrastructure ~
employees who pui our PRAISE
values inlo practise are identified
ond recognised.

During the year we again parficipated
in Britain’s Heglthiest Workploce - the
UK's most comprehensive workplace
wellness study. In addition to the obility
to benchmark against comperable
companies, participating employers
receive an in-depth report detailing
the health profile of their organisation,
while employees receive Personal
Health Reports. We are proud to have
scored among the top quartile in the
small business cotegory.

In keeping with the Company’s
volues, we oppose modern slavery.
In the light of the Modern Slavery
Act 2015 we regularly review

our pracedures to update where
necessary how we operate to ensure
that we can to pravent slavery and
human trefficking in our businesses/
supply chains. Our policy can

we found on our website: hitps://
allioncepharmaceuticals.com/en-gh/
obout/anti-slovery-statement.
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Principle 4: Embed effective
risk manogement, considering
both opporiunities and threats,
throughout the organisation
Audit, risk and internal control
The Board, assisted by the Audit

and Risk Cammittee, is uifimately
responsible for overseeing
management’s activities in identifying,
evolunting and managing the risks
facing the Group. Where these risks
are not ones which the Boord is
preporeci to take, these are avoided,
eliminated os for as possible and/or
transfesrad 1o insurers, In 2017, the
Group completed the development
and introduction of o new process
for the identification, assessment and
managemen' of risks in the business,
which is driven and monitored by
the Senior Leadership Team with the
support of the Company Secretary.

There ore risk registers in place ot a
deparimento! and functional level.
Risks are identitied and assessed by
the likelihood of them occurring and
their potential impact on the business.
These ore then categorised to identify
those that con be effectively managed
at o functiocnal or departmental level
and those that need to be oddressed
ot a cross-funclionol business level.
Existing mitigations are considered
for each risk and the residual levels
of exposure assessed. Each risk is
allocated a business owner, who is
responsible for implementing the
mitigating actions ond reporfing on
progress with those improvements
and the stotus of the risk to the

Senior Leodership Team. The Senior
Leadership Teom reviews oll identified
risks on o quarterly basis, with the
principal risks being monitored
monthly and, in the cose of principol
risks and uncertainties, such risks are
reported to and reviewed by the Audit
ond Risk Committee ond the Boord.

The environment in which we operafe
is constanily evolving and can be
affected by externolities that are
outside of our contral end which
may impaoct ¢n us operationally. As
new risks arige, the potentiol impact
of known risks may increase or
decreose, and/or cur ossessment

of these risks may need to change.
We continue to manitor our risk
monagement systems and they will
evolve os and when they ore deemed
to need refreshing.

Other internal controls

The Groug maintains systems of
internal control appropriate to a
business of this size and complexity
and which includes taking into
cccount the applicable requirements
of phormoceuticol regulotors in the
various markets in which the business
operate. The key components of the
current system of internal control are:

* Setting and communicoting cleor
strategic goals;

* Developing business plans and
budgets in line with strotegy,
supported by intro-year
forecasting;

¢ Regular reporting of actucl
pertormance relotive fo those
strotegic goals, plons, budgets
ond forecasts;

+ Working within a defined set of
delegated authorities cpproved by
the Board to the CEO, ond through
him, to the Senior Leadership
Team and their delegates through
outhorisation registers moanaged ot
o departmental and functional level;

* Crealing an appropriale shructure
of responsibility and accountability,
including segregation of dulies,
oppropricte reporting lines for
key monogers and regulor line
monagement communicalions and
1:1 meetings where performonce
is discussed, supported by on
appraisal process; and

+ The Audit and Risk Committee
reviews the systems of internal
control for the Group alongside
the Group's process for risk
management and reports its
findings to the Boord.

Standards and policles

The Board is committed to
maintaining appropriale standords
for all the Company’s business
activities and ensuring thot these
stondards are set out in written

policies. Key examples of such
stendords and policies include
the 'Anti-Bribery Folicy” and ‘Anti
Maodern Slavery Policy”. All of the
Company's policies incorporate
ond work alongside, fo the extent
opplicable, our Compony values.

Approval process

All material contracts are required

to be reviewed ond opproved by both
the Heod of Legal and an Executive
Direcior of the Compony.

Code of Conduct

Our Code of Conduct includes
guidance on onything that could
get our employees info trouble,
{including business inlegrity, anti-
bribery, gifts, inlellectual property
ond design rights) they are sent

to everyone in the Group and are
visible in ¢l workplaces. Every yeor
senior managers ond obove declare
compliance to this code.

Legal controls

During the last 12 months the Group
has hired o Head of Legat who now
heads up the inlernci legal and
company secretarial funchion.

Principle 5: Maintaining the
Board as a well-functioning,
balanced team led by the Chair
The Boord currently comprises seven
Directors, being the Chairman,

two Executive Directors ond five
Non-executive Directors {including
the Chairmen). The Board keeps
under review its current balance

of composition, which provides o
sufficiently wide ronge of skilis end
experience to enoble it to pursue

ils strategic gools and to address
anticipoted issues in the foreseeable
future. its deliberations ore not
dominated by one person or a
group of people. Having considerad
the guidelines on independence,

on appointment as Choirman,
Daovid Cook wos independent and
continues to be regarded by the
Board os independent alongside
each of Nigel Clifford, Jo LeCoulliard
ond Richard Jones.
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The Boord is comfortable with

the current composition of the

Board however it will continue,

with the advice of the Nominations
Committee, to consider any odditions
to the Board to further broaden

the experience and effectiveness of
the Boord as the Group continues

to grow. As part of this process the
Board has olso considered and
concluded thot the appointment of
Senior Independent Director was not
necessary at this time but keeps this
issue under review,

The Board is responsible to the
Company’s shareholders for:

+ Seiting the Group’s strategy;

= Maointaining the policy and
decision-making process through
which the siralegy is implemented;

+ Checking thot necessary finonciol
and human resources are in place
to meel sirategic aims;

* Providing entrepreneurial
leadership within o fromework
of good governonce ond sound
risk manogement;

* Monitering perfermonce against
key financial ond non-financial
indicators;

* Overseeing the systems of risk
maonogement ond internal control;
and

* Setiting volues and standards in
corporale governance maters.

There is o formal list of matters
reserved for the Board, which may
only be amended by the Board.

Directors’ conflict of interest
The Company hos effective
procedures in ploce to menitor and
deal with conflicts of interest. The
Board is fully aware of the other
commitments ond interests of ils
Directors, ond changes to these
commitments and interests are
reported to and, where oppropriote,
ogreed with the rest of the Boord.

Principle 6: Ensure that

between them the Directors
have the necessary up-to-

date experience, skills and
capabilities

The Boaord actively evoluated its
composition and the experience,

skills ond capabilities which it has

as porl of the process which saw

eoch of Jo LeCouilliard ond Richord
Jones oppointed o the Board from 1
lanuary 2019 to enhance its collective
experience in pharmaceutical
marketing, capital markets ond equity
finance. Notwithstanding, the Board
is currently safisfied thot, between

the Direclors, il has an effective and
oppropriate balonce of skills and
experience, including in the areas of
pharmaceuticols [commercialisation
and regulotion), finance, international
trading and markefing.

Each Director is given an opportunity
of identifying where training end
development could ossist them in

the perfarmance of their duties.

The Chairmuon ond the Company
Secretary support training needs

os and when the need orises, or as
part of the Bocrd evaluation process,
by identifying when updates and/

or presentotions should be provided
to the Board to ensure skills end
knowledge is kept up to date. For
examptle, this may include meetings or
updates to improve the understanding
of the business or maiters relating to
legol and regulatory changes.

The Directors ore provided with
monthly information on the

Group's operational ond financial
performonce, with detailed
informatian being provided in a
timely fashion prior fo each monthly
Board meeting. The business reports
monthly on the Group's performance
againsi budget.

Directors contracts/appointment
letters are available for inspection
at the AGM. All Directors retire by
rotation in occordance with the
Company's Articles of Association.

Appointment, removal and
re-alection of Directors

The role of the Nomination
Committee is to review the structure,
size and compaosition of the

Board {including in terms of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity}
and fo identify and nominale
candidotes to fill Boord vocancies.
The Commiitee also reviews the
leadership needs of the organisation
and monitors succession planning
for both Boord and senior executive
roles. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Commitiee are available
on the Company's website. During the
year, in oddition ta its generol role,
the Nomination Committee undertook
and monaged the succession
planning process, os port of which it
carried out an interncl and external
review of potential candidates for

the position of Chair ot the Boord.

Company’s Articles of Association
require thot one-thirg of the Directors
must stond for re-election by
shareholders annually on rotation;
that oll Directors must stand for
re-election a! least once every three
years; and that ony new Directors
oppointed during the year must stond
for election at the AGM immediotely
following their appointment.

Independent advice

All Directors are able to toke
independent professionol advice

in the furtherance of their dulies,

if necessary, at the Compony's
expense. In addition, the Directors
have direct access to the advice and
services of the Heod of Legal and
Compaony Secretary.

Principle 7: Evaluate Board
performance based on clear
ond relevant objectives, seeking
continuous improvement

It is the Company’s policy that

o Boord effectiveness review is
undertaken biennially, with the

lost one having been conducted in
December 2018. Generally, such
review is done in the formof o
structured questionnaire circulated
to all Directors, asking them io rote
the Boord's performonce in
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o number of strategicolly important
areas and provide o rationale for
their view. Results and ouvicomes ore
aonalysed by the Company Secretary
ond Choirmon and any key themes
ore reported and discussed with

the Boord. Any recommendations
orising from such review which are
designed to specifically address any
issues identified are implemented by
the Board.

Principle 8: Promaote a culture
that is based on ethical values
and behaviours

The Boord aims to lead by example
and do whot is in the best interests
of the Company. Our PRAISE
values remain at the forefront of
our minds as the Board guides the
business forward.

We also drive engagement by
working together Jo achieve more for
others. In 2017 we held our biggest
ever charity team chaltengs. Through
o ronge of endeavours, from gym
cormpetitions to cycling from our Paris
office to our Chippenham UK HQ, we
roised over £30,000 for our pecple's
chosen charity, Sands. it is this level of
engogement that powers Alliance.

Principle 9: Maintain
governance structures and
processes thot are fit for
purpose and support good
decision-making by the Board
The respective responsibilities of
the Chairman and CEQ ore very
clearly understoed. The Chairman
is responsible for leading the Board,
facititating the effective contribution
of all members and ensuring that it
operales effectively in the interests
of the shareholders.

Committees

The Boord has an Audit and Risk
Committee, a Nomination Committee
and a Remuneration Commities,
each with written terms of reference.
The terms of reference are available
on the Group website: Remunerafion
Committee — Terms of Reference,
Nominations Commitiee ~ Terms

of Reference, and Audit and Risk
Committee — Terms of Reference.
Eoch Committee reports to the
Board on its activities.

The CEQ is responsible for the
leadership of the business and
implementation of the strategy.

Non-executive Directors
The role of our Non-executive
Directors is to:

* Chollenge consiructively and help
develop proposals on sirategy;

+ Satsfy themselves as to the
integrity of the finoncial reporting
systems and the informalion
they provide;

= Satisfy themselves os to the
robusiness of the internol controls;

« Ensure thot the systems of risk
management are robust and
defensible; and

* Review corporate performoance and
the reporting of such performance
to shareholders.

The Board has delagated and
empowered an Audit and Risk
Committee, a Nomingtion Committee
and o Remuneration Committea,
each of which is accountable to the
Board on all matters within its remit.
Each Committee hos written terms of
reference, which are available on

the Company’s website,

Each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors sits on the
Nomination ond Remunerction
Cormmittees, enabling therm to have

@ role in determining the pay ond
benefits of the Executive Directors and
to play a key role in plenning Board
succession including the appointment
and, if necessary, removal of
Executive Directors.

In oddition, each Independent
Non-executive Director sits on the
Audit and Risk Committee, enabling
them ta review internal controt and
financial reporting matters at first
hand, and have o direct relationship
with the external auditors.

E3)

Board and Committee meetings
and attendance

The Board and its Committees

meet regularly on scheduled dotes,
including o two-day strategy meeting
each yeor which is olso attended

by senior executives of the Group,
the purpose of which is to review
progress in delivering ogreed

plans ond lo develop ond seitle the
Group's business plens and iong-
term strategic targets and set the
fromework for the achievement of
thase goals.

Principle 10: Communicute how
the Company is governed and
is performing by maintaining o
dialogue with shareholders and
other relevant stakeheolders

The Compuany tommaunicates with
shareholders through the Annual
Report and Accounts, full-yeor and
holf.year announcements, the AGM
ond one-to-one meetings with existing
or potential new shoreholders. Such
Reports as well as other relevant
announcements and reloted
information are oll avoiloble on

the Compony's corporate website,
www.dallioncepharmaceuticlas.com.
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Furthermore, analysts’ notes ond
brokers’ briefings received and
considered by the Board in order

1o ensure, as far as possible, that o
clear and up-to-dale understanding
of investors’ views, The Company
complates regular annual employee
surveys to maintain on open diologue
with employee ond holds o monthly
breakfast briefing to ol staff around
the world where the Company’s
performance, targets and key
abjeclives are communicated

and discussed.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Remuneration policy

The abjective of the Company’s
ramunerafion policy remains
unchenged. lts purpose is to facifilote
the recruitment and retention of
executives of an appropriate calibre,
to ensure that the senior executives
of the Company are provided with
oppropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performonce and cre,

in o fair and responsible manner,
rewarded for their individual
contributions 1o the success of

the Group.

Strategic alignment

The Remuneration Committee is
sofisfied that the remunerotion
thot con be eorned is oppropriote
for @ company of comporable
size ond complexity, ot each level
of performance.

The delivery of the Group’s short-
term corporate gools is incentivised
by offering a cosh-settled bonus
linked to the achievement of pre-
defined levels of profit before

tax, which is the key metric the
Board considers in monitoring
corporate performance.

Detoils of oll Directors’ shareholdings
can be found in the Directors’ Report
on page 55. Executive Directors also
hold options over the Company’s
shares, Certoin of the options
granted will only vest if targets for
growth in the Company’s diluted
earnings per share are met over

a period of five years. EPS is an
important metric which provides a
strang incentive to drive the Group's
business over that longer-term period
ond lo mitigate downside risks thot
could affect the Group's profitability.
Reputational risks could reasonobly
be expected to affect the share price,
so the executive is further incentivised
to mitigate these exposures, if they
wish to maximise the potential value
of their oplions.

Remuneration in practice

The remuneration thot the Company
offers to its Executive Birectors
continues to be bosed on four
principol components:

1. Basic salaries and benefits in
kind - 8asic salories ore determined
by the Remuneration Committee
bearing in mind the salaries

paid in AiM-quoted and other
pharmaceutical businesses of similar
size and complexity. Within that
frame of reference, it is intended that
guaranteed poy shouid be at or near
the medicn level. Benefils in kind
include life assurance, healthcare
and the provisicn of o cosh ollowence
in lieu of a company ceor.

2. Pensions — The Group operales
a defined contribution scheme for oll
Executive Direclors ond employees.
Only basic salaries ore pensionable.

3. Short-term incentives -
Bonuses are payable to staff
(including the Executive Directors)
according 1o the achievement by the
Group of certain pre-determined
profit targets. The amount of bonus
poyable on achievement of the torget
is sel ot the level felt appropriate

to provide the necessory incentive,
with oppropriate adjustments lo the
bonus payable in the event of over-
or under-achievement agoinst those
targets. In addition, bonuses are
adjusted for personal performence
during the year.

4, Long-term incentives — The
Company operctes o share option
scheme covering oll permanent
employees under which share options
are normally granted once in eoch
year. Opiions normally ves! on the
third arniversary of the date of grant
ond can then be exercised uniil the
tenth anniversary. The exercise price
of the options is set at the markes
value of ihe Company's shares ot the
time of grant, so that the individuol
only benefits if there hos been shere
price growth. In oddition, cartoin
tranches of options con only vest if
there have been pre-defined levels
of growth in the Company’s earnings
per share, on a diluted bosis. The
share option scheme is overseen by
the Remuneration Committee which
determines the terms under which
eligible individuols moy be invited

to porticipate, including the level of
awards. The scheme utilises HMRC
aopproved options to the exten!
possible and tax-unapproved
options thereafter.

Directors’ service controcts

All Executive Directors are employed
under service conlracts. The services
of oll Executive Directors may be
terminoted by the Compony or
individual giving 12 months’ notice.

The Non-executive Direciors

are employed under letiers of
engogement for fixed terms of up to
five years, which may be terminated
by the Company by (i) giving up 1o 12
months’ nolice, or (1) immediately, in
the event that the Directar is not re-
elected by shoreholders at on AGM,
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Directors’ remuneration

The aggregote remunerotion payable to the Direclors in respect of the period was os follows:

Totul Share
Salary or fees Gther Pension Bonus remuneration option gains Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2008 2077 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Pator Buttarhald 238,333 206,667 1,780 10,812 25425 720,583 53,250 54,664 228,988 292,726 - 13984 328988 304,710
Andrew Fronkhn 175,333 145,000 1,382 10967 17.272 15300 37914 34578 241,900 227,045 - - Z4L0F 227,045
John Dowsoen? 287,000 244,000 5,855 33,484 - H3.B899 - 42,546 292,855 433909 - ~ 292,855 433909
Nigal Clifford 41,067 36,001 - - - - - - 41,087 36,000 - - 41,087 3500
Dovid Cook 72,336 37448 - - - - - - 72336 21658 - - 72,336 37668
B14.06% 689,236 Q17 35243 42,897 150982 91,084 151,788 977,147 1,027,349 - 13984 977147 1,041,333
Formur Girsclors:
Andragw Smith? 85,801 72.946 - - - - - - 8580F 72,944 - - B5BOl 72,944
Thomas Cosdagli® - - - - - - - - _ _ _ _ - _
Total 899870 762,282 29007 35243 42,897 150982 91,164 151,768 1,062,948 1,100,295 - 135984 1,082,748 1,114,279
Nates:
1 Andrew Smith ceased to serve as o Director on | March 2018, The amount paid te him in 2018 included o payment of £73,544 in liew
of notice.
2 Thamuas Cosdagli ceosed to serve os o Director on 30 May 2018.
3 lohn Dawson ceased to be Chief Executive Officer on 1 Moy 2018. The emount of salary paid to him in 2018 included a payment

of £205,000 in liev of notrce. John has continued to serve os o Non-execotive Director on the Boord since 1 May 2018, for which he
receivas no saiary or faes.

No Director received any remuneration from o third porty in respect of their service as a Director of the Company.

Benefits

The column headed ‘Other” in the table above shows the volue of benefits provided to each Executive Director,
including o cash allowance in lieu of o compony car and healthcore.

As seen from the table, only Executive Directors accrue refirement benefits, all of whom did so through defined
contribution (money purchose} schemes. The Company does not operate o definad benefit scheme. No Director
or former Director received any benefits from o retirement benefits scheme that were not otherwise available to ait
members of the scheme.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continueD

Directors’ share options

Detoils of options held under the Compaony’s employee share schemes by the Direciors who served during the year are

as follows:
2017 Changes in the year 2018
Exercise
Date of price Performance  MNumber Number Exercisoble Exerciscble
Director Grant {pence) condition? of shares Gronted Exercised Lopsed of shares from to
Pater
Bultecheld 26-Mar-10 3125 No 959.778 - - - 09,778 26-Ma:-13 26-Mar-20
2%9-Ape-10) 34.25 No £15.000 - - - 115,000 29-Apr-13 2%-Apr-20
28-Aps-11 3412 No 1,130,000 - - - 1,130,000 28-Apr-14 28.Apr-2t
19-Oct-12 29.15 No 140,600 - - - 140,000 19-Qe 15 19.0¢1.22
G6-Jun-13 3225 No 144,200 - - - 144,200 O Jun-16 04 Jyn-21
23-Ocr3 3575 EPS growsh 400,000 - - - 400,000 23-Oct 18 23:-0ct-23
11-Apr.14 33.75 EPS growth 144,200 - - - 144,200 Apr1? H.Apr-24
27.May-15 43175 EPS growth 166,625 - - - 168,625 27.may18 27-May-25
27-Oxct-16 42,50 EPS grawrh 200,000 - - - 200,000 22.001-0% 27-Oct-26
27-0cr 14 47.50 EPS growth 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 27-0ci1-21 27-0c1-26
15-5ep37 53.00 EPS growih 148,297 - - - 148,397 15-50p-20 15-58p-27
15-5ep-17 53.00 EP5 growth 56,603 - - - 56,603 15-5ep-20 |15-5ep-27
05-Oct-18 81.80 EPS growth - 1,250,000 - - 1,250,060 05.0ci1-21 05-Ocr-28
4,554,803 1,250,000 - - 5,804,803
Andrew
Frankha 04.Dec-15 48,75 Ne 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 06.Dec-18 04.Dec-25
27.0ct14 47.50 EP5 growih 155,008 - - - 155,000 27-Cet19 27-Ocr-26
27.0ct16 47 50 EPS growth 400,000 - - - 40390.000 27-Q0-21 27-Oc1-26
15:5ep:17 53.00 EPS growth ¥70,000 - - - 170,000 15:5ep-20 15.Sep-27
05 Ocr-18 81.50 EPS growth - 178,000 - - 178,006 05.0c1-21 05-Oct-28
2,725,000 178,000 - - 2,903,000

The tloting mid-market price of ordinary shares on 31 December 2018 (being the last dealing day in the calendar
yeor} was 67p ond the range during the year was from 62p to 102p.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Scope of this report

The Directors’ biographies on pages 40 fo 41, the discussion of corporate governance matters on pages 42 to 51 and
the Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 54 are hereby incorparated by reference to form part of this Direclors’ Report.

As permitted under the Companies Act, certain matters which would otherwise need to be included in this Directors’
Report have instead been discussed in the Strategic Repart. These matters are the discussion of the likely future
developmenits in the business of the Compaony and ils subsidiaries, the activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
in the field of research and development, the Company’s use of financial instruments and an indication of its financial
risk manogement objectives and pelicies.

Principal activities
The principal octivity of the Group is the acquisition, marketing and distribution of pharmaceutical products.
The principal gctivity of the Company is to oct as 6 holding company.

Directors

Names and biographical details of the Directors of the Company ot the dote of this report are shawn on poges
40 ond 41. Andrew Smith ond Thomos Casdogli served as Non-exaecutive Directors until the 1 March 2018 ond
30 May 2018 respectively.

Directors’ interests

The following table shows the interests of the Direclors (ond their spouses and minor children} in the shares of
the Company.

At 31 December 2017 At 31 December 2018
Non- Nen-

Director . Beneficlal baneficlal Toral Benelicial beneficlal Yotal
Peter Butterfield 28,376 - - 28,376 - 28,376
Nigel Clifford 180,663 - 180,663 180,663 - 180,663
David Cook 102,31 - 102,371 102,371 - 102,371
lohn Dowson 36,576,402 20,000,000 56,576,402 35,476,402 20,000,000 55,476,402

Andrew Franklin - - - - - -

Peter Butterfield ond Andrew Franklin both hold options over shares of the Company through their participotion in the
Company's Share Option Plan, as set out in the Remunerclion Repori on poge 54.

Directors’ liabilities

The Compaony's Articles of Association contain provision for Directors to be indemnified [including the funding of
deferice costs) to the extent permitied by the Companies Act 2006. This indermnity would only be availoble if judgement
was given in the individual's favour, or he or she was acquitted, or relief under the Companies Act 2006 was granted
by the court.

There were no qualifying pension scheme indemnily provisions in force during the yeor.
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Qur employees

The Group ploces great importance
on athracting ond retaining high
quality employees ond oligning

the success of the Group with their
rewards. As such the Group operates
o share oplion plan which aims lo
ensure that each employee has ¢
direct benefit from the growth of
the business as it transiates to the
Company's share price. Further
information about our values and
our people con be found on pages

22 0nd 23

Directors’ obligations to the
ouditor

The Directors confirm that:

* So far as eoch of the Directors
is awore, there is no relevant
audit information of which the
Company’s auditor is unaware,;
and

* They have each token ali jhe
steps thot they aught to have
taken os Directors o make
thermselves aware of ony relevant
audit informalion and fo establish
that the auditor is oware of that
infarmation.

Dividends

The Boord declored on interim
dividend in respect of the year
ending 2018 of 0.487 pence per
share (2017: 0.443p} which wos
paid on 10 Jonuary 2019. The
Directors ore recommending a final
dividend of 0.977 pence per shore
{2017: 0.8B8p]} which, subject to
shoreholders’ cpprovel ot the annual
general meeting, wilt be paid on

11 July 2019 1o shareholders on the
register ot the close of business en
14 June 2019. The total dividends
poid end proposed in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2018
is therefore 1 464 pence per share
{2017: 1.331p).

Bronches

There are no bronches of the
Company outside the UK.

Allionce Pharmaceuticals GmbH,

a company within the Alliance
group, has o Swiss branch which
operates under the name Allionce
Pharmaceuticals GmbH Disseldorf,
Zweigniederlossung Uster.

Political donations

No paliticol donotions were made, or
political expenditure incurred during
ihe period.

Auditor

Our auditor, KPMG LLP, has
expressed its willingness to continue
in office ond a resolution to re-
eppoint KPMG ELLP as oudnor for
the next yeor will be proposed o! the
Annucl General Meeting.

Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Strotegic Report, the
Directors” Report and the financial
statements in accordance with
applicable low ond regulotions.

Company law requires the Directors
lo prepare Group and parent
Company financial stotements for
each finonciol year. As required

by the AlM Rules of the London
Stock Exchange they are required
to prepare the Group financial
stoterments in accordonce with
International Financial Reporting
Standards os adopted by the
European Union {{FRSs) and
applicable low and have elected

to prepare the parent Compony
financiol statements on the same
bosis. Under company law the
Directors must not cpprove the
financiol stalements unless they are
satisfied that they give o true and
fair view of the state of offairs of the
Group and parent Compony and of
their profit or loss for that period.

in preparing each of the Group
ond parent Company financic!
statements, the Directors are
required to:

* Select suitable ocrounting policies
cnd then apply them consistently;

* Mcake judgements and estimaotes
that are reasonable ond prudent;

* State whether they hove been
prepared in accordance with {IFRSs
as adopted by the EU; and

Prapore the financial statements
on the going concern basis unless
it is inappropricte o presume

that the Group ond the porent
company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adeguale accounting
records thot are sufficent to show
and explain the porent Company's
transactions ond disclose with
reosonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the parent
Campony and enaoble them to ensure
that its financial stotements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They
have general responsibility for taking
such steps os ore reasonacbly open
to them to sofeguard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud ond other irregularities.

The Directors are respansible for such
internol control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements thot are free
fram materiol misstatement, whether
due to froud or error; ossessing the
Group ond porent Company's ability
o continue as o going concern,
disclosing, os applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they etther intend
lo liguidate the Group or the parent
Compaony or to cease operations, or
have na realistic allernative but to
do so.
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The Directors are responsible for

the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website.
Legislotion in the United Kingdom
governing the preporotion and
dissemination of financiol stotements
may differ from legislotion in other
jurisdictions.

Electronic communications

This yeor, the Company ook the
decision to move towards electronic
tommunicotions. We wiote to ol
shareholders in Januory 2019,
requesiing that shareholders
consider moving away from hord
copy company communicotions.
This meons that, instead of

being obliged to send annual
reporls, notices of shareholder
meetings and other documents lo
shareholders in hard copy by post,
the Compory con instead elect 1o
publish them on its website ot www.
olliancepharmaceuticals.com. Using
the website and email allows vs to
reduce printing and postage costs
and it is better for many shareholders
who con choose and occess just

the information they need, from the
website, at any time.

Shareholders still have the right to
ask for paper versions of shareholder
information, but we are strongly
encouraging all shareholders to
consider the eleclronic option.

Annval General Meeting

The 2019 Annual General Meeling of
the Company will be held on 23 Moy
2019, the business of which is sef out
in the Notice of Meeting. A circular
containing the nolice of meeting
together with an explanatory letter
from the Choirman is in included
with this Annuc! Report and is also
availoble in the fnvestor Section of
the Compony's website of www.
olliancepharmaceuticals.com.

Piease also note that following

the Company’s move towords
elecironic communications, we are
no longer producing hard copy
forms of proxy for any shareholder
meetings. Shareholders are able

to vate electronically using the link
wwew signalshares.com. Registering
your details an the Link share

portal also gives shareholders eosy
occess to information about their
shareholdings and the ability 1o vote
electronically ot Company general
meetings or oppoint a proxy 1o vote.
You will still be able fo vote in person
ot the AGM, and may request a hard
copy proxy form directly from the
Company’s Registrars.

Cc Gy —

Chris Chrysanthou
Company Secretary

26 March 2019
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Healthcare providers

Working with key opinion
leaders enables us to build
on our growing global
reputation as trusted experts
in selected therapy areas.
Healthcare providersin a
range of specialties value
our engagement and achieve
more every day thanks to the
education, information and
resources we provide.
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* Independent
qudtorsreport

to the members of Alliance Pharma plc

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the tinanciol statements of Allicnce
Pharma plc {"the Company”) for the year ended 31
December 2018 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Balonce
Sheet, Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity, Company Statement
of Changes in Equity, Consolidated and Compony
Cash Flow Statements, and the reloted notes,
including the accounting policies in Note 2.

In our opinion:

- the financiol statements give o true and fair view
of the state of the Group’s and of the parent
Company's offairs as at 31 December 2018 and
of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

- the Group financial stafements have been
properly prepared in accordonce with
International Financial Reporting Standords as
adopied by the Europeon Union {IFRSs os adopted
by the EU);

- the parent Company financial statements hove
been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU ond os applied in
accordonce with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006; and

— the financial stotements have been prepored
in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our oudit in accordance with Internationot
Standords on Auditing (UK} {"ISAs (UK}"}) and applicable
law, Cur responsibilities ore described below. We

have fulfilted our ethical responsibilities under, and

are independent of the Group in accordonce with, UK
ethical requirements including the FRC Ethicel Stondard
as applied 1o listed entities. We believe that the audit
evidence we have cblained is o sulficient and appropriate
basis for our opinion.

Overview

£L1m (2017:€V 1m}

3.9% (2017 4.7%} of normalised
Group profit before tax®

Moteriality:
Group financial
statements as a
whole

87% (2017: 91%) of the total profits
ond losses that made up Group profit
before tax

Coverage

Key audit motters vs 2017

New: The impact of ‘
unceriainhes due to the UK

exiting the Evropean Union an

owvr audil

impoirment of indefinite useful P
economic life infangible assets
{excluding goodwill)

Event Driven

Recurring risks

Recoverability of parent L] 2
compony's investment in
subsidiaries
* Group profi! before 10x is normalised to exclude:
- impairment of Synthasio Joint Venture assets [£2.5m)
- imporrment of Anti.malariol intangible osset (£4.3m}
~ Profit en disposal of Unigreg Joint Venture £1.5m

These events are not considered to represent the
underlying performance of the Group for the purposes
of determining materiality, hence are exciuded from the
Group profit before tax.
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key oudit matters are those motters that, in our professional judgment, were of mast significonce in the audit of the
finoncial stotements and include the most significant ossessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due
to fraud) idenfified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overoll audit strotegy; the ollocation
of resources in the audii; ond directing the efforis of the engagement team. We summarise below the key audit
matters in arriving ot our avdi) opinion above. These molters were addressed in the context of our oudit of the
financial siatements os a whole, and in {forming our opinion therean and we do not provide o separote opinion on

these matters.

The risk Qurresponse

The impact of
vncertainties due
to the UK exiting
the Europeon
Union on our
audit

Refer to page 37
{principa! risks).

Unprecedented levels of uncertainty

All gudits assess and challenge the
reasonobleness of estimotes, in particular as
described in impoirment of indefinite useful
economic life intangible assets {including
goadwill] and recoverability of parent
Company's investment in subsidiaries, and
reloted disclosures ond the appropricteness of
the going concern basis of preparation of the
finoncial statements (see below)]. All of these
depend on assessmenis of the future economic
envirgnmend and the Group's future prospects
ond performance.

Brexit is one of the mast significant economic
events for the UK and at the date of this report
its effects are subject 1o unprecedented jevels
of uncertointy of outcomes, with the ful range
of possible effects unknown

We developed o standardised firm-wide
opproach 1o the considercion of the
uncertainties arising from Brexit in planning
and performing our audits. Our procedures
included:

-~ Qur Brexit knowledge: We ronsidered
the directors’ ossessment of Brexit-relaled
sources of risk for the Group's business ond
financial resources compared with our own
vnderstanding of the risks. Wa considered
the directors’ plons 1o toke action to mitigate
the risks.

- Sensitivity analysis: When addressing
impairment! of indefinite useful econamic
fife intangible assets (excluding goodwill],
recoverability of parent company’s
investment in subsidiaries and other greas
that depend on forecasts, we compared
the directors’ analysis to our assessment
of the fuli range of reasonobly possible
scenarios resulting from Brexit uncertainty
and, where forecast cash flows are required
to be discounied, considered adjustments
to discount rotes for the level of remaining
unceerfainty.

Assessing transparency: As well os
assessing individual disclosures os part of
our procedures on impairment of indefinite
useful economic life intangible assets
{excluding goodwill} and recoverability of
parent campany’s investment in subsidiories
we considered oll of the Brexit related
disclosures together, including those in

the sirategic repart, comparing the overall
picture egainst our understanding of the
risks.

Howaver, no audit should be expecied

o predict the unknowable factors or all
possible future implications for 6 compony
and this is particularly the case in relation 10
Brexit
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement continued

Yhe risk’ Our response

{impairment
of indefinite
useful
economic life
intangible
assets
(including
goodwill)

{£332.0m;
2017: £273.3m)

Refer 10 puge

77 loccounting
policy} and poge
92 {finoncial
disclosures).

forecast-based voluation

The estimated recoveroble amount is subjective
due to the inherent uncertainty involved in
forecasting and discounling future cash flows,

This ossessment is based on assumptions {such
os forecost cosh flows, discount rates and growth
rotes), which are inherently highly judgemental.

Given the quantum of the balance in relation

to our matericlity, and the inherent estimation
uncertainly associoted with these judgements, we
concluded this to be our most significont Key audit
motler,

The effect of these matters is thot, os part of our
risk assessment, we determined thot the volue

in use across the portfolio has o high degree of
estimation uncertainty, with a potenticl range of
reasonable outcomes greater than our materiglity
for the financial statements as o whole.

We applied the procedures below to higher risk
CGUs for detailed testing based on historic
headroom levels, sensitivities, historic forecasting
accuracy, issuves identified from discussions with
commercial, regulotory end finonciol monogement
and information about the products available in
the public domain.

Benchmarking assumplons: Using our
own valuotions specialist, we chatienged the
Group’s selection of discount and growth rates
by comparing those used to externally derived
doto (including competitor analysis) In addition,
we assessed whether the forecasts [including
growth rate) were consistent with current
business strategies in place;

Sensitivity analysis: We performed our
own anclysis to assess the sensitivity of the
impairment raviews to changes in the key
assumptlions, including the discount rote,
growih rate and the forecast cash Hows;

= Historical comparisons: We compared
the previously forecasted cesh flows to actuol
results to assess the historical accuracy of
forecosting;

— Assessing tronsporency: We assessed the
adequocy of the Group’s disclosures in respact
of the sensitivity 1o changes in key assumphons,

For the remoining population of CGUs, we
performed historical comparisons, sensitivity
analysis and held discussions with the Directors.

Recoverability
of parent
company’s
investment in
subsidiaries

(€184 .4m; 2017:
£145.5m}

Refer to poge

77 {occounting
policy) ond poge
29 {finoncial
disclosures}

Low risk, high valuve

The carrying amount of the parent company’s
invesiments in subsidiories represents 99.9%
{2017: 99.9%) of the company's total assels.

Their recaverability is not ot o high risk of
significant misstalement or subject 1o significant
judgement. However, due to their moteriality

in the context of the pareni company financiol
statermenits, this is considered to be the area that
had the greatest effect on our overoll parent
company cudit.

Our procedures included:

Tests of defails: We compared the carrying
amount of 100% of the invesiments with the net
assels value of the respective subsidiary, being
an approximation of their minimum recoverable
amounl, te identify whether the net asset’

volues were in excess of the carrying omounts
ond assessed whether those subsidiaries have
historicolly been profit-making. The Group audit
team performs the stotutory audit of all material
investments;

Test of details: Where the carrying value of

the investment exceaded the net ossels of the
subsidiary we obloined the forecasts used by the
directors’ in their assessment of the recoverability
of their investments. We challenged ond
assessed the underlying assumplions used in
these forecasts, toking into consideration the
ossumptions used by the directors in lesting the
recoverability of the intangible assets ot o Group
levet and the sensitivity of impairment of the
parent company's investment in subsidiaries to
these assumptions.
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3. Our application of materiality and an

overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financicl statements as a
whole was set at £1.1m, determined with reference o
a benchmark of Group profit before tax normalised
to exclude:

- £2.5m impairment of Synthosic Joint Veniure
ossels,

- £4.3m impairment of Anti-maluriol intangibles
asset and

-~ £1.5m grofit on disposal of Unigreg Joint Venture,

os disclosed in note 8. Moteriolity represents 3.9% of
this normolised Group profit before tox.

Materiolity for the parent company financial
statements as a whole was set ot £0.8m (2017:
£0.8m), determined with reference to ¢ benchmark
of company tola! assets, of which it represents 0.5%
{2017: 0.5%).

We agreed to report to the Audit Commitiee any
corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements
exceeding £55,000, in addition to other identified
misstotements that warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

Of the Group's 19 (2017: 18} reporting components,
we subjected 4 (2017: 5) to full scope audits for
Group purposes. We conducted reviews of financiol
information (including enquiry) at a further 4 (2017:
3) nen-significant components. These non-signiticont
components are not material from a profit or net
assets perspective nor do they include o significant
risk. However they da include individually material
revenues, costs, ossets or lobilifies.

The components within the scope of our work
accounted for the percentages illustrated opposite.

For the residual components, we performed analysis
at an oggregated Group level to re-exomine our
assessmend that there were no significont risks of
material misstatement within these.

The Group team instructed component ouditors as
ta the significant areos 1o be covered, including the
relevant risks detailed above and the information to
be reported back. The Group team approved the
componen! materialities, which ranged from £0.5m
to £0.9m {2017: £0.1m to £0.9m), having regard to
the mix of size and risk profile of the Group ccross
the components. The work on 1 of the 8 components
{2017: 1 of the 8 components) was performed by
component auditors and the rest, including the oudit
of the porent company, was performed by the Group
team. The Group teom performed procedures on the
items excluded from normelised Group profit before
tax.

The Group team visiled one {2017: one) compornent
location in France (2017 France, same compenent)
ta assess the audit risk and strategy. Telephone
conference meetings were olso held with the
component ouditor. At these visits and meelings, the
findings reported to the Group team were discussed
in mare detail, and any further work required by the
Group teom was then performed by the component
ouditor.

Group Materiolity
€1.1m {2017: £1.1m)

Group profit
before tax”

£28.1m (2017: £23.5m)

£1.1m

Whole finoncial
staternents moteriality
(2017: £1.1m)

EO9m

Range of materiolity

at five components
{£0.5m 1o £0.9m)
{2017: £0.1m 10 £0.8m)

. Group PBT*

£55,000
D Grovp materwoiity

Misstatements reported
to the audit commitiee
{2017: £55,000)

* Group prafit belore tax is normalised to exclude: £2.5m impairment

of Syrthasia Jeint Venture assets, £4.3m impairment of Anti-
mularial intangible ossat and £1.5m profit on disposal of Unigreg
joint Venture os disclosed in note é

The equivalent normaolised Group prolit before tax for 2017 is

narmalised to exclude £5.0m exceptional compensation income, less

ossocioted costs ond impoirment os disclosed in note 4.

%]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT conminued

3. Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit continved

Totat profits and fasses
that made vp Group
profit before tax

Group revenue

i 88%:
", (2017: 88%)

.

"-----"88

BB Fo! scope for Group audit
purposes 2018

{1 95%:
R0V 90%

N

7] Reviews of finonciol
T information {including
enquiry} 2018

171 Full scape for Group audit
©° purposes 2017

D Reviews of linancial
informotion {including
enguiry) 2012

D Residual components

4. We have nothing to report on going
concern

The Diractors hove prepored the financial stolements
on the going toncern bosis os they do nol intend

to liquidate the Company or the Group or to cease
their operalions, ond as they hove concluded that the
Company's ond the Group's tinancial position means
that this is realistic. They have also concluded that
there are no material uncertainties thal could have
cast significant doubt over thair ability to continue

as a going concern for of leost a yeor from the dote
of approval of the financial stolements [“the going
concern period”).

Our responsibility is to conclude an the
appropriateness of the Directors” conclusions and,
had there been a material uncertainty reloted to
going concern, 1o moke reference to that in this oudit
report. However, os we connot predict all future events
or conditions and as subsequent events may result

in outcormes thot are inconsistent with judgements
that were reasonable ol the time they were made, the
absence of reference to o moterial uncertainty in this
oudilor's report is not o guorantee that the Group and
the Company will continue in aperction.

In our evaluation of the Directors’ conclusions, we
considered the inherent risks to the Group's and
Company’s business model and onalysed how

those risks might otfect the Group’s and Company’s
finoncial resources or ability to continue operotions
over the going concern period. The risks that we
considered mosi likely to adversely affect the Group's
and Company's available financial resources over this
period were

- Maorke! compethtion;

- Constroints an supply chain, sourcing and
logistics; and

- Product reguiation - products could foce risk of
status being chollenged or oltered.

As these were risks thot could potentially cost
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company'’s
obilily to conlinue os a going concern, we considered
sensilivities over the level of ovailable financial
resources indicated by the Group's financiol forecosts
toking account of reasonably possible (but not
unrealistic) odverse etfects that could arise from these
risks individuclly and collectively and evaluated the
achievability of the actions the Direclors consider they
would toke to improve the position should the risks
materialise. We also considered less predicioble but
realislic second order impacts, such as the impact of
Brexit on the industry specific regulotions underlying
the Group's and its suppliers” operations which could
resuft in o reduction of avoilabie finonciol resources.

Based on this work, we are required to report to

you if we have concluded that the use of the going
concern basis of accounting is inoppropriate or there
is an undisclosed material uncertointy thot may cast
significant doubt over the use of that basis for o
period of al least o year from the dote of approval of
the financial statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects, and we
did not identify going concern as o key oudit matter.

We have nothing to report on the other
information in the Annual Report

The directors ore responsible for the other information
presented in the Annual Report together with the
financial statements. Qur opinion on the financicl
statements does not cover the other information

and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion
or, excep! as explicitly stated below, any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information
ond, in doing 5o, consider whether, bosed on our
financial stctements audit work, the infermation
therein is matarially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or cur audit knowledge. Based
solely on that work we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Strategic report and directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other information:

~ we hove not identified material misstatements in
the sirategic report arnd the directors’ report;

- in our opinion the informaotion given in those
reports for the financiol year is consistent with the
financial statements; and

- in our opinion those repaorts hove been prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to
report by exception

Under the Componies Act 2006, we are required to
reporl fo you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept
by the parent Company, or returns adeguate for
our audit hove not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

~  ihe parent Company financial statements ore nat
in agreement with the occounting records and
returns; or

- certoin disclosures of directors’ rernuneration
specified by law are nol mode; or

- we have not received cl! the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out

on poge 56, the directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements including
being satisfied thot they give a true and fair view;
such internal conirol as they delermine is necessary
to enoble the preparation of financial stalements that
are frae from material misstotement, whether due

to fraud or error; assessing the Group and parent
Company’s ability to continue os a going concern,
disclosing, as opplicable, matters related to going
concern; ond using the going concern beasis of
accaunting unless they either intend 1o liquidate the
Group or the parent Company or lo cease operations,
or have no reclistic alternotive but to do so.

Auditor’s responsihifities

Our objechives are to obtain reasonoble ossurance
about whether the financiol stetements as a whole
are free from materiol misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error, and 1o issue our opinion in an
auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is o high
level of assurance, but does not guarantee thot on
oudit conducted in accordonce with 1SAs (UK} will
olwoys detect o material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from froud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in oggregate,
they could reasonably be expected fo influence the
economic decisions of ysers taken on the basis of the
financial stotements.

A fuller description of our respansibilities is
provided on the FRC’s website ot www.fre.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our avudit work and to
whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s
members, as a body, in occordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Cornpanies Act 2006, Our audit work
hos been undertaken so thot we might siate to the
Company’s members those motters we are required
to stote to them in an ouditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by low, we do
not accept or assume responsibility o anyone other
thon the Company and the Company’s members, os
o body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

ndrew Campbell-Orde

(Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on beholf of KPMG LLP,
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountonts
&6 Queen Square
Bristol

BS1 48E

26 Morch 2019

65

SIIBWIAIDIG [DDUDULY



66

Alliance Phorma plc
Annuc! Report ond Accounts 2018

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2018

Year ended 31 December 2017

Non- Non-
Underlying Underlying WUnderlying Total
Underlying £000s Yotal £000s £000s £000s
Note £E000s {Note &) E£Q000s restated (Note 6} restated
Revenue 4,34 118,208 - 118,208 101,644 - 101,644
Cost of sales {45,560) - {45,560} [42,496) - {42,496)
Gross profit 72,648 - 72,648 59,148 - 59,148
Operating expenses
Administration and marketing
expenses (41,934) - {41,934} (31,893) - {31,893}
Share-bosed employee
remuneration 8,25 {1,790} - (1,790} (3,453) - {1,453)
Share of joint Veniure profits N 13 - 13 19 - 19
Proft on disposal of Unigreg
Joint Yenture ] - 1,508 1,508 - - -
Impairment and write down of
Synthasia Joint Venture assels 6 - [2,460) {2,460) - - -
Impoirment of Anti-malariol
intangible asset ] - {4,318} (4,318} - - -
Exceptional compensation income - - - - 4,356 4,356
Operating profit 28,937 {5,270} 23,667 25,821 4,356 30172
Finonce costs
Interest payable ond similar chorges 7 {3,457) - {3.457) {3,144) - {3,144}
Change in deferred contingent
consideration 7 1,966 - 1,946 618 - 618
Finance income 7 627 627 638 - 638
{864) - (864) (1,688) - {1,888}
Profit before taxation 28,073 (5,270} 22,803 23,933 4,356 28,289
Texotion (5,491) 1,044 {4,447) 1,305 (764) 541
Profit for the period
attributable to equity
shareholders 22,582 {4,226} 18,356 25,238 3,592 28,830
Earnings per share
Basic ([pence} n 4.54 3469 5.33 6.08
Diluted [pence) 11 4.42 3.60 527 6.02

All of the aclivities of the Group are clossed as conlinuing.

The accompanying occounting policies ond notes form an integral port of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yeor ended

Year ended 31 December

3t December 07

2018 £000s

£000s restated

Profit for the year 18,356 28,830

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Net foreign exchange goin/{loss} on investment in foreign subsidiaries {net of hedged items) 1,701 {1,718)

fnleres! rate swaps — cash flow hedge [net of deferred tox) 113 202

19,570 27.314

Total comprehensive income for the year

&7
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Allionce Pharma plc
Anncal Report ard Accounts 7018

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 December

3t Dacember 2017
2018 £000s
Note £000s restated
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intongible assels 12 335,243 278,623
Property, plant and equipment 13 7,594 5,685
Joint Venture investment 31 - 1,483
Joint Venture receivable 3 - 1,462
Deferred tox 23 1,845 2,174
Other non-current assets 180 229
344,862 289,656
Current assets
Inventories 15 18,706 14,248
Trade ond other receivables 16 29.148 23,695
Caosh and cash equivalents 17 10,893 11,184
58,747 49,127
Total assefs 403,609 338,783
Equiry
Ordinary share capital 24 5,182 4,750
Shaore premium gccount 144,639 110,252
Share opfion reserve 6,121 5,073
Qther reserve (329) {329}
Cash flow hedging reserve 4) ("7
Translation reserve 1,491 390
Retained eornings 95,099 83,089
Total equity 252,199 203,108
Liabilitlies
Nan-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 19 28,667 41,780
QOther liobhilities 20 2,352 5,523
Deferred tox liobility 23 28,663 26,920
Derivotive financial instruments 2 5 63
59,687 74,286
Current liabilities
Loons and borrowings 19 68,035 41,719
Corporation fax 1,457 2,436
Trode ond oiher payables 18 22,23 17,155
Derivative financial instruments 21 - 79
91,723 61,389
Total liabilities 151,410 135,675
403,609 338,783

Total equity and liabilities

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019,

Andrew Franklin
Director Director

The accompaonying accounting policies and notes form on integrat part of these finoncial statements.

Company number 04241478
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

69

31 December 31 Dacember 310 ber 31 D b Y
2018 2018 2017 07
Note £000s £000s £000s £000s
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries 14 184,211 145,46%
Deferred tax asset 194 34
184,405 145,783
Current assets
Trode ond other recaivables 16 29 il
Cash and cash equivalents 17 a3 7
12 92
Total assets 184,517 145,875
Equity
QOrdinary share capital 24 5182 4,750
Share premium account 144,639 110,252
Share oplion reseive 6121 5,073
Retaoined earnings 27,75% 25,052
Total equity 183,693 145,127
Liabilities
Current liobilities
Trade and other payubles 18 221 262
Carporalion fox 603 486
824 748
Total liabilities 824 748 -
Totat equity and Habilltles 184,517 145,875 §
a
The company's profit for the year waos £9,045,000 (2017: £8,399,000). :';.
As permitted by section 40B of the Companies Act 2006, no separate income stotement is presented in respect of the g
Parent Company. 2
"

The financial statements were approved by the Boord of Directars on 26 March 2019.

I S S PV

Peter Butterfield
Director

Andrew Franklin
Director

The occompanying aecounting policies and notes form an integral part of these finoncial statements.

Company number 04241478
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Alliance Pharme plc
Arnugl Report ond Accounts 2018

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ordinory Share Cash How Shore

share  premiuvm Other  hedging Transiation opfion Retoined Total

capital geeount reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings equlty

£000s £000s £000s E£000s £000s £000s £000s £0600s
Balance 1 January 2017
restated 4,726 109,594 {329) {319} 2,108 3,306 59,988 179,074
Issue of shares 24 - - - - - - 24
Share premium - 658 - - - - - 658
Dividend poid - - - - - - {5,729} (5,729)
Share oplions charge
{including deferred tox) - - - - - 1,767 - 1,767
Transochions with owners 24 458 - - - 1,767 (5.729) {3,280}
Profit for the period restoted - - - - - - 28,830 28,830
Other comprehensive
income
Interest rate swaps - cash
flow hedge (net of deferred
tax) - - - 202 - - - 202
Foreign exchange
franslation differences - - - - {1,718} - - (1,718)
YTotal comprehensive
income for the period - - - 202 {1,718} - 28,830 27,314
Balance 31 December 2017 4,750 110,252 {329) {17) 3%0 5,073 83,089 203,308
Balance 1 Jonuary 2018 4,750 110,252 (329} {17 390 5,073 83,089 203,108
lssue of shares 432 - - - - - - 432
Share premium - 34,387 - - - - - 34,387
Dividend poid - - - - - - (6.346]  {6.344)
Share options charge
{inctuding deferred tax} - - - - - 1,048 - 1,048
Transactions with owners 432 34,387 - - - 1,048 (6,346) 29,521
Profit for the period - - - - - - 18,356 18,356
Other comprehensive
income
Inferest rate swops —
cash flow hedge (net of
daferred tox) - - - 13 - - - na
foreign exchange
translotion differences - - - - 1,10 - - 1,100
Total comprehensive 1 . . -
income for the period - - - 133 Loy - 18,356 19,570
Bolance 31 December
2018 5182 144,639 {329) {4) 1,491 6,121 95,099 252,199
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Share
Ordinary premium option Retained Total
share capitol] account reserve earnings equity
£060s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balonce 1 Jonuary 2017 4,726 109,594 3,306 22,382 140,008
tssue of shares 24 - - - - 24
Share premium - 458 - - 658
Dividend paid - - - {5,729) {5,729
Share options charge {including deferred tax} - - 1,767 - 1,767
Transactions with owners 24 658 1,767 (5,729 (3,280}
Profit for the period and total comprehensive
income - - - 8,399 8,399
Bolance 31 December 2017 4,750 110,252 5,073 25,052 145,127
Balance 1 January 2018 4,750 110,252 5,073 25,052 145,127
Issue of shares 432 - - - 437
Share premiym - 34,387 - - 34,387
Dividend poid - - - 6,348) [6,346)
Share options charge (including deferred 1ax} - - 1,048 - 1,048
Transactions with awners 432 34,387 1,048 (6,346} 29,521
Profit for the period ond total comprehensive
income - - - 2045 2,045
Balance 3t December 2018 5,182 144,639 6,121 27,751 183,693

n

SILIWDIE |HIIUDIY



72

Alliance Pharma plc
Annuel Report and Accounts 2018

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Group Company
Year ended
Yeor ended 31 Yeorended Yeorended
31 December N n
December 2007 D b Decemb
2018 £000s 2018 207
Note £000s restated £000s £000s
Cash Hows from operating uctivities
Cash generated from operotions 26 26,11 30,765 (867} (367)
Tox paid (3,941) (3,728} {686} {51)
Cash flows from/{used in) operoting octivities 22,170 27,037 {1,553} {418)
Investing activities
Interest received 36 104 - -
Dividend received - - 5,600 51
Investiment in subsidiory 14 - - (32,507) {275)
Development expenditure 12 {43) [45%) - -
Purchose of property, plont and equipment 13 [2,891) {2,236} - -
Repayment of loan to Joint Venture on disposal 32 1,426 154 - -
Proceeds from disposcl of Joint Venture Investment 32 2,194 - - -
Exceptional compensalion income é 1,000 4,000 - -
Consideration on acquisitions (60,307) {15,314 - -
Paymen! of deferred ond contingent considerotion on
acquisitions {500} {2,161} - -
Net cosh [used in)/from investing octivities [(59.083) (15,912} (26,9207} 5,444
Financing activities
Interest paid ond simdar chorges (3,197) {2,678} - -
Loan issue costs {362) {80} - -
Capitol lease payments (512} {374) - -
Net proceeds from issue of shares 32,755 - 32,755 -
Proceeds from exarcise of share oplions 2,063 682 2,063 6872
Dividend paid {6,348) (5,729} {6,346} {5.729)
Proceeds from borrowings 28,0600 16,000 - -
Repayment of borrowings {15,813} {14,730} - -
Net cash received from/{used in) financing activities 36,588 (6,909 28,472 {5,047)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (325) 4,216 12 119
Cash and cosh equivalents at 1 Janvary 11,184 7.2 71 90
Exchange gains/{losses) on cosh and cash equivatents 34 (253} - -
Cash and cosh equivalents at 31 December 17 10,893 11,184 83 71

The occomponying accounting policies ond notes form an integral part of these financiol stotements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the yeor ended 31 December 2018

1. General information

Alliance Pharmao plc {'the Company’) and its subsidiories (fogether ‘the Group’) acquire, market and distribute
pharmaceutical and other medical products. The Company is o public limited company, limited by shares, registered,
incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address of its registered office is Avonbridge House, Both Road,
Chippenham, Wiltshire, 5415 288. The Campony is listed on the AIM stock exchange.

These consolidated financia! statements have been approved for issue by the Boord of Directors on 26 March 2019.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal occounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies hove been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These finoncigl stolements have been prepared in accordance with International Finoncial Reparting $tandards as
cdopted by the EU (‘Adopted IFRS'). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
with the exception of derivatives ond contingent considerolion which are included ot fair value.

2.2 New standords adopted by the Group

The Group hos applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, IFRS 16 Leoses and IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments for the first lime for the annuol reporting period commencing 1 fonuary 2018. The Group has made
changes to its accounting policies and included certain refrospective adiusiments following the adoption of IFRS 9,
IFRS 15 ond IFRS 14. These are disclosed in note 3.

2.3 Consolidation

The Group finoncio! statements consolidate thase of the Company and its subsidiaries [together referred to as the
‘Group’| and equity account the Group’s interest in Joint Veniures. The parent Company financial statements present
information about the Compeny as o separate entity ond not about the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
vorioble returns from its invelvement with the enlity ond has the obility to offect those returns thraugh its power over the
entity. In assessing control, the Group tokes into consideration potential voting rights. The acquisition date is the date
on which control is transferred to the acquirer. The financial stalements of subsidiaries ore included in the consotidated
financiol statements from the date that conirol commences unti! the date that control ceases.

Joint Ventures

An entily is treated os a Joint Venture where the Group hos rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than
rights to its assets and obligetions for its liabilities. Joint Ventures are accounted for using the equity method [{equity
accounted investees} and are initielly recognised al cost. The consclidated financial stolements include the Group's
share of the total comprehensive income and equity movements of equity accounted investees, from the dote that joint
controf commences unlil the date thal joint contral ceases. See note 31 for details of Joint Ventures.

Transactions eliminated on consolidotion
latra-group balances ond transoctions, ond any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-groug transactions,
are eliminated.

3
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Allicnce Phorme ple
Annua! Report ond Accounts 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuep

for the yeor ended 31 December 2018

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.4 Judgements and estimates

The preparation of the consalidated financial statements requires the Direclors to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that offect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets ond liobilities, income and expenses.
The esfimales ond ossociated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the relevant circumstonces. Actual resulls may differ from these esfimotes.

The estimates and underlying assumptions aore reviewed by the Directors on an on-going basis. Revisions fo accounting
estimates are recognised in accordonce with |AS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Judgements

The following are the crilicat judgemaents, apart from those involving estimaotes (which are dealt with separctely below),
that the Direclors hove made in the process of opplying the Group’s accounting policies that have the most significant
effect an the omounts recognised in the Group's finonciol statements.

These are as follows:
*  selection of indefinite useful economic lives for certain intangible assets {note 12};
*  ossessment of joint control for the Group's Joint Ventures [note 31); and

* |dentification and presentation of non-underlying tems [note 4)

Estimates

1AS 1 requires the disclosure of assumptions ond estimotes af the end of the current reporting period that hove a
significant sisk of resulting in o moterial adjustment to the carrying omounts of assels and liabilities within the next
financial yeor.

The Directors consider these estimates fo be as follows:

* key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projechions for impairment testing of certoin intangible assets
{note 12); and

* Forecasts and key assumptions used in colculation of contingent consideration [note 21

2.5 Revenue recognition
As explained in note 2.2 above, the Group has updoted its accounting policy for Revenue in line with IFRS 15 Contracts
with Customers. The new policy is described below and the impacl of the chonge in note 3.

Identification of performance obligations

Revenue comprises considarotion received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities, namely the distribution of pharmaceutical products. The Group also receives royalties in relation to cerlain
agreements with distributors in exchonge for the licensed use of intellectual property and irademorks owned by the
Group, which ore generclly bosed on sales volumes. The Group has assessed the performance obligations os being
each unit of good sold either by the Group or by o distributor.

Transaction price

The tronsaction price for eoch performance obligation comprises the stand-clone seling price for the product
excluding volue-added tax and net of rebates {including the Pharmaceutical Price Regulation Scheme [PPRS)} and
discounts. Intra-group sales are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Royalty income ond the deductions relating to rebates and discounts are bosed on the Group’s contractuol obligations.
Certain of the royalty and rebate arrangements also include elements of variable considerotion. The Group does not
consider these elements to be significani, however an estimate of veriable consideration is included where appropriate.

The PPRS applies to branded, licensed medicines which ore availoble on NHS prescription. A rebate of 4.75% (2017:
7.80%) is payable to the Department of Health {DHSC) on sales in scope of the scheme.

The Group has considered whether it is on ‘ogent’ or "principa!’ under IFRS 15 for each commerciol arrangement and
accounted for these occordingly.
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Timing of recognition

Under IFRS 15 on enlity recagnises revenue when it satisfies o performonce obligation by transferring a good to o
customer. An entfity tronsfers a good to o customer when the customer oblains control of that good. Centrol may
be translerred either at a point in time or over time. For the Group, revenue is recognised at a paint in time when
customers have contro! of the sold goods, or on an appropricte basis where royalty or other arrangements are in
place with third parties.

Specific revenue streams
The Group hos the following recognition policies for different commercial arrangements.

{if Pharmoceutical product soles - ex-works terms: Recognition of a point in fime when each unit of pharmacgeuticol
produet is ovailable to the customer for collection.

{h} Pharmaceutical product sales ~ dispaich terms: Recognition at o point in fime when each unil of pharmaceuticol
product is dispaiched to the customer.

{iii) Phormoceutical product royolties receivable: Recognition at @ point in fime when the third-porty mokes
pharmaceutical product soles subject to o royalty agreement with the Group.

fiv) Pharmaceutical product rebotes payable {including PPRS): Recognition as o deduction from revenue when the third-
party makes pharmacautical product soles subject to a rebote agreement with the Group or when sales are made
in the scope of the PPRS.

{i} Phormaceuticol product fransitionol ogreements: Recognition a paint in time when the third party makes
phormocevticol product soles subject to o transitional cgreement with the Group.

The amount recognised represents the product margin generoted by the third porty on beholf of the Group. Reloted
transitional agreement fees ore recognised within odministrative expenses. This is relevont to the Nizoral acquisition
[note 34} where the Group is an ‘agent’ in the relationship with J&J.

The Group does not consider that judgements made in eveluating when customers oblain control of o promised good
1o have significontly influenced the timing of revenue recognition in the yeor.

2.6 Foreign currency

The consolidated financial statements ore presentad in Sterling, which is the presentational currency of the Group
and the functional currency of the Company. Foreign currency transactions by Group companies are booked at the
exchange rote ruling on the date of the fransaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are retransloted
into Sterling ot the rate of exchange ruling at the bolance sheet date. Foreign exchange ditferences orising on
translation are recognised in the income statement except for differences arising on the retranslation of a financicl
Lability designoted as o hedge of the net investment in o foreign operoation thot is eHective, or qualifying cash flow
hedges, which are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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The assels and liobilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation,
are transltated to the Group's presentahonal currency, Sterling, at foreign exchange rotes ruling ot the balance sheet
date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are transloted ot an overage role for the year where this rate
opproximates ta the foreign exchange rates ruling of the dotes of the transactions, Exchange difterences arising from
this translation of foreign operotions are reported as an item of other comprehensive income and accumutated in the
translation reserve. Foreign currency differences orising on the retranslation of a hedge of o net invesiment in a foreign
operalion are recognised directly in equity, in the tronslation reserve, to the extent that the hedge is efective.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Computer software and equipment, fixtures, fittings and equipment, plent ond machinery and motor vehicles are
stated ot the cost of purchase less any provisions for depreciation ond impairment. The rates generatly opplicable are:

Computer software and equipment 20% - 33.3% per onnum, straight line
Fixtures, fitings ond equipment 20% -~ 25% per annum, skraight line
Plont and mochinery 20% - 25% per annum, straight line

Motor vehicles 20% per annum, straight line
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2.8 Leases
The Group has eorly adopied IFRS 14 Leases using the retrospective approach. The impaci of the chenge is disclosed
in note 3.

At incephion of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or conloins, o lease. A coniract is, or conlains,
a lease if the coniroct conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Leases are recognised as a righi-of-use ossat and o corresponding liability ot the date at which the leased asset is
avoilable for use by the Group. Each leose payment is ollocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost
is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so os to produce a constant pericdic rote of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each pericd. The right of use osset is depreciated over the shorter of the osset's useful fife
ond the lease ferm on a stroight-line basis.

Assels and liabilities arising from o lease are initiolly measured on a present value basis. The lease poyments are
discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rale.

Payments associoted with short-ferm leases and leases of low-value assels are recognised on o straight-line bosis os an
expense in the income stalement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise of IT-equipment.

2.9 Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill

Goodwill is stoted at cost less any occumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment.

Acquired intangible assets
{i} Bronds

Sepuarately acquired brands ore shawn at cost less accumuloted omortisation ond impoirment. Brands acquired
as part of o business combination are recognised ot fair value at the ocquisition dole, where they are separately
identifiable. Brands are omortised over their useful economic life, except when their life is determined as being
indefinite.

Applying indefinite lives fo certain acquired brands is appropriote due to the stoble long-term nalure of the
business and the enduring nature of the brands. Indefinite lile bronds are tested of least annually for impoairment.

A review of the useful economic life of brands is performed onnually, to ensure thal these fives are still appropriate.
If o brand is considered to have o finite life, its carrying value is omortised over that period.

{ii} Patents

Where an acquired intangible includes a definite period of potent protection end the volue atiribuled fo the patent
is considered material, the Group has accounted for the value of the poleni separate to the underlying brand. The
patent is amortised over the period to patent expiry.

(i} Distribution rights
Payments made in respect of product registration and distribution rights are capitalised where the rights comply
with the above requirements for recognition of acquired bronds. If the registrotion oc distribution rights are for a
defined time period, the intangible osset 1s omorlised aver thot period. i no time period is defined, the intangible
asset is treated in the some way os acquired brands with an indefinite life. If the licence period can be extended the
useful life of the intongible asset shall include the renewnl period only if there is evidence lo support renewal by the
entity without disproportionate cost.
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Development costs

Research expenditure is charged o the inceme stalement in the period in which it is incurred. Development expenditure
is capitalised when it con be reliably meosured and the project it is atiributable io is separalely identifiable, is
technically feasibls, demonstrotes fiure economic benefit, ond will be used or sold by the Group once completed,

The capitalised cost is amortised over the period during which the Group is expected to benefit and begins when the
osset is ready for use.

Development costs are reviewed of least annually for impairment by assessing the recoverable amount of each
cash-generaling unit, to which the development costs relate. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

Development costs not meeling the recognition eriteria are expensed os incurred.

impairment

The carrying omounts of the Group’s non-financic! assets are reviewed ot each reporting dote to delermine whether
there is any indication of impoirment. If any such indication exists, then the osset's recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwill, and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet ovailable for use, the recoverable
omount is estimoted each year af the same time.

The recovercbie amount of an assel or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and s foir value less costs
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimoated fulure cash flows are discounted to their present value using o discount
rate that reflects current market ossessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assel. For the
purpose of impairment festing, asseis thol cannot be tested individuolly are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generotes cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or groups of ossels {the ‘cash-generating unit’}. The Directors have determined that the cash-generating units are ot
product-group fevel.

The goodwill acquired in a business combsnation, for the purpose of impairment testing, is ollocoted to cash-
generating units, or {"CGU"). For the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been
allccated are oggregaied so that the level ot which impoirment is 1ested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in o business combination is allecated to groups of
CGUs thot are expecied to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impaoirment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an osset or its CGL exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impoirment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocoted first to reduce the carrying amoaunt of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the corrying
amounts of the other ossats in the unit [group of units) on o pro rata basis.

An impairmen! loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respeci of other assets, impairment losses recognised in
prior periods ore assessed at each reporting dote for any indications that the loss hos decreased or no longer exists.
An impairmenl loss is reversed if there has been o change in the estimotes used to determine tha recoverable omount.
An impoirment loss is reversed only to the extent thal the asset’s carrying amoun! does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciotion or amarfisotion, if no impoirment loss had been recognised.

Impairments are clossified os underlying when they relale ic the normal trading octivities of the Group. This would
include impairments resulting from generol decline in long term forecasts due to commerciol faciors. Impairments are
classified os non-underlying when they ore significant and one-off in noture, which may be due 1o factors outside the
Group’s control, and therefore do not reflect normal trading performance. An example of a charge clossified os non-
underlying is the anti-malariol impaoirment incurced during the year [note 6).

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are included of the lower of cost, less any provision For impairment, or net realisoble volue. Cost is
determined on a first-in-first-out basis. Inventary provisians have been made for slow moving and obsolete stock.
These provisions ore estimates and the actual costs ond timing of future cash flows are dependent on future events.
The difference between expectations and the actual future liabikity will be accaunted for in the period when such
determination is mode.
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2.11 Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current ond deferred tox. Tox is recognised in the income statement
excep! to the extent that it relates 10 items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equily.

Current tax is the expected tax payable ar receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tox rales enacted
or substantively enacted ot the bolance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payoble in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on emporory differences belween the carrying amounts of assets and liobilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for foxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided
for: the initio! recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of ossets or liabilities thot offect neither accounting nor
taxable profit other than in a businegss combination, ond differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tox provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of ossets and liabilities, using tox rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the bolance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised conly to the extent that it is probable that future toxable profits will be ovailable
agaoinst which the iamparory difference can be utilised.

The Group has early adopted IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treaimenis’, ohead of its effective date of
1 January 2019 and meosured tox provisions under the requirements of the new standord.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments ond hedging activities

interest rate risk

Derivative financial instruments ore used to manage expasure to market risk from treasury operations, The financial
instrument used by the Group is interest role swops. The Group does not hold or issue derivalive finoncial insiruments
for trading or speculotive purposes. Derivofive finoncial insiruments are recognised in the bolonce sheet of foir volue
and then re-measured of subsequent reporting dotes. The foir value is calculated by reference to market interest rates
and supported by counterporty confirmaliorn.

The interest rote swaps ore designoted as cash flow hedges. The Group has determined an economic relotionship
exists between the hedge instrument (interest rate swaps) and hedged iterm (bonk loons). This is because the volue of
fhese move in oppesite directions with changes to the relevant interest rate benchmark. The Group determines the
hedge ratio based on the relevant quantities of the hedging instrument and hedged item.

The effeclive portion of chonges in the fair volue of derivative financial instruments that ore designated as cash
flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income, while the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognised immediotely in the income statement. The sources of hedge ineffactiveness ore differences in the key
terms of the hedging instrument and hedged item, and credit risk. Chonges in the fair value of derivative finoncial
instruments that are not designated os cash flow hedges ore recognised in the income statement os they arise.

Translation risk

Exchange differences orising from the translation of the net invesiment in foreign operations are recognised directly

in equity. Gains and losses on those hedging instruments designated as hedges of the net investment in foreign
operations, are recognised in equity to the extent thot the hedging relationship is effective; these emounts are included
in exchange differences on tronslation of foreign operations os stated in the statement of comprehensive income.
Goeins and losses relaling to hedge inefecliveness are recognised immediately in the income statement for the period.
Goins and losses accumulated in the franslotion reserve are reclassified o the income statement when the foreign
investment is disposed of.

2.13 Non-derivative finoncial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investrments in equity and debt securities, trode ond other receivables,
cosh and cash equivalents, loans ond borrowings, and irade and other payobles.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivobles are recognised inificlly at foir value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured
al amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment josses. The Group’s trade receivables

are subject to the IFRS 9 expected credit loss model. The Group has applied the simplified opprooch to measuring
expected credit losses which uses o fifelime expected loss allowonce bosed on historic defoult rates.
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Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially ot fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at
amortised cosi using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cosh and cash equivalents comprise cash balonces and call deposits. Bank overdrafts thot are repayable on demand
ond form on integrol part of the Group’s cash management are included as o component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose only of the cash flow statement. Dividends and interest received are included in investing activities.
Dividends and inlerest paid are included in financing octivities.

investments in debt and equity securities
The Company’s investment in subsidiories s stated at amortised cost less impgirment.

interest-bearing borrowings

interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially ot fair volue Jess ottributable tronsaction costs. Subsequent te
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings ore stoted ot omorctised cost using the eMective interest method, less
any impairment losses.

2.14 Employee benefits - Share-based payment transactions

Shore-based payment arrangements in which the Group receives goods or services os considerotion for its awn

equity instruments are accounted for os equity-setiled share-based poyment transactions, regordiess of how the equity
instruments are oblained by the Group. The entirety of the share-based payment charge is rechorged to subsidiaries
by the Company.

The grant date fair value of share-based poyment awords granted lo employees is recognised as an employee
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled
to the awards. The fair value of the options gronted is measured using on option voluation model, taking inte account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actuo! number of owards for which the related service ond non-market vesting conditions are expected to
be met, such that the amount ultimotely recognised as an expense is bosed on the number of owards that do meat the
related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For share-bosed poyment awords with
non-vesting conditions, the gront date fair volue of the share-bosed payment is measured to reflect such conditions
and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actua! cutcomes.

2.15 Equity
Equity comprises the following for both the Company and Group:

‘Share capitol’ represents the nominal value of equity shares.

‘Share premium’ represants the excess over nominal value of the fair value of consideration received for equity shares,
net of expenses of the share issue.

‘Share aption reserve’ represents equity-setiled shore-bosed employee remuneration,

‘Retoined earnings’ represants relained profit.

Also included in Group equity is:

‘Other reserve’ reprasents the difference between the fair valve ond nominal value of shares issued on a reverse takeover.
‘Cosh flow hedging reserve’ rapresents the fair volue of derivative finoncial instruments al the bolance sheat date thot are
designated as cash flow hedges net of deferred tux, less amounts reclossified through other comprehensive income.

“Tronslation reserve’ reprasents gains ond losses arising on tronslation of the net assets of overseas operations into
the Group's presentation currency of Sterling.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as o result of o post event, for which
it is prabable that o ironsfer of economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and where o reliable estimate
con be made of the omount of the obligation.

Where material, the provisions have been discounted to their present value.
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2.17 Business combinations

Business combinafions are accounted for using the acquisition occounting method. Identifiable ossels and liobilities
acquired are meosured al foir volue of acquisition date. Costs related to the ocquisition, other than those associated
with the issue of debl or equity securities, are expensed os incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration
is clossified as equily, if is not remeasured ond seltlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent
changes ta the fair value of the contingent considerofion are recognised in profit or loss.

2.18 Going concern

The current rate of cash generation by the Group comfortably exceeds the capital and debt servicing needs of the
business. The Boord remains confident that all the bonk covenants will continue 1o be met and the Group will be able 1o
maeet its working capital needs for of least the next 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

The Group is in a net current Kobility position of £33.0m (2017: £12.2m)} principally due to current bonk loans of
£68.5m (2017: £42.0m), ond in porticulor the drown Revolving Credit Focility 'RCF’) of £58.5m (2017: £34.0m). The
Group is compliant with all the terms of the RCF, including covenonts and there is no reeson not to expect the RCF to
be rolled over on expiry.

The Board maintains regular diclogue with the Group’s bank facility providers ond have confidence the current bank
loans can be rolled over for at least the next 12 manths, It is expected the Groug’s bank facility will be refinanced
during the course of 2019 os it is due fo expire in November 2020.

After making enguiries, the Directors ore confident that there is reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This included specific consideration of potential
implications from Brexit, os detailed in the principol risks and uncertainties section of the Strategic Repori. The Directors
hove therefore determined it is oppropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements,

2.19 Alternuative Performance Measures

The performance of the Group is assessed using Alternctive Performance Measures {'APMs'). The Group's resulls are
presented both before and aefler non-underiying items. Adjusted profitobility measures ore presented excluding non-
underlying items as we believe this provides both management and invasiors with usefui additional information about
the Group's performance and aids a more effective comparison of the Group’s trading performance from one period
to the next and with similor businesses.

In addition, the Group's results are described using certain other measures that are not defined under IFRS ond are
therefore considered to be APMs. These measures are used by manogement to monitor ongoing business performance
ogainst both shorter term budgets ond forecasts bul also agoinst the Groups longer lerm strotegic plons. APMs are
presenied in Note 34. “
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3. Changes in accounting policies

This is the first set of the Group’s financiol stotements where IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Custorners, IFRS 16
Leases and IFRS 9 Finonciol Instruments have been applied. The impact of these changes in accounting policies are
described below. Each of these changes hos no impoct on the Company’s financial slatemants.

3.1 Impact on the financial statements
As a result of the adoptlion of IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 the prior yeor comparatives hove been restoted. Adoption of IFRS 9
had no impact on the prior year compaoratives as described in section 3.4,

Consolidatad Income Statement

81

Effect of Etfect of
2017 before IFRS 135 IFRS 16 2017 post
ediustments  odjustments  adjustments  adjustments
£000s £000s £0003 E000s
Revenue 103,315 {1,671} - 101,644
Cost of sales (44,354) 1,858 - {42,496}
Gross profit 58,961 187 - 59,148
Operoting expenses
Adrministration and marketing expenses (31,706} (187} - [31.893)
Share-based employee remuyneration (1,453} - - {1,453}
Shore of Joint Venture profits 19 - - 19
Exceplional compensalion income 4,356 - - 4,356
-Spernﬂng profit 30,177 - - 30177
Finance costs
Irerest payable and similar cherges (3,064} - [80) {3,144)
Change in deferred conlingent consideration 618 - - 618
Finonce income 638 - - 638
{1,808) - {80) (1,888}
Profit before taxation 28,369 - {80) 28,2689 -
Foxation 541 - - 5431 sg—
Profit for the period attributable 1o equity '.-‘-
shareholders 28,910 - {80} 28,830 by
Earnings per share ::;
Basic (pance) 6.10 6.08 E
w

piluted (pence) 6.03 6.02
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3.1 Impact on the financial statements continved

Summary Consolidated Balance Sheet - 31 December 2017

Adaption of IFRS 15 had no impact on the 31 December 2017 balance sheet os described in section 3.2.

31 December EHect of 3| December

2017 hefore IFRS 16 2017 post
odjustments adjustments adiusiments
£000s £000s £000s
Assets
Non-current ossets
Other nan-current assets 283,971 - 283,97
Property, plant and equipment 3,377 2,308 5,685
287,348 2,308 289,656
Current assets 49127 - 49,127
Total assets 336,475 2,308 338,783
Equity
Qther equity reserves 114,946 - 114,946
Share option reserve 5,073 - 5073
Retained eornings 83,358 [269) 83,089
Total equity 203,377 {269) 203,108
Liobilities
Non-current liobilities
Other non-current hiabilities ' 468,763 - 48,783
Other liabilities 3,525 1,998 5,523
72,288 1,998 74,286
Current liabilities
OQther current liabilities 41,798 - 41,798
Corporafion tox 2,436 - 2,436
Trade and ather payobles 16,576 579 17,155
60,810 579 61,389
Total liabilities 133,098 2,577 135,675

Total equity and liabilities 336,475 2,308 338,783
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Summary Consolidated Balance Sheet - 1 Jonuary 2017

Adoption of IFRS 15 had no impoct on the 3 Jonuary 2017 balance sheet as described in section 3.2.

1 January Etfect of 1 Jonuary
2017 befere IFRS 18 2017 pest
di ] } ents adjustments
£000s £300s £000s
Assets
Non-current assets
Qther non-current assets 269,648 - 269,648
Froperty, plont and equipment 1,804 2,672 4,478
271,454 2,672 274,126
Current assels 49,283 - 49,283
Total assets 320,737 2,672 323,409
Eguity
Other equity reserves 115,780 - 115,780
Share option reserve 3,306 - 3.306
Retoined earnings 60,177 {189 59,988
Total equity 179,263 {189} 179,094
Liabilities
Non-current liohilities
Cher non-current liabififies 89,380 - 89,380
Oiher liobilities 1,817 2,408 4,225
1,197 2,408 93,605
Current liabilities
Other current liabilities 25,782 - 25,782
Corporohion tax 2,543 - 2,043
Trade and other poyables 21,952 453 22,405
50,277 453 50,730
Yotal liabilities 141,474 2,861 144,335
Totol equity and liabilities 320,737 2,672 323,409
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3. Changes in accounting policies continued

3.1 Impact on the financial statements continued

Summary Consalidated Cashflow statement

Adoption of IFRS 15 had no impact on the 2017 cashfiow statement os described in section 3.2 below.

Etfect of
2017 before IFRS 16 2017 post
odjustments djust L} dj s
£000s £000s £000s

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit after taxation 28,349 [80]j 28,289
Other odjusting items (3.232} - {3,232)
Interest payoble and sirilar charges 3,064 80 3,144
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 657 454 1.an
Share based employee remuneration 1,453 - 1,453
Cash generated from cperations 30,31 454 30,765
Tax poid {3,728) - {3,728)
Cash flows received from operating activities 26,583 454 27,037
Cash flows received froem Investing activities {15,912) - {15.912)
Financing activities
Interest paid {2.678) {80} (2.758)
Copital leose payments - (374} {374)
Other financing cashflows (3.777) - (3,777}
Net cash received used in financing activities {6.455) (454} 16,909)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 4,216 - 4,216

3.2 Adoption of IFRS 15 Revenve from Conlracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers was adopted by the Group on 1 January 2018, IFRS 15 is a converged
standard from the 1ASB and FASB on revenue recognition. The stondard aims to improve the financiol reporting of
revenue and improve comparability of the top line in financiol stotements globally. it introduces a five-step model to
determine the noture, iming ond emount of revenue recognised. These steps are:

« ldentify contracts with customers

+ ldentify the separate performance obligotion

» Determine the transaction price of the contract

« Aliocate the tronsaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and

= Recognise the revenue as each perfarmance obligation is satisfied

The Group hos opted to opply the refrospective approach under IFRS 15 meaning the prior period has been restated
te show the impact of adoption from 1 Januory 2017, During the comprehensive analysis undertoken os port of the
Group’s transitional review certain rebates were identified within Cost of sales. These have been reclassitied against
Revenue on transitien to IFRS 15. In addition, certoin Administration expenses were reclassified to Cost of soles.

The adjustments are shown in the column “Effect of IFRS 15 adjustments’ and are presentational within the Income
Statement anly, They have no effact on reporied profit or equity for the Group.

3.3 Adoption of IFRS 16 Leuses

IFRS 16 Leoses was adopted by the Group on 1 January 2018. The new standard requires lessees to recognise a lease
liobility reflecting future lease poyments and a ‘right-of-use’ asset for virtuclly all lease contracts, excluding cerlain
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group hos applied the retrospective opproach which restates
compurative informotion as if IFRS 16 has always opplied.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liobilities in relation to leoses which had previously been
clossified os ‘operating leases’ under the principles of 1AS 17. These liabilities were meosured at the present value
of the remaining leose payments, discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rote. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rote opplied fo the lease liobilities is 3.0%. The associoted right-of-use ossets for leases have
been measured on o retrospeclive basis.
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3.4 Adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 reploces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement of financiol
assets and financial licbilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impeairment of financial ossets and

hadge accounting.

Classification ond meoasurement

On 1 Jonuary 2018 (the date of initial opplication of IFRS 9), the Group's monagement has assessed the financial
assats held by the Group ond has classified these into the oppropriate IFRS 9 categories. This has resulted in
Cash and cosh equivalents and Trode and other receivables being re-designoted to ‘Amortised cost’ from "Loons
ond receivobles’.

The Group's liabilities classified under "Other financial liobilities’ remoin consistently designated on adoption of IFRS 9.

Consistent with 1AS 39, under IFRS 9 the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivative financicl instruments
that are designated as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income, while the gain or [oss relating to
the ineffective porfion is recognised immediotely in the Income Statement.

The Group’s derivatives continue to qualify as cosh flow hedges ond no changes to clossificalion or measurement are
required under IFRS 9. The derivatives ore clossified under ‘Derivolive financial instruments’.

impairment of financial assets

The Group's Irade receivables ore subject to the IFRS 9 expected credi loss model. The Group has applied the
simplified approoch to measuring expected credit losses which uses o lifetime expected loss allowance based on
historic defoult rates, No additionol IFRS 9 expected credit loss provision has been recognised from this change in
occounting policy.

4. Revenve
Revenue information by brand
Year ended
Year ended 31 Dacember
3t December 2017
2018 £000s
£00Q0s restated
International Star brands:
Kelo-cote 22,467 13,340 7
Nizoral® 5,037 - i
MacuShield 6,982 6,580 s
Vamousse 5,756 125 E
Xonvea 204 - §
40,446 20,045 2
Local brands:
Flamma Franchise 7.858 7974
Alocltar 7,207 5,692
Hydromol 6,671 6,819
Forceval 3.874 3,543
Hoemopressin 2,702 3,145
Optiflo 2,645 2,538
Qxyplastine 2,640 2,512
Ashton & Porsons 2,225 2,005
Ametop 2,18 1M
Other Local brands 39,759 47,270
77,762 81,599
Tetal Revenue (from contracts with customers) 118,208 101,644

Nizaral is shown on a net profit basis in tiotutory revenue. Nizoral revenue presented on a see-through income statement basis is inclyded
as on alfernotive performance measure in Note 34,
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4, Revenue continued
Revenue information by geogrophy

Yeor ended

Year ended 31 Pecember

31 December 2017

2038 £0060s

£000s restated

UK and Republic of ireland 52,266 54,899
Mainland Europe 25,386 20,327
International including USA 40,556 26,418
Total Revenue 118,208 101,644

Magjor customers

The revenue from the Group’s two largest customers is os follows. One customer separately comprised 10% or more of

revenye (2017: two}.

Yeor ended
Yeor ended 31 December
31 December 2017
2018 £000s
EDOOs rastoted
Mojor customer ! 22,135 22,542
Major customer 2 %178 10,597
31,313 33,139
5. Profit before taxation
Year ended
Year ended 31 December
31 December 2017
2018 €000s
Profit before taxation is stated ofter charging/(crediting): £000s restated
Amounis receivable by the Company’s auditor ond its associotes in respect of
- The audit of these financial statemenis 36 26
- The audit of the finoncial statements of subsidiories 141 105
- Corporate finance services 114 57
~ Other assurance services 5 3
Amortisation of intongible assets n 276
Impairment of intangible assets 6,244 507
Share options charge 1,790 1,453
Oepreciatian of plant, propertly ond equipment 1,335 1,
Resesarch and development 131 169
Gain on foreign exchange transoctions (575) (534)
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6. Non-underlying items

Non-underlying items are those significant items which the Directors have judged, by their nature, are not related to
the normal trading activities of the Group. They are therefore separately disclosed as their significont, non-recurring
nature does not ollow a true understanding of the Graup's underlying financial performance. This ossessment requires
judgement to be applied by the Direclors as to which transactions ore non-underlying and whether this classification
enhances the understanding of the users of the financial statements.

Yeor ended Year anded

31 Detember 31 Dacember

2018 2007

£000s £000s

Unigreg loint Venture profit on disposal 1,508 -
Impairment ond write down of Synthasia Joint Venture assets {2,450} -
Impairment of Anti-malsrial intangible asset (4,318} -
Exceptional compensation income, less associated costs and impairment - 4,356
Total non-underlying items before taxation {5,270 4,356
Taxation 1,044 (764)
Total non-underlying items after taxation {4,226} 3,592

in April 2018 the Group sold its 0% interest in Unigreg Limited to its joint venture partner, Pacific Glory Development
Limited, for a consideration of £2.9m. The Group profit on disposal was £1.5em net of fees [note 32).

in Moy 2018 the Group was notified that the import licence pariner was not going 1o receive the required approval

to import Suprememil, the infont milk formula brand owned by Synthasia. Foflowing subsequent discussions with

the import licence partner and Synthosia management, the Board has concluded to fully impoir the joint venture
investment of £0.3m and to fully provide for the associoted receivobles balonces of £2.2m. This generotes o non-cash,
non-underlying impoirment charge ond receivables pravision of £2.5m.

Sales of onti-malarial products fell to £0.7m in 2018 (2017: £1.3m) due o competition in the UK markel. In mid-August
2018, Alliance was notified by the manufacturer of these products of its intention to cecse supply due to lower volumes.
Abter due consideration, the Boord hos concluded that, due to the decline in demond, it is not economic to transfer the
product to an alternatliva manufacturer and thercfore it is appropriole to write down the value of ilwe £4.3in intangible
asset associoted with these products in full. Alliance acquired the onti-malarial products in 2012, since which time they
have generated a cumulative gross profit of £6.3m. This ocquisition also served as our strotegic entry point into Europe
through the establishment of our French offiliate.

In Morch 2017, the Group reached o settlement agreement with Sincloir Phorma ple, in connection with the malerial
reduction of businass in Kelo-stretch, which was acquired in 2015, The terms of the ogreement inciuded o sum

of £5.0m of which £4.0m wos received in April 2017 ond £1.0m wos received in June 2018, This settlement fess
associoted costs and impairment are shown as non-underlying items.
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7. Finance costs

Year ended
Year ended 31 December
31 December 2017
2013 £000s
£000s restated
Interest payable and similar charges
On loans and overdrafis {2,964) {2,719}
Amortised finance issue costs (384) (303}
Unwinding of discount on daferred and contingent consideration {35) (42}
interest on ieose ligbilities {74} (80}
{3,457) {3,144;
Change in fair value of cantingent consideration 1,966 618
Finance income
Interest income 52 104
Foreign exchange goin 575 534
627 638
Finance costs - net {864) {1,888)

Unwinding of discount on deferred and conlingent consideration is in respect of amounts payoble from the Macuhealth

and Vomousse ocquisitions.

The current yeor decrease in contingent considerotion relates to changes in the original estimated amounts payoble for
the acquisiiion of the Vamousse brand. The previous year decrease in contingent consideration relotes to changes in
the original estimated amaounts poyable for the acquisitions of MacuVision ond Nutraceutical brands. These changes
are caused by revisions to financial forecosts following acquisitions and are not considered fo be measurement

period adjustmenis.

The unwinding of discount and change in fair velue of contingent consideration relate to liabilities held at fair velue
through profit and oss. All of the remaining finance costs orise from ossets and liabilities held ot omortised cost.

8. Directors and employees

Empioyee benefit expenses for the Group (including Directors) during the year were as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 207
£000s £000s
Woages and solories 12,990 11,102
Social security coslts 2,453 2100
QOther pension costs {note 29) 730 766
Share-based employee remuneration {note 25) 1,790 1,453
17,943 15,421

The average number of employees of the Group {including Direclorsj during the yeor was:
Yeor ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Number Number
Management and administration 219 182
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Key management of the Group are the Baord of Directors {including Non-executive Directors). Benefit expenses in

respect of the key management was as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
£000s £000sx
Directors’ remuneration 1,020 249
Pension contributions 43 151
1,063 1,100
During the yeor contributions were poid to defined contribution schemaes for two Directors (2017: three).
Guin on share options exercised by Directors during the year was E€nit (2017: £14,000).
The amounts set out above include remuneration in respect of the highest-paid Director as follows:
Year ended Yaar ended
31 Pecember 3 Detember
2018 2017
£000s £000s
Emoluments for qualifying services 303 Kyl
Pension contributions 26 114
329 434

Average number of members of the Board of Direclors {including Non-executive Directors} for the yeor ended

31 December 2018 waos six (2017: seven}.

9. Taxation
Analysis of the chorge/(credit] for the period is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December A Pecember
2018 2017
£000s £000s
Corpa(ﬂﬁoﬂ fax

In sespect of current period 3,003 3,573
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 7 44
3,010 3,617

Deferred tox (see note 23)
Origination ond reversal of temporary differences L1190 {5.101)
Adjusiment in respect of prior periads 327 943
Toxation 4,447 {541)
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9. Taxafion continued

The difference between the totol tax charge/{credit) shown cbove and the amount calculated by applying the standard
rate of UK corporation fax to the profit bafore tax is as follows:

Yaar ended Year endad

31 December 31 December

2018 207

£000s £000s

Profit before taxation 22,803 28,289
Profit before taxotion multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the

United Kingdom of 19.00% (2017: 19.25%) 4,332 5,446

Effect of:

Non-deductible expenses 259 145

Non-toxable income (794} 1,216}

Adjustrment in respect of prior periods 334 987

Impact of reduction in UK tax rate on deferred tax {142) o1

Impact of reduction in US and French 1ox rate on deferred tax - (5.958}

Ditfering 1ox rotes on overseas earnings 310 i82

Share options (135) (15}

Other differences and Foreign exchange 283 ()

Totol taxation : 4,447 {(541)

Changes to the UK corporation tax rote were announced in Finance Act (No 2) 2015 and Finance Act 2016, reducing
the LUK's main rate to 17% from 1 April 2020. As the change wos substontively enacted ot the bolance sheet date the
effect is included in these finoncial statements.

During 2017 US and French tax reform were both substantively enocted. The deferred tax rates opplied to US and
French timing differences have hence chonged from 35.0% Yo 24.0% ond from 33.3% lo 25.0% respectively.

To exclude the impoct of tax rate changes and non-underlying tax charges the Group has colculoted ‘odjusted
underlying eHective lax rote” os on olfernative performance measure in note 34,

10. Dividends

Yeor ended Yeor ended
3T December 2018 31 December 2017
Pence/ Pence/
shore £000s share £000s
Amounts recognisad as distributions to owners in the year
Interim dividend for the prior financicl year 0.443 2,104 0.403 1,904
Final dividend for the prior finonciol year 0.888 4,242 0.807 3,825
130 6,346 1.210 5,729
Interim dividend for the current financial year 0.487 2,524 0.443 2,104

The proposed final dividend of D.977 pence per share for the current financiol year wes opproved by the Board of
Directors on 22 March 2019 and is subject to the approval of shareholders ot the Annual General Meeting. The
proposed dividend has not been included as o liobility os af 31 December 2018 in accordonce with 1AS 10 Events After
the Balonce Sheet Dote. The interim dividend for the current financial year wos paid on 10 Jonuary 2019. Subject to
shareholder approval, the finol dividend will be paid on 11 July 2019 to shareholders on the register of members on

14 June 2019.




Financial Statements | Notes to the Financial Statements

11. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is colculated by dividing the earnings oitributable to ordinory shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year. For diluted EPS, the weighted average number of ordinory shares in issue
is odjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive polentiol ordinary shares. There are no differences in earnrings vsed fo

colculote each measure as o result of the dilutive employee share options.

A reconciliation of the weighted averoge number of ordinary shares used in the measures is given below:

Year ended Year ended
31 Pecember 31 December
2018 a7
Buasic EPS coleulotion 497,199,620 A73,842,765
Employee share options 13,223,152 5,281,174
Diluted EPS colculation 510,422,772 479,123,939
The underlying basic £PS is intended to demonstrate recurring elements of the results of the Group before
nen-underlying items. A reconcilistion of the earnings used in the different measures is given below:
Year ended
Year ended 31 Decamber
31 December 2017
2018 £000s
£000s restoted
Earnings for basic EPS 18,356 28,830
Non-underlying items {note &} 4,226 {3,592}
Earnings for underlying bosic EPS 22,582 25,238
The resufting EPS measures are:
Year ended
Yeor ended 31 December
31 December 2017
2018 Pance
Pence rastoted
Basic EPS 3.69 6.08
Diluted EPS 3.60 6.02
Underlying basic EPS 454 5.33
4.42 527

Underlying diluted EPS

To exclude the impact of tax rate chonges the Group hos calculated ‘adjusted underlying bosic EPS’ as an olternative

performance measure in note 34.
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12. Goodwill and intangible assets

Bronds and
distribution Development Assets under
Goodwill rights costs development Total
The Group £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 donuary 2018 16,565 263,560 725 2,500 283,350
Additions - 60,307 43 - 60,350
Disposals - (18) - - {18)
Transfer - 1,500 - (1,500) -
Exchange odjusiments - 2,743 - - 2,743
. At 31 December 2018 16,565 328,092 768 1,000 346,425
Amonrtisation and impairment
At | January 2018 - 4,727 - - 4,727
Underlying impairmant for the year - 1,926 - - 1,926
Non-underlying impairment for the year - 4,318 - - 4,318
Amartisation for the year - n - - I
At 31 December 2018 - 11,182 - - 11,182
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 16,565 316,910 768 1,000 335,243
At 1 Joanvary 2018 16,565 258,833 725 2,500 278,623
Brands and
distribulion Development Assets under
Goodwill rights costs development Total
The Grouvp £000s £000s £000s £000s E00Ds
Cost
At | January 2017 16,197 249,376 704 2,500 268,777
Additions 348 17,193 459 - 18,020
Transfer - 438 (438) - -
Exchange adjustments - (3,447) - - {3,447}
At 3t December 2017 16,565 263,560 725 2,500 283,330
Amortisation and impairment _
At 1 Januory 2017 - 3,944 - - 3,944
Non-underlying impairment for the year - 507 - - 507
Amaortisgtion for the year - 276 - - 276
At 31 December 2017 - 4,727 - - 4,127
Net book amount
At 31 December 2017 16,565 258,833 725 2,500 278,623
At ¥ January 2017 14,197 245,432 704 2,500 264,833

Goodwill and the majority of brands and distribution rights are considered to have indefinite useful economic lives and
ore therefore subject to an impairment review ot least annuolly.
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Brands and distribution rights

Key judgement - useful economic lives

The Directors believe applying indefinite lives to certoin acquired brands is appropriate due to the stable long-term
nature of the business and the enduring nature of the bronds. These brands ore ussessed on acquisition to ensure they
meet set criteria including an established ond sioble soles history.

Where distribution rights ore deemed to have o finite life they are amartised accordingly. Amortisotion is included

in administration and marketing expenses. The remoinder of the distribution rights hove no defined time period or
there is evidence to support the renewal of distribution rights without disproportionale cost. These assets are therefore
treated the same as acquired brands.

it is the opinion of the Directors thot the indefinite fife ossets meet the criteria set ou! in IAS 38. This ossessment is
maode an on asset by asset bosis laking into accaunt:

»  How long the brond hos been established in the market and subsequent resilience 16 economic ond social chonges;
+  Stobility of the industry in which the brand is used;

* Polential obsolescence or arosion of sales;

= Barriers lo entry;

*  Whether sutficient marketing promotional resourcing is availoble; and

* Dependency on other assets with defined useful economic lives.

Certain brands were ocquired with patent protection, which lasts for a finite period of fime. It is the opinion of the
Directors thot these patents do not provide ony incremental volue to the value of the brand and therefore no separate
volue has been placed on these patents. This assessment is based on o view of future profitability ofter potent expiry
and post experience with similor brands.

Development costs
Capitalised cosis relote to clinical development and regulolory plans expected to be commerciolised in the future.

Assets under development

On 4 July 2018 the Medicines and Heelthcare products Regulatory Agency (MHRA) approved the UK Marketing
Authorisotion Application for Diclectin®, a prescriptian product for the frealment of nausea and vomiting of pregnancy
where conservative manegemaent hos failed. The MHRA also approved the brand nome Xonvea®, which will be used for
marketing Diclectin in the LK.

Following licence opprovat, contingent consideration of £0.5m was paid to Duchesnay Inc. in July 2018 (note 18). |
The reloted osset under development of £1.5m was reclassified to Brands and distribution rights and is being
amortised over 7 years.

The remaining £1.0m osset under development relates 1o Xonveo in-licences for o further nine Eurcpean ferritories
acquired from Duchesnay in 2016. In the event these licences for Xonveo are not approved, the amounts poid to
Duchesnay {€£0.5m) are fully refundoble and the contingent consideration [£0.5m) would not fall due rasulting in
no net finoncial impact in the Income Statement,
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12. Goodwill and intangible assets continued

Goodwill

The net book value of brand and distribution rights and goodwill which are considered to have indsfinite useful lives
ore allocated to CGUs in the following table. Goodwill reloting to the acquisition of certain assets and businesses from
Sinclair IS Pharma plc is cllocated to the group of related product CGUs. Other Goodwill omounts are oflocated to the
product CGU with which they were originally acquired.

Brands and

distribution

Goodwill rights Totol
Year ended 31 December 2018 £Q00s £000s £000s
Nizoral - 66,307 60,307
Menadiol, Vitamin E & Others 598 12,874 13,474
Forceval, Amontodine & Others - 12,93 12,931
Yamousse - 11,596 11,596
MocuShield 1,748 8,740 10,488
Nu-Seols - 9,100 9,100
SkinSofe, Dansac & Others 1,849 8,043 9,892
Timodine & Buccastem - 7.697 7,497
Syntometrine {excluding UX) - 7.927 7.527
Ametop - ’ 5,575 5,575
Others 1,147 27,229 28,376
Products acquired from Sinclair
Kelo-cote {non EU, excluding US) - 43,075 43,075
Quyplostine, Fozol & Others - 26,567 26,567
Haemopressin, Optiflo & Others - 25,000 25,000
Kelo-cote {EU) - 17,800 17,800
Fiamma Franchise - 17,400 17,400
Alocloir - 14,000 14,000

Goodwill 11,223 - 14,223
: 16,565 315,462 332,028
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Bronds and

distribution
Goodwill rights Total
Yaar ended 31 December 2017 £000s £000s £000s
Menadiol, Vitomin E & Others 598 12,876 13,474
Forcevol, Amontodine & Others - 12,933 12,93}
Vamousse - 11,596 11,596
MacuShield 1,748 8,740 10,488
Ny-5Seals - © 9100 2,100
SkinSafe, Cansac & Others 1,849 8,043 9,892
Timodine & Buccostern - 7.697 7.697
Syntometrine (excluding UK) - 7,527 7,527
Ametop - 5,575 5,575
Others 1,147 31,462 32,609
Products acquired from Sinclair
Kelo-cote {non EU, excluding US) - 40,842 40,847
Oxyplostine, Fazol & Others - 26,158 26,158
Haemaopressin, Optiflo & Others - 25,000 25,000
Kelo-cote (EU) - 17,800 17,800
Flamma Franchise - 17,400 17,400
Aloclar - 14,000 14,000
Goodwill 1,223 - 11,223
16,565 256,747 273,312

Recent acquisitions
The following acquisition activities took ploce in the year:

On 21 June 2018, the Group acquired the exclusive morketing rights to Nizoral, a medico! onti-dendruff shampoo,
in Asio-Pacific from Janssen Pharmaceutica NV (o member of the Johnson & Johnson group of companies) far a total
consideration of £60.0m. Associated legal ond due diligence costs were £0.3m. The ccquisition was funded by an
underwritien equily placing of new ordinary shares in the capita! of the Company lo raise gross proceeds of £34.0m
{net proceeds: £32.8m after deduction of £1.2m directiy ottributoble expenses), and by the draw-down of £28.0m
from a £35.0m extension of the Group's debt facilities.

in respect of Nizoral, the amounts included in the consolidoted stotement of comprehensive income since
21 June 2018 are revenues of £5 0m and net profit of £3.6m. Had the transoction occurred on 1 Jonuory 2018
estimated contribution o Group revenues would have been £10.7m and nel profil of £7.6m.

in the prior yeor the following acquisition activilies tock ploce:

On | December 2017, the Group acquired the worldwide rights to Ametop from global medicol technalogy business
Smith & Nephew for a consideration of US$7.5m (£5.6m).

On 2B December 2017, the Group acquired the worldwide rights to Vomousse from TyraTech Inc in o business
combination. This was for an initial caosh consideration of US$13.0m (£9.7m) and contingent consideration of between
US $nil and U$4.5m. Up to US$2.0m of this consideration is payable in 2020, and up o U5$2.5m is payable in 2021,
both dependent on the revenue growth of Yamousse. The Group does not currently anticipate any omounts will be
poyoble bosed on the current forecosts.
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12. Goodwill and intangible assets continved

Impairment
As explained in note 2.9 all intangible ossets are sloted al the lower of cost less accumulated amortisation ond
impoirmen? or the recoverable amount.

Assets with indefinite useful economic lives and those that are not yet availoble for use are tested for impairment al
teast onnually, or more frequently if there are indicators that amounts might be impaired. These assets ore tested af
CGU level {or ot group of CGUs level in the case of goodwill relating to the acquisition of certain assels ond businesses
from Sinclair 1S Phorma plc) as the Directors believe these CGUs generate lorgely independent cosh inflows.

The impairment test involves determining the recoverable omount of the relevant cash-generating unit, which
corresponds to the higher of the fair value less costs to sell or its valve in use.

The volue in use calculation uses cosh flow projeclions based on financicl forecasts for the next year extrapolated to
perpetuity. Financial forecasts for the next year ore based on the approved onnual budget for 2019 representing the
best estimote of future performance. Margins are bosed on past experience and cost estimates.

Key source of estimation uncertainty - value in use assumptions
The key assumptions on which cash How projections are maode are os follows {including our assessment of the
estimalion uncertainty arising):

Discount rates

*  Methodology: Cash flows are discounted ot an eppropriale rate, bosed on the Group's post-tox Weighted Average
Cost of Capital (WACC) adjusted where oppropriate for country specific risks, of between 7.9% and 10.5% [pre-tax
9.6% to 12.8%).

* Estimotion uncertainty: The ossumplions included in the compilation of the CGU specific discount rotes ore
designed to opproximote the discount rate that a potential market participant would adopt. Given the nature of the
Group's business model, the discount rote necessarily includes estimation uncertainty.

Forecast cash-flows

+  Methedology: Approved budgets and forecasts for 2019, based on management’s best estimate of cash flows by
individual CGU. These forecasts are then uplified fo perpetuity using the growth rates between -4.0% and 5.0%
from 2020 onwards based on the Group’s long-term growth projections. Growth rates of the higher end of our
range have been applied to certain International Star brands in order to refiect the Group's view of the strong long-
term growth prospects of these products, taking into occount the growth since acquisition and intended markeling
investment.

* Estimation unceriginty: The growth rotes assumed in the Group’s budgets and forecasts inherently include estimation
uncertointy relating to the achievemen! of commercial initiotives and external foctors such as competition.

The Group has conducted sensitivity analysis on the impoirment test. The valuations indicate sufficient headroom such
that a reasonably possible change in o key assumption is unlikely to result in an irmpairment for all intangibles except
Nu-seals as detoiled below.

Development projects are reviewed os to the likelihood of their complefion and valued using o discounted cash flow,
using appropriate risk factors, to ussess whether the project is impaired.

Nu-seals
Nu-seals is o low dose aspirin sold mainly in Ireland. In recent years it hos seen significant competition from
generic alternatives.

The recoverable amount of this CGU is based on o value in use calculation with the following key ossumptions:

Pre-tox discount rote 10.3

Terminal margin growth rate {+.0)
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The cash flow projections included specific estimates for five yeors and o terminol growth rale thereafter. The terminal
growlh rote wos determined based on management’s estimate of the long-term prospects for Nu-seals.

The estimated recoveroble amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount of £9.1m by £1.8m. Maonogement has
identified that o reasoncbly possible change in the Ywo key assumptions could cause the corrying amount fo exceed
the recoverable amount. The following table shows the individual ossumptions required for the eslimoted recoverable
amount to be equal 1o the carrying amount whilst other assumptions cre held constont.

%%
Pre-tax discount rate 15.5
Terminol margin growth rote {3.6)

Recent impairments

The Group had o £4.3m intongible asset included within Brands and distribution rights for the anti-malarial products
Paludrine, Avloclor and Savarine. The brands were acquired in 2012, These brands have been subject to recent
competitor activity in the UK, its largest market, and, in August 2018, the Group was formally notified by the supplier of
the anti-molarial products of their inlention to terminate the supply contracl.

Sales of anti-malarial products fell to £0 7m in 2018 (2017: £1.3m) due to competition in the UK market. Due to
this decline in demand, the Boord hove concluded thot it is not aconomic to enter a technical transfer project to an
alternative monufacturer and therefore have elected to write down the value of the £4.3m infengible osset in full.
Remoining inventory of £0.3m ot 31 Decernber 2018 is forecast to be soid in 2019 ond 2020.

The Group hod o £1.9m intangible assel within Brands ond distribution rights representing the value of the agreement
with Mocuheolth to guarantee supply of MocuShield APL. In September 2018 the Group was notified by Macuhealth of
their intention to end this supply agreement. As o result of the nofification the £1.9m intongible osset hos been written
down in full, and relcted deferred consideration of £1.1m released to the income siatement {notes 18 ond 20). The
net impaci on underlying profit before tax is therefore o chorge of £0.8m. The Group has implemented ofternative
arrangements resulting in no interruption to the supply of MocuShield.

Kelo-strelch was impaired in the prior year by £0.5m. An indicotor of impairment on this praduct was identified due to
the material reduction in the business ond resulting exceplional compensation income received (note 6). The value in
use was compared against the carrying value of the asset to caleulate the impairment. —

S 19
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Computer Right
software Fixtures, of use
and fitfings and Plant & Motor leose
equip t quip i machinery vehicles assefls Totol
The Group £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £0003
Cost
At T January 2018 2,936 2,275 193 - 3,61 9,015
Additions 2,406 476 i5 - 353 3,244
Disposals {15} {709} {194) - - (718}
At 31 December 2018 5,327 2,036 i4 - 3,964 11,341
Depreciation
At 1 Jonuary 2018 560 1,312 155 - 1,303 3,330
Provided in the year 529 233 ae - 534 1,335
Disposals (15) {709 {194) - - {918}
At 31 December 2018 1,074 834 - - 1,837 3,747
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 4,253 1,200 14 - 2,127 7,594
At | Jonuory 2018 2,376 943 38 - 2,308 5,685
Right
Computer of vse
software Fixtures, lease
and fittings ond Plant & Motor assetls Total
equipment equipment machinery vehicles £000s £000s
The Group EQ00s £000s £000s £000s restated restated
Cost
At 1 January 2017 1,405 1,792 127 8 3,521 6,853
Additrons 1,686 570 - - 90 2,326
Transfers {83) 87) 170 - - -
Disposols {52} - (104) (8} - (164}
At 31 December 2077 2,936 2,275 193 - 3,61 2,015
Depreciation
At ] Jenuary 2017 424 1,055 40 7 849 2,375
Provided in the year 454 156 46 1 454 1111
Transfers {274} 101 173 - - -
Disposals {44) - (104} {8) {156}
Al 31 December 2017 560 1,312 155 - i.303 3,330
Net book amount
At 31 December 2017 2,376 963 38 - 2,308 5,685
At 1 Jonuary 2017 281 737 B7 ] 2,672 4,478

Following the adoptian of IFRS 146 Leases (note 3.3) the Group has recognised right of use tease assats.

Non-current assels are located within the United Kingdom, France, ltaly, China, Singapore, Spain, Germany

and the United Siotes of America.



Financial Statements | Notes to the Financial Statements

14, Investments

Investment

in subsidiary

undertakings

The Campany £000s
Cost

Al 1 lonuary 2018 145,469

Additions 38,742

At 31 December 2018 184,211

At 1 January 2017 140,008

Addihons 5,461

At 31 December 2017 145,449

£32.8m of the 2018 additions relate lo funds from the equity placing of new ordinary shares in the capital of the

Company. These were distributed to Alliance Pharmaceuticals Limited for use in the acquisition of Nizora! (note 12},

The investiment balance relotes to outstonding intercompany deb! due from subsidiaries. The Directors do not consider

that this amount will be demanded by the Company and therefore it has been classified as an investment.

The subsidiary ond associated undertakings where the Group held 20% or more of the equity share capitol ot

31 December 2018 are shown below:

Country of

registration or %
Company incorporation owned  Nature of business
Advanced Bio-Technologies inc. USA 100 Pharmoceuticol soles
Aliance Pharma France SAS France 100 Phormoceulicol sales
Alliance Pharma (Singapore] Private Limited* Singapore 100 Pharmaoceuticol soles
Alltance Pharma S.r.l. Haly 100 Pharmaceutical soles
Alliance Pharmaceudicols Limited® England & Wales 100  Pharmaoceutical sales
Alliance Pharmaceuticals (Asia) Limited® Hong Kong 100 Pharmaoceutical soles
Alliance Phormaceuticals {Shanghai} Limited Chino 100  Phormaceuticol soles
Alliance Pharmaceuticals Spain SL° Spain 100 Pharmoceutical soles
Alliance Pharma Inc. Usa 100 Pharmoceutical soles
Synthasia Infernational Compeny Limited Hong Kong 20 Phormaoceutical sales
Synthasia Shanghai Co. Limited China 20 Phormaceutical sales
Maelor Laboratories Limited England & Woles 100 Non-trading
Alliance Phormaceuticals GmbH* Germony 100 Non-trading
Alliance Pharmaceuticals GmbH® - Swiss Branch Swilzerland 100 Non-troding
Alliance Pharmaceuticals SAS* france 100 Nen-trading
Opus Healthcore Limited Republic of ireland 180 Non-trading
Allience Pharma {Ireland) Limited Republic of Irelond 100 Non-trading
Alliance Consumer Health Limited Englond & Wales 160 Dormant
Alliance Generics Limited Engloand & Wales 100  Dormant
Alliance Health Limited £ngland & Woles 100 Dormant
Alliance Healthcare Limited Englond & Wales 160 Dormant
Caraderm Limited Northern Ireland 100 Dormant
Dermapharm Limited England & Wales 100 Dormont
MacuVision Europe Limited England & Wales 106 Dormant
Opus Group Holdings Limited England & Woles 100 Dormont
Opus Healthcare Limited Engiond & Wales 100 Dormant

*  investments held directly by Alliance Pharmao plc.
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14. Investments continued
The registered address in each country is as follows:

Territary Company

Registered OHice Address

USA Advanced Bio-Technologies Inc.

Alliance Phorma Inc.

France Alliance Pharmaceuticals 5AS

Alliance Phorma France SAS

China Alliance Phormaceuticols {Shanghai] Limited

Synthosie Shanghai Company Limited

Germony Alliance Pharmaceuticols GmbH

Hong Kong Alliance Pharmaceuticals (Asia) Limited

Synthasta International Compony Limited

Italy Alliance Pharma S.rd.
Republic Alliance Pharma {lrelond) Limited
of Ireland

Opus Heolthcare Lemited
Singopore Allionce Pharma (Singopore} Private Limited

Spoin Alliance Pharmoceuticals Spain SL

Switzerland (Bronch)  Alhance Pharmaoceuticals GmbH Disseldort

Englond & Wales Al Compoanies

Northern ireland Coroderm Limited

100 N, Tampa Street, Suite 2700, Tampa, Fi. 33602,
United States

Corporation Trust Company, 120% Crange Stree,
Wilmington, DE 19801.1120

69, avenue Franklin D. Roosevelt, 75008 Paris, France

49, avenue Fronklin D. Roosevelt, 75008 Paris, France

Room 103, 1st Floor, 56 Meisheng Road, Shanghoi
Free-Trade-Zone, PR.C

Svite 806, Sitva Bay Tower, Tower C, 469 Wusang Road,
Hongkou District, Shonghoi 200080, P.R China

Hanseati¢ Trade Center, Am Sandtorkai 41, D-20457
Hamburg, Germany

Room 2105, 21/ F Office Tower, Langham Place, 8
Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon

Unit 2402, 24/F, Bonham Trade Cenire, 50 Bonhom
Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Via Brera &, 20121 Milan, italy

bth Floor, South Bank House, Barrow Street, Dublin 4
bth Floor, South Bank House, Barrow Street, Dublin 4
6 Battery Road, #10-01, Singapore (049909

Posee de jo Castllana 259 C - 18th Floor, Regus
Business Center, Torre de Cristal, Modrid, ZIP Code
28046, Spoin

Bahnhofstrasse 37, Postfach 2818, CH-8021 Zirich

Avonbridge House, Bath Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire,
SNI15 288

6 Trevor Hill, Newry, Counly Down, BT34 1DN

Unless otherwise staled, the share copital comprises ordinary shares and the ownership parcentege is provided for
each undertoking. All subsidiory undertakings prepare occounts 1o 31 December.

Maelor Loborotories Limited is exempt from the Companies Act 2006 requirement refating 1o the audit of its individual
accounis by virtue of Section 479A af the Acl as this compony has guaranteed the subsidiory company under Section

479C of the Act.

15. Inventories

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

The Grovp £000s £E000s
Finished goods and molerials 20,544 18,077
Invenlory provision {1,838) (1.829)
18,706 14,248

inventory cosis expensed through the income stotement during the year were £44,349,000 (2017. £36,575,000).
During the year £1,983,000 {2017: £442,000) wos recognised os an expense reicting to the write-down of inveniories

to net realisable vailue.

X
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16. Trade and other receivaobles

The Group The Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Dacember
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000s £000s £000s £0003s
Trade receivables 23,407 17,347 - -
Other receivobles 1,083 1,759 20 12
Prepayments ond accrued income 4,658 2,485 9 9
Amounts owed by loint Venture - 2524 - -
29,148 23,495 29 21

The ageing of trade receivables of the Group at 31 December is defoiled below:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

£000s E00Cs

Not past due 201,482 15,479
Due 30-31 December 8n 782
Past due 3 days to 91 doys 1,459 51
Pest 91 days 595 575
23,407 17,347

Trode and other receivobles ore stoled net o} esfimated allowances for doubttyul debts. As ot 31 December 2018, trade
ond other receivables of £868,000 [2017: £254,000) were post due and impaired.

Qur palicy requires customers to pay us in accordance with agreed poyment terms. Depending on the geographical
location, our settlement terms are generally due within 30 or 40 days from the end of the month of sale and do not
bear any effactive interest rate.

At 31 December 2018 there were no confract assets or liabilities outstonding os defined under IFRS 15 (2017: £nil).
17. Cash ond cash equivalents gz
The Group The Company é
31 December 31 December 31 Detember 31 December w
2018 2007 2018 2017 ]
£000s £000s £000s £000s -
Sterling 3,345 7.060 83 7 3
Euros 4,769 2,692 - - “
USs Dollars 1,856 720 - -
Other currencies 923 712 - -

Cash at bonk ond in hand 10,893 11,184 83 71
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18. Trade and other payables

The Grouvp The Company
31 December 31 Dacember 31 December 3t December
2018 2017 2018 20017
£000s £000s £000s EOODs
Trade poyables 8,978 6,662 29 3
Other taxes and social security costs 1,808 326 - -
Accruals ond deferred income 10,301 8,159 192 179
Other payables 197 776 - -
Deferred consideration - 153 - -
Contingent consideration 500 500 - -
Lease lighilities 447 579 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - - 80
‘ 22,231 17,155 221 262

Deferred consideration of Enil (2017: £0.2m) reloted to an ogreement with MacuHealth to guorantee supply of
MacuShield APl and secure additional territories to be able to distribute in. In September 2018 the Group was
notified by Mocuhealth of their intention to end this supply agreement. This resulted in the release of the bolance

to the income statement.

Conhingent consideration of £0.5m relates to the Licence and Supply Agreement for the produc! Xonvea with
Duchesnay Inc. and is poyable in 2019 if the relevant Europeon licensing opplications are approved {note 12}.
This balance weos transferred fram non-current liabilities during the year (note 20). The 2017 balonce of £0.5m
was poid following UK epprovol in july 2018 [note 12).

19. Loans and borrowings

The Group The Company
31 December 31 December 31 Decemb 3o b
2018 2007 2018 20%7
Current £000s £000s £000s £000s
Bank loans due within ane year or on demand:
Secured 68,500 42,000 -
Finance issue costs (463) (281} -
68,035 41,719 -
The Group The Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 017
Non-current £0003 £000s £000s £000s
Bonk loans:
Secured 29,100 42,338 -
Finonce issue costs {433} {558} -
28,647 41,780 -

The bank facility is secured by o fixed ond floating chorge over the Compony's and Group’s assets registered with

companies house.
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20. Other non-current liabilities

The Group The Company
31 December 3o b Do L 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000s £000x £000s £000s
Coantingent consideration - 2,355 - -
Deterred consideration - 894 - -
Lease liabilities 1,972 1,998 - -
Other non-current liobilities 380 274 - -
2,352 5,523 - -

Contingent consideration of £nil (2017: £0.5m} re'oted lo the Licence and Supply Agreement for the product Xonvea
with Duchasnay Inc. This has been transferred to current liabilifies ond is payable during 2019 if the relevant licensing
opplications are approved {note 18), ’

Contingent considaration of £nil {2017: £1.9m) relales to the acquisition of the worldwide rights to Vamousse from
TyraTech Inc. Up to US$2.0m is payable in 2020, and up to US$2.5m is poyakle in 2021, both dependent on the
revenue growth of Vamousse. The curren? year decreose in deferred contingent cansideration relates to changes in the
original estimated amounts payable bosed on the latest sales forecasts.

Deferred consideration of £nil (2017: £0.9m} relaled to the MacuHealth agreement to guarantee supply of MacuShield
APl and extend the territories in which MacuShield con be sold. In September 2018 the Group was notified by
Macuhealth of their intention to end this supply agreement. This resulted in the release of the balance to the

income statermnent.

21. Financial instruments

The Group uses financial instruments comprising borrowings, derivatives, some cash ond liquid resources, and various
iterns such as trade receivables and krade payables that arise directly from its operations. The main risks arising from
the Group's financial instruments are liquidity risk, interest rote risk and foreign currency risk. The Board reviews

and agrees palicies for manoging each of these risks and they ore summarised below. These policies have remained
unchanged from the previous year. In addition to Sterling, the Group olso has bank facilities denominated in Euros
ond US Dollors. The purpose of thase facitities is to manage the currency risk arising from the Group's operations.

Liquidity Risk

The Group seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring at ok fimes there is sufficient liquidity 1o meet its financiaf
lichilities os they foll due and to invest any surplus cash sofely and profitably. The Group finances its operations
through a mixture of debt and equity. The Group’s main source of debt is provided by o £135m committed Credit
Focility maturing in Movember 2020 (2017: £100m}. This is mode up of omortising Term Debt of £65m (2017: £65m)
and o Revolving Credit Focility {'RCF’) of £70m {2017: £35m). In order to monage currency risk the Group hos
borrowed part of the Term Loons in EUR 18m {€16.2m) (2017: EUR 18m {£15.9m)) and in USD 19.5m (£15.2m}
(2017: USD 19.5m {£14.4m)}. The remainder is denominated in Sterling.

At year end the Group had drown down £58.5m of the RCF {2017 £34.0m}) and has access to on uncommitied
overdraft facility of £4.5m.
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21. Financial instruments continued
The moturity profile of the Group's financial gross liobilities {copital and interest) at the year-end is os foltows:

31 December 2018

In maore than In more than

one year, but two years, buy In more

In one year, not more not more than five
or less than two than five years Total
£000s £000s £000s E00Ds E£000s
Trade and other payables 21,784 2N - 149 22,164
Bank loans 71,382 31,526 - - 102,908
Interest rate swops 5 - - - 5
Lease liobilities 447 307 987 678 2,419
35,118 90,564 987 827 127,496

31 Decembar 2017

In more than 1 more then

one year, but two years, but n more

In one yedr, not more not more than five
or less than tweo than five years Total
£000s £000s £000s EDODs £000s
Trade and other payables 16,576 4 2,374 237 20,1010
Bank loons 44,176 11,862 33,866 - 89,904
Interest rate swaps 79 - 63 - 142
Lease liobilities 579 447 986 565 2,577
61,410 13,223 37,289 802 112,724

The moturity profile of the Company’s financial gross liabilities {capitol and interest) at the yeor end is as follows:

31 Datember 31 Decembar

2018 2017

Trade ond other Trode and other

payablas payables

£000s £000s

In one year, or less 221 267

The Group had £4.5m (2017: £4.5m) undrawn overdroft facilities ond £25.0m (2017: £25.0m) undrown uncommitied
facilities aveilable at 31 December 2018.

Interest rate risk

The Group's dabt is pravided on e flogting interest rate baosis. The Group uses interest rate swaps to fix the rates poid
on a portion of its debt in order to mitigute against the risks of increosing interest rates. These swops ore re-measured
to fair value at each period end.

The Group has in ploce interest rate swaps with @ nominal volue of £13m (year ended 31 December 2017: £20m) to
convert the floating interest rate charge to o fixed rote inferest charge moturing in November 2020.

The Group also has on EUR 12m {yeor ended 31 December 2017 EUR 1Bm| interest rote swop to convert the floating
interest rote charge to a fixed rate interest charge moturing in November 2020.
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The interest rote exposure of the financicl liobilities of the Group ot the pericd end was:

Fixed Floating Total
£000s £000s £000s
At 31 December 2018
Bank loans - Sterling denominated - 66,187 66,187
Bank loans — Euroc denominated - 16,216 14,216
Bank loans ~ US Dollar denominoted - 15,197 15,197
Interes! rate hedges - Sterling denominated 13,000 {13,000) -
Interest rate hedges — Euro denomincted 10,810 {10,810) -
Total financlal liabilities 23,810 73,790 %7,600
Unomoriised issue costs - [898) {898}
Net book value of financial liabilities 23.810 72,892 96,702
Fixed Floating Toral
£000s £000s £000s
At 31 December 2017
Bank loans - Sterling denominated - 54,000 54,000
Bank loans - Euro denominated - 15,929 15929
Bank loons — US Dollar denominoted - 14,409 14,409
Interest rate hedges — Sterling denominated 20,000 {20,000) -
Interest rate hedges — Euro denominated 15,929 {15,929) -
Totat financial liabilities 35,929 48,409 84,338
Unomaortised issue costs - (839) (839
Net book volue of financiol kabilities 35,929 47,570 83,499

Fized rote financial liabillties
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Weighted
Welghted average perlod
average fixed for which rate is

rate % fixed
At 31 December 2018
Sterling 320 1.91 years
Euros 2.6 1.91 years
At 31 December 20017
Sterhing 3.74 291 years
Euros 2136 2.9 years

The Sterling floating rate borrowings bear interest at o rate bosed on LIBOR. The Euro floating rate borrowings
bear interest ot a rate based on EURIBOR. The US Dolior floating rate borrowings beor interest at o benchmark rote

{US Dollor LIBORY.

A 0.5% increase in LIBOR would reduce pre-tox profits by approximately £0.4m in 2019, A 0,5% decrease would hove
the opposite effect. A 0.5% increase or decrease in EURIBOR would have no matericl impact on pre-tox profits due to
the majority of the Eure denaminated debt being hedged to fixed rotes. A 0.5% increase in US LIBOR would reduce
pre-tox profits by approximately £0.1m in 2019. A 0.5% decrease would have the opposite effect.
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21. Financiol instruments conhnued

Currency risk

Approximately 40% of the Group's sales are invoiced in Euros. The Group olso has a level of Euro expense that
noturally offsets a high portion of the Euro sales. Approximotely 16% of the Group's sales ore invoiced in US Bollor,
o portion of which will be used to service the US Dollar denominoated debt. The majority of other Group soles, and
the majority of other Group expenses, are denominated in Sterling.

A 5% weokening or strengthening of Sterling cgainst the Euro would result in £06.6m impact in EBITDA {note 34).
A 5% weckening of Sterling against the US Dollor would resull in o £0.4m increose in EBITDA, while a 5%
strengthening of Sterling would have the approximate opposite effect.

Net investment hedges

The Group uses currency denominated borrowings to hedge the exposure of a portion of its nel investment in overseas
operations agoinsl changes in volue due to chonges in foreign exchange rates. The net investment hedge was tested
for effectiveness during the year ond found fo be effective. As the Group repays its foreign dernominated borrowings
the hedged portion of the nel investment is reduced.

Fair value measurement

The Group has adopled IFRS 13 for financiol instruments that are meosured in the Group batance sheet ot {air volue.
This requires disclosure of foir value meoasurements by level of the following fair volue measurement hierarchy:

= quoted prices (unodjusted} in active morkets for identical assets or liabilities {Lavel 1);

+ inputs oither than quoted prices included within Level 1 that cre observable for the asset or liability, either directly
{thot is, os prices} or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2); ond

* inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The Group's financial instrumenis held ot foir value (or for which foir value is disclosed) in the scope of IFRS 13 are
as follows:

31 December 3 December

2018 07

Carrying velue  Carrying valye

Lavel £000s £000s

Interest rote swops 2 (5) {142)
Contingent consideration 3 (500) (2,854}
{505) {2,.998)

Far the other financicl assets and liabilities the carrying omount is o reasonable approximation of fair value ond
therefore no further disclosure is provided.

The valugtion techniques used for instruments cotegerised in Levels 2 and 3 are described below:

Interest rate swaps (Level 2)
The Group's inferest rote swaps ore not iraded in octive morkets. These hove been fair valued using observable
interest rales. The effects of non-ohservable inputs are not significant for interest rote swaps.

Counterparty bonks perform voluotions of interest rate swaps for financiol reporting purposes, determined by
discounting the future cash flows at rotes determined by year end yield curves. The valuation processes and fair
value changes are discussed by the Audit & Risk Committee ond the finonce team ot least every half year, in line
with the Group's reporting dotes

Contingent consideration (Levet 3)

The fair volue of contingent consideration is estimated using & present volue technique. Fair valve is colculated using
discounted cash flows, taking the most likely cash flows and discounting ot an appropricte risk odjusted rate of 3.0%.
The most likely cash flows cre o source of estimotion uncertainty.

During the year £2.0m contingent consideration related 1o ocquisition of the Vamausse brands was released.
This change was coused by differerices in trading performance compared to acquisition forecosts.
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Level 3 fair value measurements:

The reconciliation of the carrying ameounts of financis! instryments classified within Lavel 3 is as follows:

31 December

31 December

ane 2017

Liabilities Liabititles

E0D0s £000s

Bolonce at 1 Jonvary 2,854 3,330

Acquired - 1,855

Caosh paid in the year (500} 1,713}
Amounts recognised in profit ar loss under finance costs:

Change in fair value of contingent consideration {1,946} {618)

Unwinding of discount 40 -

Foreign exchange movements 72 -

Balance at 31 Dacember 500 2,854

Classification of financicl assets ond liobilities
Group
Classification of the Group’s financial essets and liabilities is set out below:

Financiol assets previously designated as ‘loans and receivables’ have been reclassified to ‘amortised cost’ following

the adoption of IFRS 9 {note 3.4).

2018 2017

Financlal assets £000s £000s
Financiol assels at amortised cost

Trade receivobles 29,148 21,571

Cash and cash equivolents 10,893 11,184

40,041 32,755

31 December

31 Detember

2018 2007
Financial liabiitles £000s £000s
Liahilities ot amortised cost
Trade and other payabtles 21,284 15,923
Loans and borrowings 96,702 83,499
Orher lishilities 3so 274
Lease liabilities 2,419 2,578
Deferred consideration - 1,049
Derivative financial instruments
Used for hedging 5 142
Foir Value
Contingent cansideration 500 2,855
121,290 106,320

—
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21, Financial instruments continued

Classification of financial assets and liabilities continusd
Company

Classification of the Company’s financial instruments is set out befow:

Finencial assats previously designated as ‘loans and receivables’ hove been redlossified to ‘amortised cost’ following
the adoption of IFRS 9 (note 3.4).

31 December

31 December

2018 207
Financiol gssets £000s £000s
Finantial assets at omortised cost
Trade receivables 29 21
29 2t
31 Decamber 31 December
2018 2017
Financlal fiobitiies £000s £000s
Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and ather payables 220 262
221 262
Cashflows arising from financing aclivities
Cashflows Non-cash changes
Foreign
2047 Printipal Interest exchange Additions Interest 2018
£000s £000s £000s E000s £000s EODOs £000s
Ltoans and borrowings 83,499 12,187 - 1,016 - - 96,702
Accrued interest 244 - (3.123) - 2,964 - a5
Lease liobilities 2,578 (512} {74) {h 354 74 2,41%
Derivotive financial instruments
31 December 3} December
2018 2017
Liobilities Liabilities
£000s £000s
Curren! portion - 79
Non-current porfion 5 63
Interest rate swap - cash flow hedge 5 142

The cash flow hedges were fested for effectiveness both retrospectively and prospectively as at 31 December 2018.
They wera found to be highly effective, with the ineffective element being immateriol. The hedge and interest on the
bank debt are sellled on o quarterly basis on the some date and measured against the some benchmark, namely

3 month Sterling LIBOR. The omount recognised through the income stalement in respect of interest role swops
during the year was a charge of £123,000 {2017: £177,000}.

22. Operating Segments

The Group is engoged in o single business activily of pharmaceuticals. The Group’s pharmaceutical business consists
of the marketing ond soles of acquired products. The Group's Board of Directars (‘the Board’) is the Group’s Chief
Operating Decision Maker {{CODM’), as defined by IFRS 8, ond oll significant operating decisions are token by the
Boord. In assessing performance, the Board reviews financial information an an integrated basis for the Group,
substantially in the form of, and on the same basis os, the Group’s IFRS financial statements.
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23. Deferred tox

N b 3D b
2018 2017
The Grovp £000s £000s
Accelerated capital allowances on tangible assets a1y {78}
Temporary differences: trading 108 202
Temporary differences: non-frading Al 601
Accelerated cllowantes or intangible ossets (8,735) (7.684)
Initial recognition of intangible assels from business combination (19,756} {19.158)
Shore bosed poyments 735 864
Interest rate hedge ) 24
Lasses 285 483
{26,818} (24,746)
Recognised as:
Defarred tox asset 1,845 2,174
Deferred tox liability {28,653) (26,920)
Reconciliotion of deferred iox movements:
Recognited
In other Recognised
L. 4 hensive in the income 31 December
2018 income statemant 0
The Group £000s £000s £000s £000s
Non-current gsssts
Imengible assets {26,842) {598) (1,051} {28,491)
Property, plant and equipment (78) - {94) {172}
Non-current liobilities
Derivative financial 24 (23) - 1
Instruments
Other non-currert liabilities 601 114 - 716
Equity
Share option reserve 864 (119} o) 735
Temporary differences
Trading 202 - {94) 108
Losses 483 - {197) 285
{24,744) {626) {1,446) [26,818)
Recognised as:
Deferred tax asset 2,174 1,845
Deferred tax liability {26,920} (28,663)
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23. Deferred tax continued

Recognised
in other Recognised
tomprehensive inthe Income 31 December
1 January 2017 income stotemant 2017
The Group £000s £000s £000s £000s
Mon-current assets
Inangible assets {31,385} 834 3,709 {26,842)
Property, plant and equipment {57) - 2y {78)
Non-current ligbilities
Derivative financial 65 41) - 24
Instruments
Other non-current lichilities 894 (292) - 402
Equity
Share oplion reserve 376 314 174 864
Temporary differences
Trading 8 - 194 202
Losses 366 - 116 482
(29,733} 815 4172 (24,746}
Recognised os:
Deferred lax osset 1,709 2,174
Deferred tax Liability [31,442) (26,920j
The Group has no unrecognised deferred tox assets (2017: Enil).
24. Share capital
Allotted, colled and fully paid
No. of shures (111 H]
At 1 January 2017 - ordinary shares of 1p each 472,568,462 4,726
Issved during the yeor 2,421,526 24
At 31 December 2017 - ordinary shares of 1p each 474,989,988 4,750
Issued during the year 43,224,228 432
At 31 December 2018 - ordinary shares of 1p each 518,214,226 5,182

Setween } fonuary 2018 and 31 December 2018 5,861,601 shares were issued on the exercise of employee shore
ophions (2017: 2,421,536}

On 21 June 2018 37,362,637 shares were issued at $1.0p in the underwritten equity placing used for the acquisition of
Nizoral {note ¥2}. This raised gross proceeds of £34.0m before expenses. The net oddition to equity wos £32.8m ofter
the deduction of £1.2m directly attributable expenses.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share of meetings of the Company.
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Potential share options commitment

Under the Group's share option scheme for employees and Direclors, options have been granfed fo subscribe for
shores in the Company at prices ranging from 7.75p to B1.60p. Cptions are exercisoble three years after date of grant,
but in certain instances this con be extended fo five years. Options ouistanding are os follows:

31 December 31 Pecember

2018 2017

Exercise Exercise Number Number

Year of grant price pence from (000s) (000s3)
2608 8.50 201 - 39
2009 7.75 2012 44 130
2000 33.25 and 34.25 2013 1,53 1,670
m 31.00 ond 34.12 2014 1,745 2,200
2012 29.25 2015 871 2,156
2013 35.750nd 37.25 2016 1,695 2,979
2013 35.75 2018 1,683 2,501
2014 3375 2017 907 1,750
2015 43.75and 46.75 zne 3936 5,260
2016 44.00 ond 47.5 2019 8,638 9,222
2016 47 .50 2021 4,400 4,400
2017 53.00 2020 7,329 7,590
2018 81.60 2021 7.935 -
40,714 39,898

Managing copital
Qur objective in manoging the businass’ copital structure is to ensure that the Group hos the financial capacity,
tiquidity and flexibility to support the existing business and to fund acquisition opportunilies as they arise.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net bank debt and Shareholders' equity. At 31 December 2018, net debt
waos £85.8m [note 34), whilst Shareholders’ equilty was £252.2m.

The business is profitoble and cash generative. The moin financial covenonts opplying to bonk debt are that leverage
[the retio of net bank debt to EBITDA) should not exceed 3 0 times, interest cover (the ratio of EBITDA to finance
charges} should be no less than 4.0 times, and Group cash flows must remain in excess of agreed ratios o debt service
cosh fiows. The Group complied with these covenants in 2018 and 2017.

Smaller acquisitions are typicolly financed using bank debs, while larger acquisitions typically involve o combination of
bank debt and additional equity. The mixture of debt and equity is varied, toking into account the desire lo moximise
the shareholder returns while keeping leverage at comlortable levels.

SHUDWIINIS [BUDULY
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for the yeor ended 31 December 2018

25. Share based payments

Under the Group's shore optien scheme for employees and Directors, options to subscribe for shores in the Company
are grantad normally once each year. The conteactual lite of an option is 10 years from date of gront. Generally,
options granted become exercisable on the third anniversory of the date of grant, but in certain instances this can be
extended to five years. Exercise of an oplion is normally subject to continued employment. Options ore valued by
third-party provider using the Black-Schofes option-pricing model.

Certain options are subject o EPS occretion performance criterio, those outstonding are os follows

31 December 31 December

2018 o7

Exercise price Number Number

Yeor of grant Pence Exercise from {000s) {000s)
2013 35.75 2016 - 500
23 3575 2018 1,683 2,300
2014 33.75 2017 514 770
2015 43.75 2018 58t 810
2014 47.50 2019 2,557 2,557
2016 47.50 2027 4,400 4,400
2007 53.00 2020 1,804 1,804
2018 81.60 2021 2,775 -
14,314 13,141

The total expense for the year relating lo share-based poyment plans wos £1.8m (2017 £1.5m}, of which £1.2 nillion
(2017: €1.5 million) reloted to equily-settled share-based payment transactions and £0.6m (2017 £nil) os o cash-settled
provision for the payment of social security charges upon exercise.

It is ossumed that on average options will be exercised ofter five years. The expected volotility is based on historical
volatifity (calculated bosed on the weighted overage remaining life of the share oplions), odjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility due to publicly availoble informotion. The risk-free rate of return is based on UK
government bonds of a term consistent with the assumed option life,

The cost of sociol security charges is bosed an the opplicable social tox rate applied to the number of share awards
which ore expected to vest, valued with reference 1o the yeor-end shore price.

The estimated tolal equity-seitled fair value of the share oplions gronted on 5 Cclober 2018 wos £820,000. The model
inputs were a market price of 73.0p, a grant price of B1.4p, expected volatility of 27.49% ond o risk-free rate of 1.29%.

Share options and weighted overage exercise price are as follaws for the reporting periods presented:

018 2017
Waighted Weighted
Number average price Number average price
{0005} Pence {G00s) Pence
Qutstanding at start of year 39,898 43.50 35,528 40.56
Granted 8,009 81.40 7,629 53.00
Exercised {5.862) 35.27 (2,422} 27.00
Forfeited {1,334) 49.40 {837) 45.15
Qutstanding at end of year 40,714 5210 39,898 4350
Exercisable at end of yeor 12,345 37.75 9,695 33.24

Shore options were exercised throughout the financial year. Share options were exercised between 7.75 and 53.0
pence per share,
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26, Cash generated from operations

Group Company
Yeor ended
Yeor ended 31 Pecamber Yeor ended Year ended
31 December 2017 31 De b Nno b
208 £000s 2018 1017
EQDOs restoted £000s £000s
Profit for the yeor 18,356 28,830 2,045 8,399
Taxation 4,447 (541} 802 487
Inmeres) poyoble and similor chorges 3,457 3,144 - -
Change in conlingent consideration {1,966} {618) - -
Change in deferred consideration (1,048) - - -
interest income (52} (104} {5,066) (3,732
Foreign exchange goin (575} {534} {2) -
Profit on disposac! of Unigreg Joint Ventyre {1,508} - - -
Nel exceptional compensation income - {4,356} - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,335 1,1m - -
Amartisation ond impoirment of intangibles 6,455 276 - -
Impairment of Synthasio Joint Venture assets 2,460 - - -
Change in inventories {4,458) 1,108 - -
Share of post-tox Joint Venture profils (13) 19 - -
Change in trade and othes receivables {7,628} 4,01 {8} 97
Change in trade and other payables 5,059 £2,9%96) (38} 102
Shore based ermployee remuneration 1,790 1,453 - -
Dividends received - - {5,600) {5,720
Cash generated from operotions 26,11 30,765 867 {367)

27, Capital commitments
The Group hod capital commitments at 31 December 2018 totalling £3,560,000 {2017 £1,940,000).

28. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible abligations thal are not proboble, The Group cperates in o highly regulated sector
and in morkets and geographies around the world each with differing requirements. As a result, and in the normal
course of business, the Group can be subject fo a number of regulatory inspections/investigations on an ongoing
basis. It is therefore possible thot the Group moy incur penalties for non-compliance. In addition, o number of the
Group’s brands and producis are subject to pricing and other forms of legaf or regulatory restrictions from both
governmental/regulatory bodies and olse from third parties. Assessments os fo whether or not to recognise o provision
in respect of these matters are judgemenial as the matters are often complex ond rely on estimates and assumptions
as to fulure events.

The Group’s ossassment ot 31 December 2018 bosed on currently available informotion is that there are no matters for
which a provision is required {2017: £nil). However, given the inherent uncertainties involved in assessing the outcomes
of such matters there con be no assurance regording the outcome of any ongoing inspections/investigations and the
position could change over time as a result of the factors referred to above.
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29. Pensions
The Group operates o defined contribution group personal pension scheme for the benefit of certain Direclors
ond employees.

31 December 31 Decamber

2018 2017

The Group £000s £000s
Contributions payable by the Group for the year - 730 766

The Group also operotes a stakeholder pension plan which is available to all employees.

30. Related party transactions

Group

During the yeor the Group mode payments on behalf of Unigreg of £nil (2017: £47,000). Interes! receivable from
Unigreg was £13,000 {2017: £48,000}. During the year the Group made poyments on behalf of Synthasia of £5,000
(2017: £4,000). Interest receivoble from Synthasio was £16,000 (2017, £40,000).

There are no transactions with Directors {other than remuneration) thot fall into the scope of 1AS 24.

Company
During the yeor the Company received funds of £1,230,000 {2017; £178,000) from its subsidiary Allionce
Phormaceuticols Limited.

Net payments of £140,000 were mode by Alliance Phormo plc on behaolf of Alliance Phormaceuticals Limited (2017:
£355,000 net payments by Allionce Pharmoceuticals Limited on behalf of Alliance Pharmao ple).

Interest of £5,066,000 (2017: £3,732,000) wos chorged 1o Allionce Pharmaceuticals Limited on the tolal interest
-bearing amounts included within the investment balance {note 14),

During the yeor the Company re-invested £33,619,000 (2017: £796,000] in Alliance Pharmaceuticols Limited.

During the yeor on amount of £1,169,000 (2017: £1,453,000} was charged to Allionce Phaormaceuticals Limited by
the Compony for the employee shore bosed poyment.

Dividends declared by Alliance Pharmaceuticals Limited due to the Company are £5,600,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017. £5,720,000}, During the yeor dividends of £5,600,000 were paid by Alliance
Pharmaceuticals Limifed to the Company,

The Company had an outstanding balonce of £97,000 (2017: £95,000) due from Alliance Pharmaceuticals SAS.
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31. Joint Ventyres

Name Principat Activity Country of Incarporation % Owned
Unigreg Limited Distribution of pharmaceuticol British Virgin Islonds 40
*disposed of during the year (nole 32) products to China
Synthosia Internationo} Distribution of infant milk formula  Hong Kong 20
Company Limited products in China

In accordance with IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, the Group has determined thot Unigreg Limited and Synthasia
International Company Limited are foint Ventures. A Joint Venturer shall recognise ifs interest in o Joini Venlure as an
investment ond shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with 1AS 28 Investments in
Associntes and Joint Ventures.

In 2018 the Group disposed of its interest in Unigreg Limited {note 32} Previously the Group owned 60% of the
issuad share capital of Unigreg Limited. The Group considered the existence of substontive participoting rights

held by the minority shoreholder which provide that sharehoider with o velo right over the significant financial and
operating policies of Unigreg Ltd and determined that, as o result of these rights, the Group did not have control over
the financiol and opercting policies of Unigreg Lid, despite the Group's 0% ownership interests. Consequenily the
Company wos accounted for as a Joint Venture.

The Group owns 20% of the issued share capital of Synthasic Internotionol Company Limited {'Synthasia’}, The

Group considered the existence of substantive participating rights held by both the Group ond another shareholder
which provide both parties with o veto right over the significant financial end operating policies of Synthasia ond has
determined that, os a result of these rights and by exercise of judgement, Synthasia is accounted for os o foint Venlure.

'n May 2018 the Group was nofified that the imporl licence pariner is not going lo receive required approval fo import
Suprememil, the infant milk formula brand owned by Synthasia. Following subsequent discussions with the import
licence partner and Synthasio management, the Board have concluded thet the joint venture investment of £0.3m, and
associated foan balances of £2.2m, be written down in full.

Following the impairment further fosses from the Synthasia Joint Venture have not been recognised. This is due 1o the
Group having ne obligation to fund such losses.

in accordance with IFRS 11, the Group’s investments mode to date in joint arrangements are characterised as Joint
Ventures in which the Group has rights to o shore of the errangement’s net assels rother than direct rights to underlying
assets ond obligation for underlying liobilities.

Movement in investrments in Jaint Ventures in the year:

£000s
A1 1 Janvory 2018 1,483
Shore of post-tax profits of Joint Yentures 13
Synthasia Join! Yenture impairment {300)
Unigreg Joint Venture disposal {1,196}

At 31 December 2018 -
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31. Joint Ventures continued

The carrying value of ioint Ventures is split as follows:

31 December 31 Decamber
2018 2017
£000s £000s
Unigreg Limited - 1,183
Synthosia Internationa) Compony Limited - 300
- 1,483
Amounts owing from Joint Ventures are as foflows:

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Jaint Verture recelvable £000s £000s
Unigreg Limited - 1,462

The Joint Venture receivable was a shareholder loan.
31 December 31 Dacember
2018 2017
Trade ond other receivables EDO0Os £000s
Unigreg Limited - 56
Synthasia International Compaony Limited - 2,068
- 2,124

The receivables fraom Synthosia Internotional Company Limited are stoted ofter o provision of £2.2m {2017 £nil).

32. Disposals

On 18 April 2018 the Group sold its 60% interest in Unigreg Limuited to its joint venture pariner, Pacific Glory
Development Limited, for o considerotion of £2.9 million.

The consideration of £2.9 million for the Unigreg shoreholding was settled with an initiol payment of £2.4 million
cosh ol completion and on outstanding deferred payment of £0.5 million due on or before 16 April 2019. {n oddition,
oll sutstanding shareholder loons made by the Group to Unigreg, totolling £1.5 million, were repaid in full prior

to completion

As at 18 April 2018 the Alliance Pharma Groug's investment in Unigreg was £1.2 million, representing the initial
investment of £0.5 million, together with unremitted profits of £0.7 million. The Group profit on disposal was
£1.5 million {net of fees). The profit on disposol is disclosed as @ non-underlying item {note 6).

33. Ultimate contrelling party

The Company's shares are listed on the Alternotive investment Morket ‘AIM’} and ore held widely. There is no single
ultimate controlling party.
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34. Alternative performance measures
The performance of the Group is assessed using Allernative Performance Measures [‘APMs’), Tha Group’s results

are presented both before and ofter non-underlying items. Adjusted profitability measures are presented excluding
non-underlying ilems as we believe this provides both manogement and investars with useful additional information
obout the Group’s performance and oids a more effective comporison of the Group's trading performance from one
period to the next and with similar businesses.

In addition, the Group’s results are described using certain other measures that are not defined under IFRS and are
therefore considered to be APMs. These measures are used by manogement to moniler ongoing business performance
against both shorter term budgets and forecasts bu! olsa agoinst the Groups longer term stralegic plans.

APMs used to explain and monitor Group performance:

Reconclliation

to GAAP
Meosure Cefinition meosure
Underlying £BIT Earnings before interest, tax ond non-underlying items {EBIT}, then depreciation, Note A below
ond EBITDA amartisation and underlying impairment (EBITDA).

Colcutated by raking profit betore tax end financing costs, excluding non-underlying

itemns and adding back depreciation and emaortisation.

EBITDA margin is calculated using see-though revenue.

Frae cash flow

Free cash flow is defined as cosh generoted from operations less cash payments
mode for financing costs, copital expenditure and tox.

Note B below

Note C betow

Net debt Net debt is defined s the group’s gross bank debt position net of finance issue
costs and cash.
Adjusted Adijusted underlying basic EPS is calculated by dividing underlying earnings Note D below
underlying ahiributable to ordinory shareholders fess impoct of tax rote chonges, by the
bosic EPS weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.
Adjusted Adjusted underlying effective tax rate is caleuloted by dividing total taxation for the MNote E below
underlying year less impac! of tax rate changes and non-underlying charges, by the underlying
eftective tox rate prefit before tax for the yeor,
Under the terms of the transitional services agreement with 1&J, Allionce receives the MNote F below

See-through
ncome stolement

benefit of the net profit on sales nf Nizorol from the date of ocquisition up until the
product licences in the Asia-Pacitic territories transfer from J& } 1o Alliance, which is
expected to ocour during 2019 and 2020. The net produtt margin arising in the year
ended 31 December 2018 hos been recognised as port of statutory revenue

The see-through income stalement recognises the underlying scles and cost of
sales which give rise to the nat product margin, as management consider this to be
o more meaningful representation of the underlying performance of the business,
ond to reflect the way in which it is monaged.

-

Constant currency
basis reverue

Revenue stated so that the portion denominated in non-Sterling currencies is
retranskated using foreign exchange rates from the previous financial year.

Note G befow

SIUSWSIRYC 1DUDULY

Lika-for-like
reveaue

Revenue stoted excluding the impaoct of acquisitions in both the current and prior
years. This therefore excludes revenue from Amatop, Vamousse and Nizeral to
ensure comparability.

MNote 4 includes
revenue by
brand
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34. Alternative performance measures continued

A. Underlying EBIT and EBITDA

Year Ended
Year Ended 31 December
31 December 2017
2018 £000s
Raconciliation of Underlying EBIT and EBITDA £000s restoted
Profit before tox 22,803 28,289
Non-underlying items {note 6] 5,270 {4,356}
Finance costs (note 7} 864 1,888
Underlying EBIT 8,937 25,821
Depreciation (note 13} 1,335 1,1
Underlying impairment {note 12} 1,924 -~
Amoriisation {note 12} 21 276
Underlying EBITDA 32,409 27,208
B. Free cash flow
Yedr Ended
Year Ended 31 December
A1 December 2017
2018 £000s
Reconclliation of free cash How £000s restated
Cash generated fram operations (nole 26} 26111 30,765
Finanting cosis {3,197} (2,758)
Caopitol expenditure {2,891 (2,234)
Tax paid (3,940 {3,728}
Free cash flow 16,082 22,043
€. Net debt
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Reconcitiation of net debt Note £0002 £000s
Loans and borrowings — current 19 {68,035) {41,719)
Loans and borrowings -~ non-current 13 (28,647) 41,780}
Cosh ond cash equivalents 17 10,893 11,584
Net debt (85,809) (72,315}
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D. Adjusted underlying baosic EPS

Year Enced

Year Ended 31 December

31 December 2017

2018 £000s

Reconcillotion of adjusted underlying basic EPS £000s restated
Underlying profit ofter tax for the year 22,582 25,238
Impact of reduction in UK tox rote on delerred tox - (101}
tmpact of reduction in US ond French tox rate on defarred tox - {5,958}
Adjusted underlying profit for the year 22,582 19,179
Weighted average number of shares (note 11} 497,199,620 473,842,745
Adjusted underlying basic EPS 4.54 4.05

During 2017 US and French tox reform ware both substontively enacted. The deferred tox rotes applied o US ond
French timing ditferences in 2017 were hence changed from 35.0% fo 24.0% and from 33.3% to 25.0% respectively.
Changes to the UK corporation tax rate were announced in Finance Act (No 2} 2015 and Finance Act 2016, reducing

the UK's main rate to 17% from 1 April 2020.

E. Adjusted underlying effective tax rate

ne

Year Ended Yeor Ended
31 December 3 Pecember
2018 07
Recanciliotion of adjustied underlying effective tox rate EQ00s £000s
Total faxation {charge)/credit for the year {4,447) 54)
Impact of reduction in UK tax rate on deferred tax - (109
impoct of reduction in US and French tax rote on deferred tax - {5,958)
Non-underlying tox (crediti/charge {1,044) 764
Adjusted underlying taxation charge for the year (5,491} {4,754)
Underlying profit before tax for the year 28,073 23,933
Adjusted underlying effective tax rate 19.6% 199% -
H
F. See-through income statement 3
2018 2018 g
stalutery See-through see-through ®
valves adjustment values %
£000s £000s £000s 3
Revenue 118,208 5,834 124,042 g
Cost of soles {45,560} {5,834) {51,394)
Gross profit 72,648 - 72,648
Gross profit margin 61.5% 58.6%
There is no impoct from the see-through adiustmeni on income stotement lines below gross profit.
G. Constant currency revenve
08
Fereign constant
excthonge currency
2013 impact revenue
£000s £000s £000s
See-through revenue (Note F) 124,042 516 124,558
Vamousse product revenue 5756 138 5,894
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UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Shareholder Information

Shareholder enquiries

The Company's share register is maintained by Link Asset Services [Link’) who are responsible for updoting the
register, including chonges to shoreholders’ names or addresses ond processing off-market transfers of the Company’s
shares. If you have any questions obout your shareholding in the Company or need to notify ony changes fo your
personal details you should write to Link Asset Services, PXS1, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4ZF or
telephone 0871 664 0300 (calis cost 10p per minute plus network extros, lines ore open 9:00am to 5:30pm Monday
to Friday}.

Financial Calendar

Annual Generol Meeting 23 May 2019
Shares frade ‘ex’ final dividend 13 June 2019

Final dividend record dale 14 June 2019
Payment ot final dividend 11 Suly 2019
Interim results announcement 24 September 2019
Yeor End 31 December 2019

Preliminary announcement Late March 2020
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

Year ended
Yeor ended Year ended Year ended 31 December Year ended
3t December 31 December 31 December 2017 31 December
2014 2015 2016 fm 2018
fm £Em Em rastated £m

Revenue 435 48.3 97.5 101.6 118.2
Operating proft betore non-underlying items 1.8 106 2546 25.8 289
Non-underlying operating items 0.6 6.3) - 4.4 (5.3)
Operating profit 11.2 17.0 25.6 30.2 237
Profit before tox before non-underlying items 10.8 11.0 222 239 28.1
Profit before tax offer non-underlying items 10.2 15.2 22.2 283 22.8
Intangible assets 88.9 2599 264.8 278.6 335.2
Tongible ossets 0.4 1.0 1.8 57 7.6
Current assets 15.7 278 49.3 49 58.7
Current liabilities 1.4 k1k:} 50.3 61.4 91.7
Equity 708 162.4 179.3 2031 252.2
Averoge shares in issue [millions) 264.% 2727 4;59.4 473.8 497.2
Shares in issue of period end [millions) 264.1 468.2 472.4 475.0 518.2
farnings per share - basic (p) 3.7 4.65 3.85 6.08 3.69
Earnings per shore — adjusted underlying
bosic {p) 336 3.4% 3.69 4.05 4.54
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Registered Office

Avonbridge House
Bath Rood
Chippenham
Wiltshire

SN15 28B

Company number
04241478
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KPMG LLP

66 Queen Square
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BS1 4BE

Nomad and Broker

Numis Securities Limited
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Coutionary statement regarding forward-looking statements

This Annual Report has been prepared for the members of the Company and no one else. The Company, its Directors,
employees or agents do not accept or assume responsibility to any other person in connection with this document and
ony such responsibility or liability is expressly discloimed.

This Annual Report cantains certain forward-looking statements with respect to the principal risks and uncericinties
focing Allionce. By their nature, these statements and forecasts involve risk and uncertainty becouse they relate to
events and depend on circumstances that moy or may nof occur in the future. There are a number of factors thot
could cause actual results or developments to differ moterially from those expressed or implied by these forward-
looking statements ond forecasts. The forward-locking statements reflect the knowledge and information available
ot the date of preparation of this Annual Reporl, and will not be updated during the year. Nothing in this Annual
Report should be construed as a profit forecast.

The Report of the Directars in this Annual Report has been drown up and presented in accordance with English company
law and the liobilities of the Directors in connection with that report shalf be subject to the limitations and restriclions

provided by such law.

in particulor, Direclors would be lioble to the Company (but not to ony third party} if the Report of the Directors
contains errors as a resull of recklessness or knowing misstatement or dishonest conceaiment of a materiof foct,

but would not otherwise be liable.
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TRADE MARKS

The foltowing are registered trade morks of subsidiaries of Allionce Pharma PLC and ore protected in 6 number
of countries:

AbsorbaGel™, Actidose Aqua™, Alliance™, Allionce & Logo™, Allionce Generics™, Alliance Generics & Loga™, Alliance
Pharmaceuticals™, Alocloir™, Alostop™, Alphaderm™, Ametop™, Anbesol™, Aquadrate™, Asthon & Porsons™, Ashton
and Porsons™, Ashton & Parsons Infants’ Powders.™, Atorax™, Atopiclair™, Alopyderm™, Aviacler™, Biocorneum™,
Bio-taches™, Biotanoid™, Buccastem™, Buccasterm M™, Canker-X™, Ceanel™, Clearway™, ClearWoy Stoma Bridge™,
Contisol™, Decapinol™, Dekopinol™, Deltacortril™, DeoGel™, Dermachronic™, Dermacide™, Dermamist™, Dermoxyt™,
Distamine™, Edenfarm™, Effadione™, Emezine™, EnergEyes™, Eye on Shield Loge™, Farmil™, Fazol™, Fozol G

Nitrote D'lsoconazele™, Fozol Gyn™, Flammacerium™, Flammaclair™, Flommospray™, Flammosun™, Flammozine™,
Forceval™, Forceval Junior™, Froctor™, Froctar 5™, Fungarest™, Fushifu™, Gen-Ongles™, Gregovite™, Gregovite

C™, Haemopressin™, Herpcloir™, Hydrobath™, Hydromol™, Hydromol and Wave Logo™, Hydromo! Wave Logo™,
lrenat™, ISIB™, Jonctum™, KeloCote™, Kelo-cote™, Kelo-Stretch™, Ketoderm'™, Life’'s Dha ARA Logo™, Lift™, Lift Medical
Adhesive Remover™, Lift Plus™, Lift +™, LMZ3™, “Lypsyl”™, Lypsyl™, Lypsy! - It's on Everyone's Lips™, Lypsyl Kissables™,
Lypsyl Shimmer™, Lypsyl Shymmer'™, Lysovir™, MacuShield™, MacuShietd Gold™, Mela ‘Aura Logo™, Men's Life™,
Molludab™, Moomich™, Moomie™, Muumuu™, Nabari™, Naseptin™, Natau™, Notulan™, NaturCare™, NalurCare
Breeze™, NatyrCore Fragrant™, NaturCare IPD™, NaturCore Zest™, Neumil™, Nizoral™, Nizral™, NuSeals™, Nu-
Seals™, Cctlusal™, Ondemet™, Opus™, Oxyplastine™, Paludrine™, Papclair™, Papuduc™, Papulex™, Popustil™,
Pavacol™, Povacol-D™, Pentrax™, Periocychine™, Periostan™, Pariostand ™, Periostat™, Periostalus™, Permitabs™,
Posidorm™, P520™, Purganol-Daguin™, Q Logo™, Quinocort™, Quinoderm™, Reloxyl™, Reticus™, Rincinol™, Rizotret™,
Rizuderm™, Roman in Chariot Logo™, Rympa™, Savarine™, Sebeloir™, Sincloir Logo™, Sinclair Marini Logo™,
Sindrogin™, SkinSafe™, SkinSafe Non Sting Protective Film™, Stemflova™, Stylised O Logo'™, Suprememil Wave Logo™,
Syntomet™, Syntomaetrin™, Syntometrine™, Terro-Cortril™, T-Go™, The Whole Mouth Treatment Logo™, Thwart™,
Thyrogard™, Timocort™, Timocreme™, Timodine™, Triatop™, Tridesanit™, Triffadione™, Trust the Science™, Uniftiu™,
Unigreg™, Unisomnia™, Vamousse™, Variquel™, Vibramycine™, Vita-Dermacide™

The following marks are all used under licence by Altionce Pharmaceuticols Limited:
Xenazine™ is o registered trade mark of Biovail Laborotories International {Barbados)
Gelclair™ is a registered trade mork of Helsinn Healthcare S.A.

ImmuCyst™ is o registered frade mark of Sanoti Posteur Limited

Xonveo™ is o registered trade mark of Duchesnay Inc.



Allionce Pharma plec
Avonbridge House, Bath Rood, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 5M15 288, United Kingdom

[ | A L L I A N C E T. +44 (0]1249 486566 F: +44 (011249 466977 E: ir@altiancepharmaceuticals.com
[ wew.alliancepharmaceuticals.com ’



